
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
SEPTEMBER 19, 2005 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

September 19, 2005 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Father Jonathan Sams – St. Stephen’s 
Episcopal Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) In Recognition of Beatrice Wesson on the Occasion of her 100th Birthday........... 1 
b) America Recycles – 2005..................................................................................... 1 
c)  Family Day – A Day to Eat Dinner With Your Children – September 26, 2005..... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1  Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2256 Garry 1 

C-2  Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2002 Atlas 3 

C-3  Parking Variance – 4550 Investment Drive 4 

C-4 Rezoning Application – Cambridge Square Office Buildings, West Side of 
Dequindre, North of Long Lake, Section 12 – R-1C to O-1 and E-P (Z 707) 6 



POSTPONED ITEMS: 6 

D-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: City Council Appointments: Ethnic 
Issues Advisory Board 6 

CONSENT AGENDA: 7 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 7 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 8 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 8 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations 8 

a) In Recognition of Beatrice Wesson on the Occasion of her 100th Birthday........... 8 
b) America Recycles – 2005..................................................................................... 8 
c)  Family Day – A Day to Eat Dinner With Your Children – September 26, 2005..... 8 
d) In Recognition of Citizenship Day and Constitution Week 2005 ........................... 8 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 8 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 and Informal Quote Process:  Contract 
Award – Snow Removal Rental Equipment Including Operators.......................... 8 

E-5 Private Agreement for Timbercrest Estates Site Condominiums – Project No. 
04.920.3 9 

E-6 Private Agreement for Chesapeake Grove Site Condominiums – Project No. 
04.935.3 9 

E-7 Request for Acceptance of Two Warranty Deeds and Three Permanent 
Easements for Chesapeake Grove Site Condominium, Mondrian Properties 
Chesapeake Development, LLC – Section 1, Sidwell #88-20-01-300-010 and -011 9 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 9 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 10 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Ethnic 
Community Issues Advisory Committee; Historic District Commission; and Liquor 
Committee 10 



F-2 Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth Authority (MEGA) Retention 
Incentive Package for Systems Technology Group, Inc. (STG) 14 

F-3 Final Site Condominium Review – Chesapeake Grove Site Condominium, North 
Side of Square Lake Road, East of John R, Section 1 – R-1D 14 

F-4 Final Site Condominium Review – Proposed Timbercrest Estates Site 
Condominium, 12 Units/Lots Proposed, South Side of Wattles, West of Fernleigh, 
Section 24 – R-1C 15 

F-5 Schedule a Joint Meeting with Representatives from the Troy School District 15 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 15 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  No Announcements Submitted 15 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 15 

a) City Regular General Election Informational Brochure ....................................... 15 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 16 

H-1  No Council Referrals 16 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 16 

I-1  No Council Comments 16 

REPORTS: 16 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 16 

a) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – June 2, 2005............................ 16 
b) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – August 2, 2005 ........................................ 16 
c) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – August 3, 2005 .................................... 16 
d) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – August 9, 2005....................................... 16 
e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – August 23, 2005 ........................... 16 
f) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – September 1, 2005 .................. 16 
g) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – September 6, 2005.................................. 16 

J-2 Department Reports: 16 



a) The Report of the Actuarial Valuation – December 31, 2004 of the City of Troy 
Retiree Health Care Plan.................................................................................... 16 

b) The Report of the Forty-first Annual Actuarial Valuation – December 31, 2004 
of the City of Troy Employees Retirement System – Attached as a Separate 
Item .................................................................................................................... 16 

c) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of August, 2005 ......... 16 
d) City of Troy Retirement System Summary Annual Report to Members – 

December 31, 2004 ............................................................................................ 16 
e) Police and Fire Department – Update on Hurricane Katrina Relief Efforts ......... 16 
f) Memorandum Regarding Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Appointments.............. 16 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 16 

a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Jeffrey Werner, In Appreciation of the 
Assistance Provided to the Bloomfield Township Police Department on July 
23, 2005 by Officer Ray Piper, Officer David Isham, and Officer Ed Klute ......... 16 

b) Letter of Thanks to the Troy Police Department from Mark Foran, Thanking 
the Troy Police Department and Officer Garcher for Their Assistance with the 
Motorcycles for Ministers Fundraiser Ride ......................................................... 16 

c) Letter to Chief Craft from Robert Novy, Assistant Prosecuting Attorney for 
Oakland County, Acknowledging the Professionalism and Diligence of 
Sergeant Redmond and Offficers Villerot, Schultz, Garcher, Owczarak, 
Morgan, and Stansbury ...................................................................................... 16 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 16 

J-5  Calendar 17 

J-6  Troy Daze Booths 17 

J-7  Effective Date of New Sign Ordinance 17 

J-8  Community Center Catering 17 

J-9  List of Study Items for Upcoming Council Meetings 17 

STUDY ITEMS: 17 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 17 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 17 

CLOSED SESSION: 17 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 17 



SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 18 

Monday, September 26, 2005 Regular City Council ............................................. 18 
Monday, October 3, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................... 18 
Monday, October 17, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 18 
Monday, October 24, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 18 
Monday, November 14, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 18 
Monday, November 21, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 18 
Monday, November 28, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 18 
Monday, December 5, 2005 Regular City Council ................................................ 18 
Monday, December 19, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 18 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Father Jonathan Sams – St. 
Stephen’s Episcopal Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:   
 
a) In Recognition of Beatrice Wesson on the Occasion of her 100th Birthday 
b) America Recycles – 2005 
c)  Family Day – A Day to Eat Dinner With Your Children – September 26, 2005 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1  Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2256 Garry  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
Proposed Resolution A (For Approval) 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 
compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   
              
         . 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Rosita Bosco, 2256 Garry, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Ford dump truck in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for    
  (not to exceed two years). 
 
Or Proposed Resolution B (For Denial) 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:  
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Rosita Bosco, 2256 Garry, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Ford dump truck in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2  Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2002 Atlas  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
Proposed Resolution A (For Approval) 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   
              
        . 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from John Scislowicz, 2002 Atlas, 
for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a GMC truck in a residential district is hereby approved for      
(not to exceed two years). 
 
Or Proposed Resolution B (For Denial) 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:  
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from John Scislowicz, 2002 Atlas, 
for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a GMC truck in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-3  Parking Variance – 4550 Investment Drive 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
Proposed Resolution A (for approval) 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

 
WHEREAS, Articles XLIII and XLIV (43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance provide 
that the City Council may grant variances from the off-street parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance upon general findings that: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to public interest or general purpose and intent of the 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 
2. The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as a principal use 

within a zoning district. 
 
3. The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate vicinity or 

zoning district. 
 
4. The variance relates only to property described in the application for variance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Article XLIII (43.00.00) requires that in granting, the City Council shall find that the 
practical difficulties justifying the variances are: 
 
A. That absent a variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property; or 
 
B. That absent a variance, a significant natural feature would be negatively affected or 

destroyed; or 
 
C. That absent a variance, public health, safety and welfare would be negatively affected; or 
 
D. That literal enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the 

permitted use and makes conforming unnecessarily burdensome. In this regard, the City 
Council shall find that a lesser variance does not give substantial relief, and that the relief 
requested can be granted within the spirit of the Ordinance, and within the interests of 
public safety and welfare; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds the above-stated general conditions to be present and finds 
the practical difficulty stated above to be operative in the appeal; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Debra Axelrood, of Harley Ellis 
Architects, representing UnaSource, for waiver of 82 additional parking spaces at the 
development at 4550 Investment Drive be APPROVED subject to the submission of an 
agreement to install the additional landbanked parking spaces as required by Section 24.50.06 
of the Troy Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Or Proposed Resolution B (For Denial) 
 
WHEREAS, Articles XLIII and XLIV (43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance provide 
that the City Council may grant variances from the off-street parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance upon general findings that: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to public interest or general purpose and intent of the 

Zoning Ordinance. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

 
2. The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as a principal use 

within a zoning district. 
 
3. The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate vicinity or 

zoning district. 
 
4. The variance relates only to property described in the application for variance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Article XLIII (43.00.00) requires that in granting, the City Council shall find that 
there are practical difficulties justifying the variances; and  
 
WHEREAS, City Council has not found that the requirements of Articles XLIII and XLIV 
(43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance have been met; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Debra Axelrood, of Harley Ellis 
Architects, representing UnaSource, for waiver of 82 additional parking spaces at the 
development at 4550 Investment Drive be DENIED. 
 
Yes:  
No: 
 
C-4 Rezoning Application – Cambridge Square Office Buildings, West Side of 

Dequindre, North of Long Lake, Section 12 – R-1C to O-1 and E-P (Z 707) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to O-1 and E-P rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Dequindre, north of Long Lake, section 12, being 1.12 acres in size, is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: City Council Appointments: Ethnic 
Issues Advisory Board 

 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Pending Resolution 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
Kelly Gu  Term Expires 09/30/06 (Student) 
 
Lulu Guo Term Expires 09/30/06 (Student) 
 
Michele Haight Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Amin Hashmi Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Tom Kaszubski Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Padma Kuppa Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Malina (Melanie) Sarma Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Oniell Shah Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of September 12, 2005 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
a) In Recognition of Beatrice Wesson on the Occasion of her 100th Birthday 
b) America Recycles – 2005 
c)  Family Day – A Day to Eat Dinner With Your Children – September 26, 2005 
d) In Recognition of Citizenship Day and Constitution Week 2005 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 and Informal Quote Process:  Contract Award – 

Snow Removal Rental Equipment Including Operators  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide seasonal requirements of snow removal rental 
equipment including operators with an option to renew for one (1) additional season is hereby 
AWARDED to sole bidder, Sterling Topsoil & Grading, Inc. of Sterling Heights, MI, at the hourly 
rates contained in the bid tabulation opened July 25, 2005, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Rizzo Services and Casar Management both from Warren, 
MI are hereby AWARDED contracts, utilizing the informal quote process at prices contained on 
their respective quotations dated August 8, 2005; and that City staff is AUTHORIZED to extend 
the hourly contract prices to other contractors, after the successful bidders have been 
employed, to speed the snow removal process during times of snow emergencies. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the contracts will expire April 15, 2006, and are 
CONTINGENT upon contractors’ submission of properly executed contract documents, 
including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

E-5 Private Agreement for Timbercrest Estates Site Condominiums – Project No. 
04.920.3 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Mondrian Properties Stone Haven Development, LLC 
is hereby APPROVED for the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, detention, water main, 
sidewalks, soil erosion, landscaping and paving on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and 
the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Private Agreement for Chesapeake Grove Site Condominiums – Project No. 

04.935.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Mondrain Properties Chesapeake Development, LLC 
is hereby APPROVED for the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, detention, water main, 
sidewalks, soil erosion, landscaping and paving on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and 
the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Request for Acceptance of Two Warranty Deeds and Three Permanent Easements 

for Chesapeake Grove Site Condominium, Mondrian Properties Chesapeake 
Development, LLC – Section 1, Sidwell #88-20-01-300-010 and -011 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
 
RESOLVED, That the two Warranty Deeds for right-of-way and three Permanent Easements for 
landscape, storm sewer and public utilities from Mondrian Properties Chesapeake 
Development, LLC.,  owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-01-300-010 and 011, are 
hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original of this meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Ethnic 
Community Issues Advisory Committee; Historic District Commission; and Liquor 
Committee 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments – No appointments scheduled 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Yes: 
No: 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 years 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
 Unexpired Term 11/01/05 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Leonard G. Bertin - Resigned 11/01/05 
Cynthia Buchanan 11/01/07 
Susan Burt 11/01/06 
Angela J. Done (Requests reappointment) 11/01/05 
Adam Fuhrman (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Kul B. Gauri 11/01/05 
Theodora House 11/01/06 
Nancy Johnson (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Pauline Manetta 11/01/06 
Dorothy Ann   Pietron 11/01/07 
Mark Pritzlaff (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Susan Werpetinski 11/01/07 
Anbereen Wigar (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Margaret Apte 01/19/05 01/24/05 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
O. Carlene Geier 08/10/05 08/15/05 
M.K. Laudicina 07/20/04-07/2006 08/09/04 
Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
James Berar 04/30/07 
Burdette L. Black, Jr. (Bud) 04/30/07 
Merrill W. Dixon (Sr Rep for Parks & Rec Board) 04/30/06 
Marie Hoag 04/30/06 
Pauline Y. Noce 04/30/07 
David S. Ogg 04/30/08 
Josephine Rhoads 04/30/08 
JoAnn Thompson 04/30/06 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

William Weisgerber (Does not request reappointment) 04/30/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Cynthia Buchanan 06/07/00 06/07/00 
Susan Burt 09/24/01 10/01/01 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Mary E. Freliga 11/25/02-11/2004 12/02/02 
Victor P. Freliga 04/19/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Victoria Lang 06/16/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
Dorothy A. Pietron 12/21/98-07/10/01 07/23/01 
Mark Pritzloff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shiva Shakara K. Sastry 07/20/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Donald E. Schafer 06/08/04-06/2006 06/21/04 
Remedios Solarte 09/15/04 09/20/04 
Nancy Wheeler 03/108/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Ethnic Community Issues Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/07 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/07 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/07 
 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Anju C. Brodbine 09/30/05 
Amin Hashmi (Requests reappointment) Pending Nomination 09/30/05 
Kara Huang (Student) 07/01/05 
Yul Woong (Jeff) Hyun (Would prefer to serve on a different committee) 09/30/05 
Tom Kaszubski (Requests reappointment) Pending Nomination 09/30/05 
Padma Kuppa (Requests reappointment) Pending Nomination 09/30/05 
Hailu S. Robele (Does not request reappointment) 09/30/05 
Oniell Shah (Requests reappointment) Pending Nomination 09/30/05 
Flora M. Tan 09/30/05 
Charles Yuan (Does not request reappointment) 09/30/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Margaret Apte 01/19/05 01/24/05 
Violet-Viorica Balasa 06/27/03 07/07/03 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Reuben T. Ellis 08/17/05 09/12/05 
Yogesh Gusani 08/17/05 09/12/05 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

Michele Haight-Pending Nomination 10/18/02-09/13/05-09/2007 11/04/02-09/19/05 
Kelly Jones 08/16/05 09/12/05 
Dick Kuschinsky 06/19/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Binny Samuel 09/15/05-09/2007 09/19/05 
Malina Sarma Pending Nomination 06/27/05 07/11/05 
Jayshree (Gita) Shah 04/23/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Remedios A. Solarte 09/15/04 09/20/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Kelly Gu Pending Nomination 09/06/05 09/12/05 
Lulu Guo Pending Nomination 09/06/05 09/12/05 
  
Historic District Commission One member must be an architect. 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years Two members-Historical Society recommendations. 
 One member – Historical Commission recommendation. 
 
  Term expires 03/01/08 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Marjorie A. Biglin 03/01/07 
Wilson Deane Blythe (Does not request reappointment) 03/01/05 
Barbara Chambers (Historical Commission) 03/01/08 
Robert Hudson 05/15/06 
Paul C. Lin (Architect) 05/15/06 
Ann Partlan (Historical Society) 03/01/08 
Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
Vilin Zhang (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Kerry S. Krivoshein 08/12/99-06/14/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03-08/18/03 
Nancy Wheeler 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Liquor Committee  
Appointed by Council - (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Henry W. Allemon 01/31/06 
Alex Bennett 01/31/06 
Max K. Ehlert 01/31/06 
W.S. Godlewski 01/31/08 
Patrick C. Hall 01/31/06 
James R. Peard 01/31/06 
Bohdan L. Ukrainec 01/31/08 
Emily Polet (Student) 07/01/05 
Capt. Gary Mayer (Ex-officio) 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth Authority (MEGA) Retention 

Incentive Package for Systems Technology Group, Inc. (STG) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES the Troy Downtown Development 
Authority commitment of the $45,000 for leasehold improvements as the local match for a 
MEGA incentive package to retain Systems Technology Group, Inc. CONTINGENT upon 
approval by the TDDA of this expenditure from its 2005-2006 budget. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Final Site Condominium Review – Chesapeake Grove Site Condominium, North 

Side of Square Lake Road, East of John R, Section 1 – R-1D 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Final Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance 
(Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family 
Residential Site Condominium known as Chesapeake Grove Site Condominium, located on the 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

north side of Square Lake, east of John R, including 26 home sites, within the R-1D zoning 
district, being 8.03 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Final Site Condominium Review – Proposed Timbercrest Estates Site 

Condominium, 12 Units/Lots Proposed, South Side of Wattles, West of Fernleigh, 
Section 24 – R-1C  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Final Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance 
(Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family 
Residential Site Condominium known as Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium, located on the 
south side of Wattles, west of Fernleigh, including 12 home sites, within the R-1C zoning 
district, being 4 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Schedule a Joint Meeting with Representatives from the Troy School District 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a joint meeting is SCHEDULED for the Troy City Council and Troy School 
District representatives on   ,    , 2005 at 7:30 PM in  
the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan  
48084. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  No Announcements Submitted 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) City Regular General Election Informational Brochure 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
 
a) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – June 2, 2005 
b) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – August 2, 2005 
c) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – August 3, 2005  
d) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – August 9, 2005  
e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – August 23, 2005  
f) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – September 1, 2005 
g) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – September 6, 2005 
    

J-2 Department Reports:  
 
a) The Report of the Actuarial Valuation – December 31, 2004 of the City of Troy Retiree 

Health Care Plan  
b) The Report of the Forty-first Annual Actuarial Valuation – December 31, 2004 of the City 

of Troy Employees Retirement System – Attached as a Separate Item  
c) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of August, 2005  
d) City of Troy Retirement System Summary Annual Report to Members – December 31, 

2004  
e) Police and Fire Department – Update on Hurricane Katrina Relief Efforts  
f) Memorandum Regarding Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Appointments 
   
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
 

a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Jeffrey Werner, In Appreciation of the Assistance 
Provided to the Bloomfield Township Police Department on July 23, 2005 by Officer Ray 
Piper, Officer David Isham, and Officer Ed Klute  

b) Letter of Thanks to the Troy Police Department from Mark Foran, Thanking the Troy 
Police Department and Officer Garcher for Their Assistance with the Motorcycles for 
Ministers Fundraiser Ride   

c) Letter to Chief Craft from Robert Novy, Assistant Prosecuting Attorney for Oakland 
County, Acknowledging the Professionalism and Diligence of Sergeant Redmond and 
Offficers Villerot, Schultz, Garcher, Owczarak, Morgan, and Stansbury  

  
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Troy Daze Booths 
 
J-7  Effective Date of New Sign Ordinance 
 
J-8  Community Center Catering 
 
J-9  List of Study Items for Upcoming Council Meetings 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 19, 2005 
 

- 18 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, September 26, 2005 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 3, 2005 .......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 17, 2005 ........................................................Regular City Council 
Monday, October 24, 2005 ........................................................Regular City Council 
Monday, November 14, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 21, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 28, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 5, 2005 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 19, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 
 
 



PROCLAMATION 
IN RECOGNITION OF BEATRICE WESSON 

ON THE OCCASION OF HER 100th BIRTHDAY 
 

WHEREAS, Today we gather to honor Beatrice Wesson on the occasion of her 100th birthday; and 
 

WHEREAS, Beatrice Wesson was born on September 17, 1905 in the city of Keithville, in Caddo Parish, 
Louisiana to Philip Williams and Elizabeth Hampton; and 
 

WHEREAS, Beatrice lived in Detroit from 1924 until moving to Troy in 1989; and 
 

WHEREAS, She married Maurice Wesson in Ohio in 1940, a physician who actually made house calls.  
They had two children Leatrice, married to William Eagleson and Maurice married to Lina.  After 33 years 
of marriage, Beatrice was widowed in 1973; and  
 
WHEREAS, Beatrice has four grandsons, five great-grandchildren and one great-great- granddaughter. All 
live in this area except for a grandson in Atlanta and a great-grandson and great-great-granddaughter in 
Jackson, Mississippi; and 
 

WHEREAS, While living in Detroit, Beatrice was a homemaker and volunteer dividing her time between 
the League of Women Voters of Detroit and the National Association for the Advancement of Colored 
People (NAACP), organizing the latter’s Freedom Fund to help raise money for the Legal Defense Fund, to 
provide legal assistance to poor African Americans and civil rights and voting rights activists, and bring 
lawsuits against violators of civil rights; and 
 

WHEREAS, Beatrice, an avid reader of books on politics, social justice, autobiographies and biographies, 
is a very spiritual person and nature lover who also grew roses for many years; and 
 
WHEREAS, Now a member of the League of Women Voters of Troy Area, Beatrice attends meetings as 
much as she can and contributes from her vast amount of knowledge and experience. When she speaks, 
the Leaguers listen.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy congratulates Beatrice 
Wesson on the occasion of her 100th birthday.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council and all of Troy’s residents extend best wishes to 
Beatrice for many more healthy and happy years. 
 
Presented this 19th day of September 2005. 

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a/E-03a



 
PROCLAMATION 

AMERICA RECYCLES 2005 
 

WHEREAS, The world has changed a lot in the past century.  From individually packaged food 
servings to disposable diapers, more garbage is generated now than ever before.  The average 
American discards 7.5 pounds of garbage every day.  Our garbage, our solid waste stream, goes 
mostly to the local incinerator plant, and the rest to landfills, where it’s compacted and buried; and 
 
WHEREAS, To focus the nation’s attention on the importance of recycling, businesses, industries, 
government agencies, nonprofit organizations, and individuals have joined together to celebrate 
America Recycles 2005 and are encouraging their employers, staff, customers, membership, and all 
citizens to pledge to buy more recycled-content products starting today; and 
 
WHEREAS, Participating in America Recycles 2005 is one way our citizens can help raise 
awareness about the need to reduce waste by reusing, recycling and buying recycled products; and 
 
WHEREAS, The more we recycle, the less garbage winds up in our landfills and incineration plants.  
By reusing aluminum, paper, glass, plastics and other materials, we can save production and energy 
costs, and reduce by up to 75% the negative impacts that the extraction and processing of virgin 
materials has on the environment. Plastics, made from precious and nonrenewable petroleum, and 
aluminum, which is mined from bauxite, are especially important to recycle; and  
 
WHEREAS, Recycling helps protect our resources, our environment, and our quality of life. The entire 
loop: Reduce, Reuse, Recycle is completed when we buy products made from recycled material; and 
 
WHEREAS, From July 2004 to June 2005, the City of Troy recycled 312 tons of glass, 3730 tons of 
paperboard, cardboard, and newspaper, 350 tons of metal, 178 tons of tin, 204 tons of plastic and 
7803 tons of compost; and 
 
WHEREAS, State and community leaders need to spread the word about the excellent programs they 
have established, the growth of markets for recyclable materials, and the importance of buying 
recycled products. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Troy City Council hereby proclaims America 
Recycles 2005 in Troy, Michigan, and urges all Troy residents to Reduce, Reuse and Recycle. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That America Recycles 2005 is celebrated year-round to encourage 
people to recycle and buy products made from recycled materials. The theme for America Recycles 
2005 is "It All Comes Back To You."  
 
Signed this 19th day of September 2005. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b/E-03b



PROCLAMATION 
Family Day – A Day to Eat Dinner With Your Children 

September 26, 2005 
 
WHEREAS, The use of illegal drugs and the abuse of alcohol and nicotine constitute the 
greatest threats to the well-being of America’s children; and 
 
WHEREAS, Surveys conducted by The National Center on Addiction and Substance Abuse 
(CASA) at Columbia University have consistently found that the more often children and 
teenagers eat dinner with their families, the less likely they are to smoke, drink and use illegal 
drugs; and 
 
WHEREAS, Teenagers who virtually never eat dinner with their families are 72 percent more 
likely than the average teenager to use illegal drugs, alcohol and cigarettes; and 
 
WHEREAS, Teenagers who almost always eat dinner with their families are 31 percent less 
likely than the average teenager to use illegal drugs, alcohol and cigarettes; and 
 
WHEREAS, The correlation between family dinners and reduced risk for teen substance abuse 
are well documented; and 
 
WHEREAS, Parental influence is known to be one of the most crucial factors in determining the 
likelihood of substance abuse by teenagers; and 
 
WHEREAS, Family dinners have long constituted a substantial pillar of family life in America; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
proclaims Monday, September 26, 2005 as Family Day – A Day to Eat Dinner with Your 
Children in the City of Troy; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That we invite all Troy residents to recognize and participate in 
the observance of Family Day, and encourage everyone to eat dinner together with their 
children. 
 
Signed this 19th day of September 2005. 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01c/E-03c



 
 
DATE:   September 13, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   2256 Garry 
 
 
 
 
On August 10, 2005, contact was made with Rosita Bosco identifying restrictions related 
to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of that information, she 
was advised that the Ford dump truck parked on the property did not comply with the 
exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  She was given the option to remove 
the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Ms. Bosco has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a 
public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has 
been scheduled for your meeting of September 19, 2005. 
 
The property in question has an existing house that is 950 square feet in area.  There is 
also a detached garage that is 528 square feet in area.  Based upon the restrictions of 
Section 40.56.01 an attached garage could be constructed up to 712 square feet in 
area.  In addition, based upon the size of the property and the limitations of Section 
40.56.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, the detached accessory building could be increased 
to 606 square feet. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 



 



 





 



 







 
 
DATE:   September 13, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   2002 Atlas 
 
 
 
 
On July 26, 2005, information was sent to John Scislowicz that identified restrictions 
related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of that 
information, he was advised that the GMC truck parked on the property did not comply 
with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  He was given the option to 
remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Mr. Scislowicz has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that 
a public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has 
been scheduled for your meeting of September 19, 2005. 
 
The property in question has an existing house that is 1,483 square feet in area.  There 
is also a detached garage that is 576 square feet in area.  Based upon the restrictions 
of Section 40.56.01 and the 30% lot coverage limitation of Section 30.10.06, only 191 
square feet of attached garage could be constructed.  In addition, based upon the size 
of the property and the limitations of Section 40.56.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, the 
detached accessory building cold only be increased to 600 square feet. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 





 



 



 

















 



 
 
DATE:   September 13, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Request for Parking Variance 
   UnaSource Health, LLC  
   4550 Investment Drive  
 

 
 

 
We have received a building permit application from Debra Axelrood of the architectural 
firm of Harley Ellis to alter the medical office building at 4550 Investment Drive.  The 
alteration includes the conversion of approximately 9,000 square feet of the current 
basement storage area to usable floor space for clinic space.  The current facilities that 
are on the site have a parking requirement of 1,134 parking spaces.  If constructed, this 
additional building area would result in a revised total parking of 1,224 parking spaces 
for the development.  The existing parking lot has only 706 parking spaces and an 
additional 100 parking spaces can be provided in the area of the existing detention pond 
if the pond were to be reconstructed as an underground structure.  This results in a total 
potential of 806 parking spaces available on the site.  In February of 2001, City Council 
approved a variance to reduce the required parking by 336 spaces.  This still leaves a 
deficiency of 82 spaces for the current scope of work.  Because of the deficiency of the 
additional 82 spaces the building permit application has been denied.  The petitioner 
has filed an application for variance for the additional 82 spaces. 
 
In reviewing the records on this site we also have found that the there is an outstanding 
issue regarding the landbanked parking area.  Section 24.50.06 of the Zoning 
Ordinance regarding landbanked parking in the O-1 (Low-Rise Office) Zoning District 
requires an agreement to install the additional parking at the request of the City of Troy.  
A review of the files shows that no such agreement exists regarding this site although a 
portion of the required parking has been landbanked in landscape areas from the first 
phase of this development.  We recommend that the resolution for the parking variance, 
if approved, include as a condition the submission of such an agreement. 
 
A Public Hearing has been scheduled for September 19, 2005, regarding this matter.  If 
you would like any additional information regarding this appeal, kindly advise. 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



UnaSource Parking Requirements Chart 
 
Project Phase GSF    Useable SF  Parking Required 
Phase 1 89,520 70,582 706 
Phase 2 49,999 42,722 428 
Phase 3 22,985 Ex. Basement   8,987   90 
 
 
Total Parking Required:   1224 
Total Parking Provided:     706 
Landbanked parking    100 
Total Available   806 
Deficiency    418 
Previous variance (2001)   336 
Variance Requested:     82 
 



 



 



 



 



 





 

















 1

DATE:  September 12, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM (PUBLIC HEARING) – REZONING APPLICATION 

– From R-1C to O-1 and E-P, Cambridge Square Office Buildings, 
West side of Dequindre, North of Long Lake, Section 12 (Z 707) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is compatible with surrounding land uses and zoning districts.  
Further, the request is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan which was 
amended in 1982.  The proposed 40-foot wide E-P zone is an appropriate 
transition between the O-1 district and the R-1C district to the north.  This E-P 
zone will define the upper limit of the Community Service Area.  The Planning 
Commission recommended approval of this item at the July 12, 2005 Regular 
Meeting.  
 
City Management agrees with the Planning Commission and recommends 
approval of the rezoning request. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Frank D’Anna, PDI Enterprise, L.L.C. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the west side of Dequindre Rd., north of Long Lake 
Rd., in section 12. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant’s entire parcel is approximately 1.12 acres in size. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is currently vacant. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
The property is zoned R-1C One Family Residential. 

campbellld
Text Box
C-04



 2

Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to rezone the northern 40 ft. of the property to the E-P 
(Environmental Protection) zoning district and the southern 40 ft. of the property 
to the O-1 (Low Rise Office) zoning district    
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The application indicates that the applicant is proposing to combine this parcel 
with the parcel to the south creating a 3.46 acre parcel.  The applicant intends to 
develop a new bank building on the east end of the property, a 1-story office 
building on the west end and provide a 40 ft. landscape buffer along the northern 
property line.  
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
South: Office. 
East: Retail Center (Sterling Heights). 
West: Single family residential neighborhood. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1C One Family Residential.   
South: O-1 Low Rise Office. 
East: C-2 Planned Comparison Business (Sterling Heights).   
West: R-1C One Family Residential.   
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed O-1 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

Office Buildings for any of the following occupations: executive, 
administrative; professional; accounting; writing; clerical stenographic; 
drafting; and sales. 

 
 Medical office, including clinics. 
 

Banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, and similar uses. 
Such uses may include drive-in facilities only as an accessory use. 

 
 Publicly owned buildings, exchanges, and public utility offices. 
 
 Other uses similar to the above uses. 



 3

USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
 Uses customarily supporting or serving the Principal Uses permitted in this 

District, such as pharmacies or drug stores, optical services, copy services, 
office supplies, book stores, art galleries, or restaurants; provided that these 
uses are within the building housing the Principal Uses which they support, 
and provided that there is no direct outside entrance for these uses separate 
from the entrance serving the Principal Uses.   

 
 Data processing and computer centers, including sales support, service and 

maintenance of electronic data processing equipment.  The sales support, 
service and maintenance functions, shall be accessory or secondary to the 
Principal Uses permitted in this District, and thus shall not be operated as 
independent businesses. 

 
Technical training uses, when such are accessory or secondary to the 
Principal Uses permitted in this District, and thus not operated as 
independent businesses. 

 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
 Mortuary establishments. 
 
 Private service clubs fraternal organizations and lodge halls, including 

accessory structures and uses customarily incidental to such uses, racquet 
and athletic clubs.  

 
 Private ambulance facilities.  
 
 Utility sub-stations, transformer stations or gas regulator stations 

(without storage yards). 
   

Mechanical or laboratory research involving testing and evaluation of 
products, or prototype or experimental product or process development. 

 
Child care centers, nursery schools, or day nurseries (not including 
dormitories). 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
Access to the parcel will be provided from Dequindre Road, a major 
thoroughfare. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The proposed method of storm water detention is not shown on the site plan.  
The applicant will be required to adequately dispose of storm water on the 
property. 



 4

Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map does not indicate any significant natural features 
located on the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The property is located in the area of transition between Community Service 
Area and Low Density Residential on the Future Land Use Plan.  This was 
amended to include Community Service Area in 1982.  The Community Service 
Area designation correlates with B-2 (primary correlation) and B-3, B-1 and O-1 
(secondary correlation) in the Future Land Use Plan.  The proposed rezoning will 
extend the northern limits of O-1 approximately 40 feet to the north, however the 
E-P zone will define the upper limit of the Community Service Area.  The 40-foot 
wide E-P zone is an appropriate transition between the O-1 district and the R-1C 
district to the north.   
 
The application is in compliance with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Statement and sketch from petitioner. 
3. Minutes from July 12, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ Z 707 
 
PREPARED BY RBS/MFM 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-707 Cambridge Square Sec 25\CC Public Hearing Z-707 09 19 05.doc 
 
 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO O-1 & E-P



B
LA

IR

E LONG LAKE

DUKE

R
EN

SH
AW

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

FED
O

R
A

D
AY

TO
N

JU
LIA

N

KNIGHT

W
IN

D
M

ILL

NILO

S
P

R
IN

G
 M

E
A

D
O

W
S

ERIKSON

H
Y

D
E

 PA
R

K

BU
TLER ±0 100 200 300 40050

Feet

REZONING REQUEST
PROP. CAMBRIDGE SQUARE OFFICE BLDGS.
FROM R-1C TO O-1 & E-P
NORTH OF LONG LAKE, WEST SIDE OF DEQUINDRE
SEC.  12  (Z-707)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO E-P

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO O-1











brattopp
Text Box
APPLICANT'S STATEMENT



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 707) – Proposed Cambridge Square 
Office Development, West side of Dequindre, North of Long Lake, Section 12, - From R-
1C to O-1 and E-P 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the rezoning request. 
 
The petitioner, Frank D’Anna of PDI Enterprise LLC, 42500 Hayes, Clinton Township, 
was present.  Mr. D’Anna said the subject property is the remaining vacant lot abutting 
the commercial zoning, and the property would be least desirable for a single family 
home with respect to transition between commercial and single family.  He said the 
proposed landscaped buffer would retain the value of the existing neighboring homes.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Pam Prewitt of 41203 Dequindre, Troy, was present.  Ms. Prewitt’s home is directly next to 
the proposed development.  She spoke in favor of the proposed rezoning and 
development.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Chair Strat stated the proposed site plan submitted with the rezoning request would not 
be a consideration in the Commission’s recommendation of the rezoning request.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-115 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-1C to O-1 and E-P rezoning request, located on the west side of Dequindre, 
north of Long Lake, within Section 12, being approximately 1.12 acres in size, be 
granted, for the following reason:  
 

1. The E-P zoning on the north side of the property will allow for proper transition 
into the residential to the north. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Schultz said at the time that the site plan is considered, he would like to see the 
petitioner continue the E-P zoning for the homes to the west.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, September 12, 2005, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

Pastor Paul Lehman – Glen Oaks Alliance Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

 
A-1 Presentations:  
 
On behalf Ruth Johnson, Oakland County Clerk/Register of Deeds, County Commissioner 
William D. Molnar presented City Clerk, Tonni L. Bartholomew with a certificate of appreciation 
for her dedication for effectively and efficiently conducting the May 3, 2005 Election with the 
highest integrity. 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1  Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2239 East Maple Road 
 
Resolution #2005-09-409 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 
alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 

C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 
cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s);” and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 
 commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
 negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
 pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Roger Coley, 2239 East 
Maple Road, for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to 
permit outdoor parking of a Chevrolet dump truck in a residential district is hereby APPROVED 
for two years. 
 
Yes:  Schilling, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert  
No:  Beltramini, Stine  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-2 Rezoning Application – South Side of Long Lake Road, West of Calvert Drive, 

Section 14 – R-1C to CR-1 (Z 706) 
 
Resolution #2005-09-410 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to CR-1 rezoning request, located on the south side of Long Lake 
Road, west of Calvert Drive, Section 14, being 3.07 acres in size, is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, North of Creston, Between 
Long Lake and Trinway – Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T (Z 705) – Withdrawn by 
Petitioner 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

Pending Resolution 
Resolution 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of Rochester 
Road, north of Creston, between Long Lake and Trinway, Section 10, being 29,040 square feet 
in size, is hereby DENIED. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2005-09-411 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to DENY the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the 
west side of Rochester Road, north of Creston, between Long Lake and Trinway, Section 10, 
being 29,040 square feet in size is hereby AMENDED by STRIKING it in its entirety and 
SUBSTITUTED by INSERTING, “RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the 
Petitioner’s request to withdraw the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester Road, north of Creston, between Long Lake and Trinway, Section 10, being 29,040 
square feet in size.” 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2005-09-412 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Petitioner’s request to withdraw the 
R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of Rochester Road, north of Creston, 
between Long Lake and Trinway, Section 10, being 29,040 square feet in size. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
D-2 Revision of Troy’s Sign Ordinances 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
a) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Enact Chapter 85 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance to enact Chapter 85 – Signs, is hereby ADOPTED as 
recommended by the City Administration, a copy of this ordinance shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

b) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Amendment to Chapter 60 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60, Section 60.03, is hereby 
ADOPTED as recommended by the City Administration, a copy of this ordinance shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
c) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Amendment to Chapter 3 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amendment to Chapter 3, Section 1.141(6), is hereby 
ADOPTED as recommended by the City Administration, a copy of this ordinance shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
d) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Chapter 78 Repealed 
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 78 – Signs, of the Troy City Code, is hereby REPEALED. 
 
e) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Chapter 85-A Repealed 
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 85-A – Political Signs, of the Troy City Code, is hereby REPEALED. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-09-413 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Resolution for the Revision of Troy’s Sign Ordinance be 
AMENDED by modifying Section 60.03.02 B.1 by STRIKING  “six square feet” and INSERTING 
“four square feet” and Section 60.03.02 B.2 by STRIKING “three temporary signs” and 
INSERTING “two temporary signs” and Section 60.03.02 B.4 by STRIKING “ninety days” and 
INSERTING “sixty days”. 
 
Yes: None 
No: All-7 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2005-09-414 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Schilling    
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to revise Troy’s Sign Ordinance be AMENDED by STRIKING  
it in its entirety and SUBSTITUTED by INSERTING: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

“a) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Enact Chapter 85 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance to enact Chapter 85 – Signs, is hereby ADOPTED as 
recommended by the City Administration SUBJECT to the following additional amendments: 
Section 85.02.01 F. is DELETED; Section 85.03.02 B (1) is AMENDED by STRIKING “twelve 
(12) square feet” and INSERTING “fourteen (14) square feet”; and Section 85.03.02 B (2) is 
AMENDED by ADDING “f. Sign shall be located as so to comply with the corner clearance 
requirements of Section 85.01.05 B.” a copy of this ordinance shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
c) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Amendment to Chapter 60 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60, Section 60.03, is hereby 
ADOPTED as recommended by the City Administration, a copy of this ordinance shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
c) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Amendment to Chapter 3 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amendment to Chapter 3, Section 1.141(6), is hereby 
ADOPTED as recommended by the City Administration, a copy of this ordinance shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
d) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Chapter 78 Repealed 
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 78 – Signs, of the Troy City Code, is hereby REPEALED. 
 
f) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Chapter 85-A Repealed 
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 85-A – Political Signs, of the Troy City Code, is hereby 
REPEALED.” 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
No: Lambert  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-09-415 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
a) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Enact Chapter 85 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance to enact Chapter 85 – Signs, is hereby ADOPTED as 
recommended by the City Administration SUBJECT to the following additional amendments: 
Section 85.02.01 F. is DELETED; Section 85.03.02 B (1) is AMENDED by STRIKING “twelve 
(12) square feet” and INSERTING “fourteen (14) square feet”; and Section 85.03.02 B (2) is 
AMENDED by ADDING “f. Sign shall be located as so to comply with the corner clearance 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

requirements of Section 85.01.05 B.” a copy of this ordinance shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
d) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Amendment to Chapter 60 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60, Section 60.03, is hereby 
ADOPTED as recommended by the City Administration, a copy of this ordinance shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
c) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Amendment to Chapter 3 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amendment to Chapter 3, Section 1.141(6), is hereby 
ADOPTED as recommended by the City Administration, a copy of this ordinance shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
d) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Chapter 78 Repealed 
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 78 – Signs, of the Troy City Code, is hereby REPEALED. 
 
g) Revision of Sign Ordinance – Chapter 85-A Repealed 
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 85-A – Political Signs, of the Troy City Code, is hereby REPEALED. 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak 
No: Lambert  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:08 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:26 PM. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2005-09-416 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-4 (b), which shall be considered after Consent Agenda 
(E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2005-09-416-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of August 15, 2005 be 
APPROVED as corrected. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations – None Proposed   
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Ice Melt 
 
Resolution #2005-09-416-E-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On November 15, 2004, a one-year contract with an option to renew for one 
additional year to provide Ice Melt Compound to the City of Troy and participating members of 
the MITN Purchasing Cooperative was AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, 
Washington Elevator Company of Washington, MI (Resolution #2004-11-591E4);  
 
WHEREAS, The awarded bidder has agreed to exercise the option to renew the contract for 
one additional year under the same pricing, terms, and conditions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED with Washington Elevator to provide Ice Melt Compound under the same contract 
price, terms and conditions at an estimated cost of $18,760.00 for one-year expiring October 
31, 2006.   
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Volunteer 

Firefighter Uniforms 
 
Resolution #2005-09-416-E-4c 
 
WHEREAS, On September 22, 2003, two-year contracts with an option to renew for two 
additional one-year periods to purchase volunteer firefighter uniforms were AWARDED to the 
low bidders, Metropolitan Uniform of Detroit, Michigan and Allie Brothers, Inc. of Livonia, 
Michigan (Resolution #2003-09-467-E-4);  
 
WHEREAS, Both vendors have agreed to exercise the first one-year option to renew under the 
same pricing, terms and conditions as the original contracts. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contracts are hereby 
EXERCISED with Metropolitan Uniform and Allie Brothers, Inc. to provide Volunteer Firefighter 
Uniforms under the same prices, terms, and conditions for one-year at an estimated cost of 
$12,000.00, to expire September 8, 2006. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award:  Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Ramp and Stair Replacement at the Troy Historical Museum 

 
Resolution #2005-09-416-E-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to replace the accessibility ramp and stairs at the main museum 
building is hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Poe Restoration and 
Waterproofing of Commerce, Michigan for an estimated total cost of $16,250.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the vendor submission of 
proper contract and bid documents, including insurance certificates, bonds and all other 
specified requirements; and if additional work is required that could not be foreseen, such 
additional work is AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost or 
$1,625.00. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Pavement Seam 

and Fracture Sealing Program 
 
Resolution #2005-09-416-E-4e 
 
WHEREAS, On October 18, 2004, a contract to provide a Pavement Seam and Fracture 
Sealing Program with an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods was 
AWARDED to the low bidder, Scodeller Construction, Inc. of South Lyon, MI, at an estimated 
total cost of $657,500.00; (Resolution # 2004-10-546-E7);  
 
WHEREAS, Scodeller Construction, Inc. has agreed to exercise the first one-year option to 
renew under the same prices, terms, and conditions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the first year of the option to renew the contract 
for a Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program is hereby EXERCISED with Scodeller 
Construction, Inc. for an estimated total cost of $500,000.00, under the same contract prices, 
terms, and conditions expiring June 30, 2006; and if changes in the quantity of work are 
required, either additive or deductive, such changes are AUTHORIZED in an amount not to 
exceed 25% of the contract total project cost or $125,000.00 and within budgetary limitations.   
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – Troy 

Community Coalition 
 
Resolution #2005-09-416-E-4f 
 
RESOLVED, That approval to expend funds budgeted in the 2005/2006 fiscal year to the Troy 
Community Coalition to provide community services to prevent drug and alcohol abuse in the 
amount of $100,000.00 is hereby APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED on behalf of the City of Troy to sign the agreement, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6:  Grant Approval and Authorization to Expend 
City Funds – Radio Equipment 

 
Resolution #2005-09-416-E-4g 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby AUTHORIZE the Troy Fire Department to 
receive a United States Fire Administration FIRE ACT Grant and EXPEND funds for the for the 
purchase of radio equipment from M/A-Com Inc. of Lynchburg, VA at an estimated cost of 
$131,000.00 through an Oakland County Contract in accordance with the Appendix, Radio 
Equipment Price Breakdown; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Fire Department capital equipment budget is hereby 
AMENDED due to the grant award in the amount of $131,000.00.    
 
h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Slate Roof Repair and 

Replacement – Troy Historical Museum 
 
Resolution #2005-09-416-E-4h 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to repair and replace the slate roof at the main museum building is 
hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, Butcher & Baeker Construction Co., Inc of Rochester 
Hills, Michigan for an estimated cost of $91,033.00, at prices contained in the attached bid 
tabulation opened August 17, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements; and if additional work is needed that could not be foreseen, such 
additional work is AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost or 
$9,103.00.  
 
E-5 Waiver of Parking Restrictions – Smith Middle School  
 
Resolution #2005-09-416-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby WAIVE the No Parking 
restrictions on the west side of Donaldson Street from Square Lake Road to Cotswold Street, 
on September 15, 2005, between the hours of 6:30 pm - 9:30 pm; November 16 and 17, 2005, 
between the hours of 11:30 am - 9:00 pm; March 2, 2006, between the hours of 11:30 am - 
9:00 pm; March 3, 2006, between the hours of 5:30 pm - 9:30 pm; and June 14, 2005, between 
the hours of 9:00 am - 12:00 noon.   
 
E-6 Acceptance of Permanent Easements for Ashbury Drive – Sanitary Sewer – 

Northeast ¼ of Section 24  
 
Resolution #2005-09-416-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That the permanent easement from Muhammad A. Munir and Zahida Razzaq, 
having Sidwell #88-20-24-226-082, and the permanent easement from Babi Construction, Inc., 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

having Sidwell #88-20-24-226-083 are hereby ACCEPTED for the operation, maintenance and 
repair or replacement of sanitary sewer on Ashbury Drive; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Permanent Easements for Maplewood Site 

Condominium, Milano Building Company, Section 3 – Sidwell #88-20-03-226-009  
 
Resolution #2005-09-416-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That the Warranty Deed for right-of-way and four Permanent Easements for 
watermain, sanitary sewer and storm sewer from Milano Building Company, Inc., owner of the 
property having Sidwell #88-20-03-226-009, are hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Waiver of Parking Restrictions – Congregation Shir Tikvah  
 
Resolution #2005-09-416-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby WAIVE the No Parking 
restrictions on the East side of Northfield Parkway from the parking lot entrance to 
Congregation Shir Tikvah to the entrance to Boulan Park, on October 3, 2005, 7:00 pm – 11:00 
pm; October 4, 2005, 9:00 am – 5:00 pm; October 12, 2005, 7:00 pm – 11:00 pm; October 13, 
2005, 9:00 am – 9:00 pm. 
 
E-9 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County  
 
Resolution #2005-09-416-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the Winter Maintenance Agreement between the Road Commission for 
Oakland County and the City of Troy for Snow and Ice Control of certain primary and local 
roads, which are described and outlined in Exhibit A, is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the necessary documents, a copy of this 
agreement, which is authorized by the provisions of 1951 PA 51 (MCL 247.651 et seq.), shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Snow Removal 

Services – Home Chore Program 
 
Resolution #2005-09-417 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to provide for seasonal requirements of snow removal services for 
the Home Chore Program are hereby AWARDED to the low total bidders, Advanced Services 
of Sterling Heights, as primary contractor, and Kathy’s Lawn Maintenance of Saginaw as 
secondary contractor, for Proposal A and Proposal B for an estimated total cost of $11,092.00 
per season, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened August 10, 2005, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Downtown 
Development Authority; b) City Council Appointments:  Animal Control Appeal 
Board; Cable Advisory Committee; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board-Postponed until 
the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, September 19, 2005; and 
Traffic Committee 

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments  
 
Resolution #2005-09-418 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR with 
COUNCIL APPROVAL to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Downtown Development Authority 
Mayor, Council Approval (13) – 4 years 
 
Michele Hodges Term Expires 09/30/09 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

 
Daniel MacLeish Term Expires 09/30/09 
 
Harvey Weiss Term Expires 09/30/09 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council  (5) – 3 years 
 
Jayne Saeger Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Cable Advisory Committee (CAC)  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
Robert Lin Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
Kelly Gu  Term Expires 09/30/06 (Student) 
 
Lulu Guo Term Expires 09/30/06 (Student) 
 
Michele Haight Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Amin Hashmi Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Tom Kaszubski Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Padma Kuppa Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Malina (Melanie) Sarma Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Oniell Shah Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Parks and Recreation Board 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

Appointed by Council (10) – 3 years 
 
Janice Zikakis Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Meaghan Kovacs Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Traffic Committee  
Appointed by Council  (7) – 3 years 
 
Sarah Binkowski or Gordon Schepke Unexpired Term 01/31/06 
 
Katherine Tan Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
Vote on Resolution to Separate Vote for Traffic Committee Appointments and Postpone 
the Vote for the Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Appointments 
  
Resolution #2005-09-419 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REQUESTS the vote be SEPARATED for the 
Traffic Committee appointments to consider multiple recommendations and to POSTPONE the 
vote for Ethnic Issues Advisory Committee until the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for 
Monday, September 19, 2005. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Appoint Members to the Animal Control Appeal Board, the Cable 
Advisory Committee and the Parks and Recreation Board 
 
Resolution #2005-09-420 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 years 
 
Jayne Saeger Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Cable Advisory Committee (CAC)  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
Robert Lin Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (10) – 3 years 
 
Janice Zikakis Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Meaghan Kovacs Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Roll Call Vote for Traffic Committee Recommendations 
 
RECOMMENDATION: VOTE: 

Sara Binkowski: Schilling, Beltramini  
Gordon Schepke: Lambert, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Stine  

 
Vote on Resolution to Confirm Appointments to the Traffic Committee 
 
Resolution #2005-09-421 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
Traffic Committee  
Appointed by Council  (7) – 3 years 
 
Gordon Schepke Unexpired Term 01/31/06 
 
Katherine Tan Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
Yes: All-7   
 
F-2 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 and Bid Waiver – Option to Renew (1 Year) and 

Bid Waiver (1 Year) to Extend – Casualty and Property Insurance with the MMRMA 
for November 2005-06 and November 2006-07 

 
Resolution #2005-09-422 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, On August 9, 2004, a one-year contract with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year to provide Casualty and Property Insurance was AWARDED to the Michigan 
Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) for a premium of $293,689 for coverage year 
2004/2005 (Resolution #2004-08-415); and 
 
WHEREAS, the MMRMA has agreed to EXERCISE the one-year option to renew and EXTEND 
the contract for one (1) additional year under the same terms and conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement would include a 2% premium increase in the first year (2005/2006), 
and a not to exceed 5% premium increase in the second year (2006/2007).  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and the option to renew and extend the contract is hereby EXERCISED with the MMRMA to 
provide Casualty and Property Insurance for a premium of $299,563.00 in 2005/2006, and a not 
to exceed premium of $314,541.00 in 2006/2007; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, This contract also includes the maintenance of a positive loss 
fund balance of up to $150,000 expiring November 7, 2007.  
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-3 Sole Source – In-Car Camera and Radar Equipment Parts and Service 
 
Resolution #2005-09-423 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, Decatur Electronics of Decatur, Illinois is the manufacturer and main service facility 
of the 8mm In-car video camera systems and radar equipment used by the Troy Police 
Department;  
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to maintain these systems so that Police Department incidents may 
be recorded to reduce liability and aid in litigation. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED to purchase 
parts and services from Decatur Electronics to maintain the Police Department’s fleet of 8mm 
in-car video systems and radar equipment for an estimated annual cost of $25,000.00 which is 
commensurate to authorized service center rates. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-4 Designation of Voting Delegates at Annual NLC Meeting – Charlotte, North 

Carolina 
 
Resolution #2005-09-424 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Robin E. Beltramini is hereby DESIGNATED as Voting Delegate and Louise 
E.  Schilling is hereby DESIGNATED as the Alternate Voting Delegate to cast the vote of the 
City of Troy at the Annual Meeting of the National League of Cities to be held December 10, 
2005 at Charlotte, North Carolina. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

F-5 Recommendation to Negotiate Purchase of Replacement Ladder Truck 
 
Resolution #2005-09-425 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Fire Department has standardized aerial ladder trucks over the last 
twenty years to allow simplified firefighter training on this type of complex apparatus;  
 
WHEREAS, Maintenance is simplified by having platform units that have similar ladder, 
hydraulic, and stabilizing systems. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That City Administration is AUTHORIZED to 
NEGOTIATE a contract with Sutphen Corporation of Amlin, Ohio for the purchase of an aerial 
ladder truck; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the final contract will be SUBMITTED to the Troy City 
Council for review and final approval. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-6 Final Site Condominium Review – Hidden Creek Site Condominium, East Side of 

Ellenboro, South Side of Vanderpool, Section 22 – R-1E 
 
Resolution #2005-09-426 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Final Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance 
(Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family 
Residential Site Condominium known as Hidden Creek Site Condominium and as 
recommended for approval by City Management, located on the east of Ellenboro, south of 
Vanderpool, including 13 home sites, within the R-1E zoning district, being 7.97 acres in size, is 
hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-7 Amendment #1 – SLC Meter Service, Inc. – Automatic Meter Reading System 
 
Resolution #2005-09-427 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, On February 7, 2005, Troy City Council approved a contract to provide an 
automatic meter reading system for the Department of Public Works Water Division to SLC 
Meter Service, Inc. of Davisburg, MI, the lowest, most qualified bidder as a result of a best 
value process for an estimated net total cost of $78,350.00 at prices as outlined in the bid 
tabulation opened October 15, 2004 (Resolution #2005-02-057);  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

WHEREAS, The initial system converted 1,000 industrial meters to an automatic meter reading 
system and City management recommends the scope of work be expanded to include 26,000 
residential meters over a four (4) year period. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That City Management is AUTHORIZED to 
NEGOTIATE and AMEND the contract with SLC Meter Service, Inc.; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the final contract will be SUBMITTED to the Troy City 
Council for review and final approval. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-8 Resolution Opposing Senate Bill 528 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, President Bush has established a priority for universal affordable access to 
broadband technology by 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, Legislation has also been filed by Senators John McCain (Arizona) and Frank 
Lautenburg (New Jersey), entitled the “Community Broadband Act of 2005”, that would protect 
a city’s right to explore the option of providing municipal broadband;   
 
WHEREAS, For local governments, reliable high-speed internet (broadband) service attracts 
businesses, spurs economic development and supports urban renewal;  
 
WHEREAS, Historically, government involvement has often been necessary to provide 
essential services to our citizens – from rural power to public libraries.  In today’s global market, 
internet (broadband) access is an essential service, and municipalities have the obligation to 
make sure that all citizens and businesses have equal access to this service;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan local governments already have specific restrictions and a well thought 
out statutory law (Metro Act) that regulates local government involvement in 
telecommunications services;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan now has the worst unemployment rate in the country and internet 
(broadband) access is a vital economic development tool and is essential for Michigan to 
successfully attract new jobs and transitioning from a manufacturing-based to a technology-
based economy;  
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County has initiated a county-wide project with private partners to develop 
a multi-tiered wireless broadband service to attract business, spur economic development and 
provide efficient and effective service for all residents and visitors of the county. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUESTS the legislative 
bodies to OPPOSE SB 528 as it prevents local governments from providing any 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 18 - 

telecommunication services to citizens; including cable, high-speed internet (broadband) and 
wireless communications; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the Troy City Council that a copy of this resolution 
is PROVIDED to our state legislators and the Governor’s office. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-09-428 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Lambert   
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution opposing Senate Bill 528 be AMENDED by INSERTING 
“WHICH SHALL include a roll call vote of Troy City Council” in the final “NOW, THEREFORE, 
BE IT RESOLVED” AFTER, “a copy of this resolution”. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-09-429 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution opposing Senate Bill 528 be AMENDED by STRIKING, “That 
the Troy City Council requests the legislative bodies to OPPOSE SB 528 as it prevents local 
governments from providing any telecommunication services to citizens; including cable, high-
speed internet (broadband) and wireless communications” and INSERTING, “That the Troy City 
Council REQUESTS the legislative bodies to OPPOSE SB 528 in its present form.” 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-09-430 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, President Bush has established a priority for universal affordable access to 
broadband technology by 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, Legislation has also been filed by Senators John McCain (Arizona) and Frank 
Lautenburg (New Jersey), entitled the “Community Broadband Act of 2005”, that would protect 
a city’s right to explore the option of providing municipal broadband;   
 
WHEREAS, For local governments, reliable high-speed internet (broadband) service attracts 
businesses, spurs economic development and supports urban renewal;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 19 - 

WHEREAS, Historically, government involvement has often been necessary to provide 
essential services to our citizens – from rural power to public libraries.  In today’s global market, 
internet (broadband) access is an essential service, and municipalities have the obligation to 
make sure that all citizens and businesses have equal access to this service;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan local governments already have specific restrictions and a well thought 
out statutory law (Metro Act) that regulates local government involvement in 
telecommunications services;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan now has the worst unemployment rate in the country and internet 
(broadband) access is a vital economic development tool and is essential for Michigan to 
successfully attract new jobs and transitioning from a manufacturing-based to a technology-
based economy;  
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County has initiated a countywide project with private partners to develop 
a multi-tiered wireless broadband service to attract business, spur economic development and 
provide efficient and effective service for all residents and visitors of the county. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUESTS the legislative 
bodies to OPPOSE SB 528 in its present form; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the Troy City Council that a copy of this resolution, 
which SHALL INCLUDE a roll call vote of Troy City Council, is PROVIDED to our state 
legislators and the Governor’s office. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
No: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-9 Section 23 – Pavement Replacement Project – Change Order No. 2, Contract 05-02 
 
Resolution #2005-09-431 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Change Order No. 2 in the amount of $413,223.15 with Florence Pavement 
Providers for the Section 23 Pavement Replacement Project in Raintree Village No. 1 is hereby 
APPROVED.  The change order in effect RATIFIES the work already done and AUTHORIZES 
the completion of the project, the balance of which is $685,401.83; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That if additional work is required such additional work is 
AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the amount of Change Order No. 2. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 20 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2256 Garry – September 19, 2005 
b) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2002 Atlas – September 19, 2005  
c) Parking Variance – 4550 Investment Drive – September 19, 2005  
d) Rezoning Application – Cambridge Square Office Buildings, West Side of Dequindre, 

North of Long Lake, Section 12 – R-1C to O-1 and E-P (Z 707) – September 19, 2005 
Noted and Filed 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  Councilwoman Broomfield has requested a resolution advising the Planning 
Commission to make a recommendation to City Council regarding child daycare 
group homes. This recommendation would be advanced by the Planning 
Commission after conclusion of their public hearing which is going to be held on 
September 27, 2005.  Please refer to the attached memorandum from the City 
Manager for further information.   

 
Resolution #2005-09-432 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission is ADVISED TO ADVANCE a recommendation to 
the Troy City Council regarding child daycare group homes in the R-1A through R-1E zoning 
classifications; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission’s recommendation IS 
EXPECTED to be formulated after conclusion of the public hearing on this matter at the 
Planning Commission meeting of September 27, 2005 
 
Yes: All-7  

H-2  Council Member Howrylak has requested that City Council set a public hearing to 
consider geographically modifying the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) 
district. Please know that statutory procedure requires the governing body to 
make a determination that an amendment to the district is in the best interest of 
the public. Attached is a staff memo indicating minimum statutory timeframes 
required to modify the DDA district. 

 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 21 - 

WHEREAS, Troy City Council FINDS it is in the best interest of the public to MODIFY the 
boundaries of the Troy Downtown Development Authority (DDA) district in order to exclude 
residential property and to ensure the adequate General Fund revenue for the operations of the 
City of Troy. 
  
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SETS a public hearing to 
AMEND the boundaries of the Troy Downtown Development Authority (DDA) for Monday, 
October 24, 2005 at 7:30 PM at Troy City Hall – 500 W. Big Beaver-Troy, Michigan 48084; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the boundaries of the current Troy Downtown Development 
Authority (DDA) district BE INCLUDED by reference in this resolution and BE INCLUDED in 
the necessary postings at a minimum of 20 locations located in the Troy Downtown 
Development Authority (DDA) district. 
 
Proposed Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING, “BE IT FURTHER 
RESOLVED, That in the interim, expert legal and financial assistance be provided in order that 
the necessary information is available to provide for the feasibility of modifying the Troy 
Downtown Development Authority (DDA) boundaries.” 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Amendment 
 
Resolution #2005-09-433 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to Amend be AMENDED by STRIKING, “That in the interim,” 
and by STRIKING, “be provided in order that the necessary information is available” and by 
INSERTING, “That the City of Troy EMPLOY” BEFORE “expert” and by INSERTING 
“information” AFTER “provide”. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Amendment as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-09-434 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING, “BE IT FURTHER 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy EMPLOY expert legal and financial assistance to provide 
information for the feasibility of modifying the Troy Downtown Development Authority (DDA) 
boundaries.” 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 22 - 

Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend  
 
Resolution #2005-09-435 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING, “BE IT FURTHER 
RESOLVED, That the any or all of the portion of the Monarch boundaries currently within the 
Troy Downtown Development Authority (DDA) district which are to be removed be specifically 
referenced” BEFORE the last “BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED”. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-09-436 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council FINDS it is in the best interest of the public to MODIFY the 
boundaries of the Troy Downtown Development Authority (DDA) district in order to exclude 
residential property and to ensure the adequate General Fund revenue for the operations of the 
City of Troy. 
  
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SETS a public hearing to 
AMEND the boundaries of the Troy Downtown Development Authority (DDA) for Monday, 
October 24, 2005 at 7:30 PM at Troy City Hall – 500 W. Big Beaver-Troy, Michigan 48084; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the boundaries of the current Troy Downtown Development 
Authority (DDA) district BE INCLUDED by reference in this resolution and BE INCLUDED in 
the necessary postings at a minimum of 20 locations located in the Troy Downtown 
Development Authority (DDA) district as follows: 
 
Property lying on either side of Big Beaver Road between Golfview on the west and Fire Station 
#1 on the east and south to I-75 and Rochester Road and including the following sidwells: 
 
19-430-002; 19-453-005; 19-453-008 thru 010; 19-476-001; 20-351-002; 20-376-001 thru 005; 
20-401-024; 20-402-036; 20-402-041 thru 043; 20-476-012; 20-476-030 and 031; 20-476-036; 
20-476-039; 20-476-043; 20-476-046 and 047; 20-476-049 thru 053; 21-304-024; 21-326-005; 
21-327-001; 21-351-009; 21-351-011 and 012; 21-401-001 and 002; 21-476-015; 21-476-018 
and 019; 22-355-025; 22-356-012 thru 014; 22-357-013 thru 015; 22-358-015 and 016; 22-358-
019; 22-379-021; 22-379-023; 22-380-026; 22-380-028; 22-380-033; 22-383-001 thru 005; 22-
477-019 and 020; 22-477-038  thru 040; 22-477-043; 22-477-047 and 048; 22-477-052 thru 
054; 22-478-007; 23-354-015 thru 021; 23-354-023 thru 026; 26-101-001 thru 008; 26-102-001 
thru 006; 26-102-013; 27-101-058; 27-101-060 and 061; 27-101-065; 27-102-026 and 027; 27-
201-008 thru 018; 27-201-022; 27-201-040 and 041; 27-210-048 thru 050; 27-226-018 thru 021; 
27-226-025; 27-227-010 and 011; 27-228-009 thru 011; 27-228 017 and 018; 27-277-017; 28-



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 23 - 

101-018 thru 021; 28-101-032; 28 101-034; 28-101-038 and 039; 28-101-047; 28-101-050 thru 
052; 28-201-006 thru 009; 28-203-009 and 010; 28-203-030; 28-203-032; 28-203-034 and 035; 
28-204-001 thru 004; 28-204-007 and 008; 28-226-015 and 016; 28-226-033 thru 035; 28-227-
007; 28-251-007 thru 013; 28-251-037 thru 039; 28-252-016 thru 018; 28-276-044 thru 049; 28-
277-008; 28-430-017; 29-101-004; 29-101-006; 29-101-008 and 009; 29-127-020; 29-127-023 
and 024; 29-201-001; 29-201-015 and 016; 29-201-019; 29-201-021 and 022; 29-226-002 thru 
005; 29-226-016; 29-226-043; 29-226-046 thru 070; 29-226-073 thru 075; 29-277-026; 30-202-
004 and 005; 30-226-001; 30-226-008 thru 010; and 30-228-001 and 002; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the portion of the Monarch project boundaries currently 
within the Troy Downtown Development Authority (DDA) district which are to be removed be 
specifically referenced [Lot 93 and Lots 90, 91, and 92 except the south 42 feet thereof, Muer’s 
Garden Farms Subdivision, a subdivision, as recorded in Liber 15, page 45 of plats, Oakland 
County Records (Sidwell #88-20-20-402-036; Sidwell #88-20-20-402-048; Sidwell #88-20-20-
402-042; and Sidwell #88-20-20-402-047)]; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy EMPLOY expert legal and financial 
assistance to provide information for the feasibility of modifying the Troy Downtown 
Development Authority (DDA) boundaries. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26 – 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM 
 
Resolution #2005-09-437 
Moved by Stine    
Seconded by Howrylak   
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26  - 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM and AUTHORIZE City Council to 
EXTEND the adjournment time to 12:30 AM. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26 – 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM 
 
Resolution #2005-09- 
Moved by Beltramini     
Seconded by Howrylak   
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26  - 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM and AUTHORIZE City Council to 
EXTEND the adjournment time to 12:45 AM. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 24 - 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Troy Youth Council/Final – May 18, 2005  
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – June 1, 2005 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – June 1, 2005 
d) Planning Commission Regular/Final – July 12, 2005 
e) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – July 13, 2005 
f) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – July 19, 2005   
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – July 19, 2005 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 26, 2005 
i) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – August 2, 2005   
j) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – August 2, 2005   
k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – August 2, 2005 
l) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – August 3, 2005   
m) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – August 16, 2005 
n) Troy CAC Advisory Committee/Draft – August 18, 2005   
o) Troy Youth Council/Draft – August 24, 2005  

Noted and Filed 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) The Report of the Twenty Fifth Annual Actuarial Valuation – December 31, 2004 of the 

City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters  
b) Preliminary Report from the Historic District Study Committee Concerning the Brian and 

Mary Jean Wattles Property 
c) Update on Futures Project, as well as Big Beaver Corridor Study  
d) Development of City of Troy Comprehensive Plan/Amendments to City of Troy Future 

Land Use Plan 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson from Cathy Killian, Thanking Troy Aquatic Center 

Staff – Jen Harvey, Michelle Harvey, Kevin Losey and Andy Gillett for Their Outstanding 
Efforts   

b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Julie Zenger Hain, Thanking Officer Broderick and 
Other Officers and Staff for Their Professionalism in Court  

c) Letter to Troy Police Department from Mothers and More, In Appreciation of the 
Presentation at Their Annual Family Picnic 

d) Letter of Thanks to Jay Reynolds from Lorri Konieczko-Jim Hadden of ARUP, In 
Appreciation of the Presentation on Identity Theft  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 25 - 

e) Letter of Thanks to John Szerlag from Tom Kafkes, In Appreciation of His Assistance 
with the Monarch Project   

f) Letter of Thanks to Cindy Stewart from Paula and Steve Brazel, Thanking Cindy for Her 
Presentation at the Home and Garden Awards   

g) Letter of Appreciation to Cindy Stewart from Roberta Beauchamp, Regarding Aldo and 
Orleta Cairo – Most Tranquil Garden Award   

h) Letter of Appreciation to Mayor Schilling from Marvin Danto of the Michigan Design 
Center, Regarding the Organized Repaving of Maple Road 

Noted and Filed 
    
J-4  Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
a) Resolution from the Oakland County Board of Commissioners – Support for Widening of 

I-75 in Oakland County  
Noted and Filed 

 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Notice of Rating Action for Troy DDA from Fitch Ratings 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-7  Notice of Rating Action for City of Troy from Fitch Ratings 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-8  Letter from James R. Stokes, Deputy Director of Governor’s Office for Southeast 

Michigan, Regarding the Resolution adopted by Troy City Council – Supporting 
the Legislative Correction of the WPW v. Troy Taxable Value Inequity 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-9   2005-2007 Economic Outlook Forecast for Oakland County – Final Report 

Attached as a Separate Item  
Noted and Filed 

 
J-10   Letter from Phoebe White Regarding Penalty on Tax Bill 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-11   Memorandum Regarding OPTECH Eagle IIIP Voting Devices and Supplies 
Noted and Filed 

 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 12, 2005 
 

- 26 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED on Tuesday, September 13, 2005 at 12:35 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 IN RECOGNITION OF  

CITIZENSHIP DAY AND CONSTITUTION WEEK 2005  
 

WHEREAS, We the People did ordain and establish a Constitution for the United States of 
America to secure the blessings of liberty for ourselves and our posterity; and 
 

WHEREAS, It is important that all citizens fully understand the provisions, principles and 
meaning of the Constitution so they can support, preserve and defend it against 
encroachment; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Bicentennial of the Constitution provides an historic opportunity for all 
Americans to learn about and to reflect upon the rights and privileges of citizenship and its 
responsibilities; and  
 

WHEREAS, The President and the Congress of the United States of America have 
designated September 17 as Citizenship Day, and the week of September 17–23 as 
Constitution Week; and 
 

WHEREAS, The people of the City of Troy do enjoy the blessings of liberty, the guarantees 
of the Bill of Rights, equal protection of the law under the Constitution, and the freedoms 
derived from it; and 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy, in 
cooperation with the Commission on the Bicentennial of the United States Constitution, do 
hereby proclaim September 17 as Citizenship Day and the week of September 17–23 as 
Constitution Week, and invite every citizen and institution to join the national 
commendation. 
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council of Troy, joins with the citizens of this 
community, to acknowledge and celebrate the magnificent document that acts as a guardian 
of our liberties and affords citizens their rights under a limited government in a Republic 
dedicated to rule by law. 
 
Signed this 19th day of September 2005. 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03d



September 8, 2005  
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Re: Agenda Item:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 and Informal 

Quote Process: Contract Award – Snow Removal Rental 
Equipment Including Operators 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Bid proposals were opened July 25, 2005, for seasonal requirements of snow 
removal rental equipment including operators with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional season.  These services are on a contract basis to supplement City 
forces during severe snowstorms.  City management recommends awarding the 
contract to the sole bidder, Sterling Topsoil & Grading, Inc. of Sterling Heights, 
MI, at unit prices listed below.  
 
In addition, subsequent to the bid opening, an informal quote process was 
conducted to obtain prices for the remaining necessary snow removal equipment 
without bid prices.  It is recommended that the City establish contracts with Rizzo 
Services of Warren and Casar Management of Warren, at the following unit 
prices -     

     Number of   Hourly  
       Units       Rate/Unit 
Sterling Topsoil & Grading 

Front End Loader – 5 yd capacity     4   $140.00 
         - 3 yd capacity    1   $130.00 

Road Grader – 20,000 GVW (secondary)   1   $150.00 
 
Rizzo Services 

Front End Loader – 4 yd capacity    5   $175.00 
Pickup with minimum 8 ft blade      5   $  85.00 
Road Grader – 20,000 GVW (primary)    1   $125.00  
Truck with 10 ft snowplow     5   $110.00 

 
Casar Management 

Front End Loader – 10 yd capacity    1   $225.00 
       -  2 yd capacity    3   $130.00 

Pickup with minimum 8 ft blade   10   $  85.00 
 
PRIMARY / SECONDARY SUPPLIER 
Due to equipment problems experienced last season with the road grader 
equipment provided by sole bidder Sterling Topsoil & Grading, it was deemed in 
the best interest of the City that a primary and secondary supplier be named for 
this item.  Therefore, the road grader item was added to the informal quote 
process and awarded accordingly. 
 

 
 

1 of 2 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



September 8, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Contract Award – Snow Removal Rental Equipment 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
Many companies do not bid on the snow removal service due to the variability of 
weather, the economy and fluctuating equipment availability.  However, snow 
emergencies often require hiring additional companies to assist in the snow 
removal effort.  While any one specific company may not be available, others 
are, and we have hired them based upon the emergency provision powers of the 
City Manager.  Pre-approval to extend contract prices to other contractors, after 
the successful bidders have been employed, could speed the snow removal 
process.  It is our recommendation that the contract be extended to other 
contractors, on an as needed basis, and impose the awarded hourly rates to 
these contractors at the time of a snow emergency. 

 
SUMMARY 
Brooks and Rizzo who have provided seasonal snow removal services in the 
past were contacted to discuss their reasons for not participating in the formal bid 
process.  Brooks indicated that they intended to participate but missed the 
deadline.  Other vendors contacted indicated that travel times were too long 
and/or they were not adding to their existing customer base. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the operating budgets of the Streets Division for snow and 
ice control for local, major and county roads. 
 
 
93 Vendors Notified via MITN System 
57 JDE Vendors Mailed Notices 
  1 Bid Response Rec’d 
  2 Informal Quotes Rec’d 
  1 No Bid 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Emily Frontera, Public Works Administrative Aide 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-33
Opening Date -- 07-25-05 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 8/25/05 SNOW REMOVAL RENTAL EQUIPMENT

VENDOR NAME: * STERLING
TOPSOIL &

GRADING INC

PROPOSAL: SNOW REMOVAL RENTAL EQUIPMENT INCLUDING OPERATORS
HOURLY HOURLY HOURLY HOURLY

ITEM NO. OF PIECES OF EQUIPMENT AVAILABLE RATE RATE RATE RATE
1. FRONT END LOADER: MINIMUM SIZE 3 YDS*

5 YD CAPACITY (4) 140.00$         
3 YD CAPACITY (1) 130.00$         
OTHER SIZE: 10 YARD

  4 YARD

PICKUP WITH MINIMUM*
8 FT BLADE BLANK
(to assist loaders in clean up only)

2. ROAD GRADER: MINIMUM SIZE - 6 WHEEL*
20,000 GVW (1) 150.00$         
OTHER SIZE

3. TRUCK WITH 10FT SNOW PLOW* BLANK

*Rates quoted shall include all costs: Fuel, Insurance, Operators,
   Travel time expenses, etc. 

INSURANCE:
CAN MEET XX
CANNOT MEET

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hours of Operation 7AM-6PM
24 Hr Emergency Phone  Yes or No (586)264-3000

(586)354-8427
TERMS: NET 30 DAYS

WARRANTY: BLANK

DELIVERY DATE: ON CALL

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes or No YES

NO BID: PROPOSAL: Seasonal Requirements of Snow Removal Rental Equipment
 Troy Clogg Landscape Assoc Including Operators with an Option to Renew for One (1)

Additional Season
ATTEST:
 Emily Frontera * DENOTES SOLE BIDDER
 Charlene McComb
 Tom Rosewarne ___________________________
 Linda Bockstanz Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director
G:\SnowRemovalRentalEquipITB-COT 05-33



















campbellld
Text Box
E-05













campbellld
Text Box
E-06













campbellld
Text Box
E-07



































campbellld
Text Box
F-02







 1

DATE: September 13, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 

 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – FINAL SITE CONDOMINIUM REVIEW – 

Chesapeake Grove Site Condominium, north side of Square Lake 
Road, east of John R, Section 1 – R-1D 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On January 10, 2005, City Council granted preliminary approval of the proposed 
27-unit site condominium.  The applicant has revised the application and now 
proposes a 26-unit site condominium.  
 
The Engineering Department granted approval of the engineering plans based 
upon the City’s Development Standards; therefore, the development will not 
cause or exacerbate drainage problems on contiguous properties, due to surface 
run-off from the proposed development.  In addition, the petitioner executed a 
contract for installation of municipal improvements and provided the required 
escrow deposits and cash fees.  The proposed site condominium complies with 
all applicable ordinance requirements.  The applicant has received a permit from 
the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) to fill in State-
regulated wetlands on the property.  City Management recommends approval of 
the Final Plan for Chesapeake Grove Site Condominium. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Joseph Maniaci of Mondrian Properties Chesapeake 
Grove Development LLC. 
 
Location of subject property: 
The property is located on the north side of Square Lake Road, east of John R, in 
section 1. 
 
Size of subject parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 8.03 acres in area. 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



 2

Description of proposed development: 
The applicant is proposing a 26-unit site condominium.  The development will 
have two points of ingress/egress, with connections to Square Lake Road and 
Dryden Road.   
 
Current use of subject property: 
Two single family homes presently sits on the property. 
 
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: Single family residential.   
South: Single family residential. 
East: Troy School District Nature Preserve.  
West: Single family residential. 
 
Current zoning classification: 
The property is currently zoned R-1D One Family Residential. 
 
Zoning classification of adjacent parcels:  
North: R-1D One Family Residential. 
South: R-1D One Family Residential. 
East: R-1D One Family Residential. 
West: R-1D One Family Residential. 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The property is designated on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Density 
Residential. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements: 
 
Lot Area: The minimum required lot area is 8,500 square feet.  The applicant is 
utilizing the lot averaging option that permits a 10% reduction in lot area to 7,650 
square feet, provided the lots average at least 8,500 square feet in area. 
 
Lot Width:  The minimum required lot width is 75 feet.  The applicant has utilized 
the lot averaging option, which permits a 10% reduction in lot widths to 67.5 feet.  
 
Height:  2 stories or 25 feet. 
 
Setbacks: Front:  25 feet. 
  Side (least one):  8 feet. 
  Side (total two):  20 feet.  
  Rear:  40 feet. 



 3

Minimum Floor Area:  1,000 square feet. 
 
Maximum Lot Coverage:  30%. 
 
The applicant meets the area and bulk requirements of the R-1D One Family 
Residential District. 
 
Off-street parking and loading requirements:  
The applicant will be required to provide 2 off-street parking spaces per unit. 
 
Environmental provisions, including Tree Preservation Plan: 
A Tree Preservation Plan was submitted as part of the application.  A wetlands 
determination was prepared by King & MacGregor on November 5, 2004.  The 
report identifies four separate small wetlands on the property.  The wetlands 
range in size from 0.05 acres to 0.22 acres and total 0.54 acres.  The report 
indicates that wetland A and B are likely state-regulated as they appear to be 
contiguous to Plum Brook.  The applicant has received a permit from the MDEQ 
to fill the wetland (Permit No. 05-63-0012).   
 
Stormwater detention: 
The applicant is proposing to utilize the existing detention basin located in 
Square Lake Subdivision to the west. 
 
Natural features and floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are wetlands and woodlands located 
on the property. 
 
Subdivision Control Ordinance, Article IV Design Standards  
 

Blocks: A double-loaded street is proposed. 
 
Lots: The applicant proposes 26 site condominium units. 
 
Topographic Conditions: The parcel is relatively flat.  There are three 
small pockets of wetlands located on the site.   
 
Streets: The applicant is proposing a 28-foot wide paved street within a 
60-foot wide public right-of-way.  The street will connect to both Square 
Lake Road and Dryden Road. 

 
Sidewalks: The applicant proposes an 8-foot wide sidewalk along Square 
Lake Road and a 5-foot wide sidewalk on both sides of the street. 

 
Utilities: The parcel is served by public water and sewer. 

 



 4

Attachments: 
1. Maps 
2. Unplatted Residential Development Levels of Approval 
3. Comparison Between Site Condominiums and Plats 
4. City Council Minutes from January 10, 2005 
5. Contract for Installation of Municipal Services 
6. MDEQ Permit No. 05-63-0012 

 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM/PPB 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Chesapeake Grove Site Condominium 

 
 

G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Chesapeake Grove Site Condo\Chesepeake Grove Site Condo CC Final Approval 
09 19 05.doc 





brattopp
Polygon



brattopp
Polygon





UNPLATTED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT LEVELS OF APPROVAL 
 

Preliminary Plan Approval  
A sign is placed on the property informing the public of the proposed development. 
Adjacent property owners are notified by mail 
Public meeting held by Planning Commission for review and recommendation to City Council 
City Council reviews and approvals plan 
 
The following items are addressed at Preliminary Plan Approval: 

• Street Pattern, including potential stub streets for future development 
• Potential development pattern for adjacent properties 
• Fully dimensioned residential parcel layout, including proposed building configurations 

o Number of lots 
o Building setbacks 
o Lot dimensions 
o Locations of easements 

• Preliminary sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water main layout 
• Environmental Impact Statement (if required) 
• Location(s) of wetlands on the property 
 

Final Plan Approval 
Notice sign is posted on site 
City Council review and approval of: 

• Final Plan 
• Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) 
 

The following items are addressed at Final Plan Approval: 
• Fully dimensioned plans of the total property proposed for development, prepared by 

registered Civil Engineer or Land Surveyor 
• Corners of all proposed residential parcels and other points as necessary to determine 

that the potential parcels and building configurations will conform with ordinance 
requirements 

• Warranty Deeds and Easement documents, in recordable form for all ROW. and 
easements which are to be conveyed to the public 

• Construction plans for all utilities and street improvements, prepared in accordance 
with City Engineering Design Standards: 

o Sanitary and Storm sewer 
o Water mains 
o Detention / Retention basins 
o Grading and rear yard drainage 
o Paving and widening lanes 
o Sidewalk and driveway approaches 

• Approval from other government agencies involved with the development 
• Verification of wetlands and M.D.E.Q. permit if necessary 
• Financial guarantees to insure the construction of required improvements and the 

placement of proper property and parcel monuments and markers shall be furnished 
by the petitioner prior to submittal of the Final Plan to the City Council for review and 
approval 

• Floor Plans and Elevations of the proposed residential units 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

 
COMPARISON BETWEEN SITE CONDOMINIUMS AND PLATS   

 
The site condominium is a form of development that closely resembles the more 
traditional form of land subdivision known as a “subdivision” or a “plat”.  Although both 
types of development have the same basic characteristics, site condominiums are a 
newer form of development and are not, therefore, as familiar to homebuyers and 
neighbors as the more customary plats.  An important concept related to any type of 
condominium development is that condominiums are a form of OWNERSHIP, not a type 
of physical development. 
 
The following summary is intended to compare and contrast the two types of 
development. 
 

1. Comparisons between site condominiums and plats. 
 

a. Statutory Basis – Site condominium subdivisions first became possible 
under the Michigan Condominium Act, which was adopted by the Michigan 
Legislature in 1978.  Plats are created under the Michigan Land Division 
Act, formerly the Michigan Subdivision Control Act of 1967. 

 
b. Nature and Extent of Property Ownership – An individual homesite 

building in a platted subdivision is called a “lot”.  In a site condominium, 
each separate building site or homesite is referred to by the Condominium 
Act as a “unit”.  Each unit is surrounded by “limited common area”, which is 
defined as common elements reserved in the master deed for the exclusive 
use of less than all of the co-owners”.  The remaining area in the site 
condominium is “general common area”, defined as the common elements 
reserved in the master deed for the use of all of the co-owners.  The nature 
and extent of ownership of a platted lot and a condominium unit, with the 
associated limited common area, are essentially equivalent from both a 
practical and legal standpoint. 

 
c. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance – Both site condominiums and 

subdivisions are required to comply with the minimum requirements of the 
City of Troy Zoning Ordinance for area and bulk, including minimum lot 
size, lot width, setbacks and building height.  Essentially, site 
condominiums and subdivisions in Troy must “look” similar.   

 
d. Creation/Legal Document – A site condominium is established by 

recording in the records of the county in which the land is located a master 
deed, bylaws and condominium subdivision plan (“plan”).  A platted 
subdivision is created by the recording of a subdivision plat (“plat”), usually 
coupled with a declaration of easements, covenants, conditions and 
restrictions   The plan depicts the condominium units and limited and 
general common areas, while the plat defines the lots.  Both have 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

substantially the same geometrical appearance and characteristics.  The 
master deed and bylaws on the one hand and the declaration on the other 
have essentially the same functions with respect to the site condominium or 
platted subdivision, namely, establishment of:  (i) building and use 
restrictions; (ii) rights of homeowners to use common areas; (iii) financial 
obligations of owners; and, (iv) procedures for operation of the subdivision. 

 
e. Home Maintenance and Real Estate Taxes – Each unit and lot, as 

respectively depicted on a condominium plan or subdivision plat, together 
with any home located thereon, are required to be individually maintained 
by the owner.  Likewise, separate real estate taxes are assessed on each 
condominium unit or platted lot and paid individually by each homeowner. 

 
f. Roads and Utilities – In most plats, roads are dedicated to the public and 

maintained by the county road commission or the municipality in which the 
subdivision is located.  Site condominium roads can be either public or 
private.  Sanitary sewer and water supply are public in both.  Storm water 
detention can vary between public and private dedication in both platted 
and condominium subdivisions.   

 
g. Common Areas – In a site condominium, general common areas, such as 

open space, entrance areas and storm drainage system, are owned by 
condominium unit owners in common as an incident of ownership of each 
unit.  In a platted subdivision, legal title to common areas is owned by a 
homeowners association.  In both forms of development, a homeowners 
association administers the common areas for the benefit of all 
homeowners equally. 

 
h. Homeowners Association – It is important in both types of development 

to incorporate a homeowners association comprised of all lot owners or unit 
owners, as the case may be, to maintain common areas, enforce 
restrictions and regulations, collect assessments and otherwise administer 
the common affairs of the development.  Because the Condominium Act 
confers special enforcement powers upon homeowner associations, which 
are not characteristic of platted subdivision associations, it is generally 
thought that the condominium form is superior from the standpoint of 
enforcing rules and regulations of the private community. 

 
i. Financial Obligations of Homeowners – In both types of development, 

the homeowners association is given the power to assess property owners 
to pay for maintenance of all common areas and other expenses of 
administration.  Failure to pay give rise to a lien on the defaulting owner’s 
homesite thus providing financial security that the common areas will be 
properly maintained for the benefit of all homeowners. 

 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

j. Public Relations – The same types of public health, safety and welfare 
regulations apply to both forms of development.  Procedurally, the methods 
of applying for and obtaining plat or condominium plan approval are similar 
at the municipal level. 

 
k. Unique Characteristics of Condominium Unit Purchase – The 

Condominium Act provides special benefits for site condominium unit 
purchasers:  (i) a 9-day period after signing a purchase agreement within 
which a purchaser may withdraw without penalty; and (ii) a requirement that 
all condominium documents, supplemented by an explanatory disclosure 
statement, be furnished to all purchasers at the time of entry into a 
purchase agreement.  There are no similar benefits to purchasers provided 
under the Land Division Act. 

 
l. Local and State Review – Both development types require City Council 

approval, following a recommendation by the Planning Commission.  Unlike 
subdivisions, site condominiums do not require the review and approval of 
the Michigan Department of Consumer and Industry Services. For this 
reason it can sometimes take a substantially shorter period of time to obtain 
necessary public approvals of site condominiums than platted subdivisions.   

 
2. Reason for choosing one form versus another. 

 
Developers and municipalities often prefer the site condominium approach 
because of better control of market timing.  It should be emphasized that the 
site condominium choice never sacrifices any public protections that would 
otherwise be present in the case of a platted subdivision under similar 
circumstances. 

 
3. Conclusion. 

 
The platted subdivision approach and the newer site condominium technique 
are two different statutory methods of reaching essentially the same practical 
and legal result of dividing real estate into separate residential building sites.  
Both methods are required to meet substantially the same public health, safety 
and welfare requirements.  The site condominium is sometimes chosen over 
the platted subdivisions because of perceived benefits to purchasers, 
homeowners, and developers. 

 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Comparison of Site Condos and Plats.doc 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final January 10, 2005 

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final January 10, 2005 

F-4 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Chesapeake Grove Site 
Condominium, North Side of Square Lake Road, East of John R, Section 1- 
R-1D 

 
Resolution #2005-01-030 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the 
Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the 
development of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium known as Chesapeake 
Grove Site Condominium, and as recommended for approval by City Management and 
the Planning Commission, located on the north side of Square Lake Road, east of John 
R, in Section 1, including 27 home sites, within the R-1D zoning district, being 8.03 
acres in size, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: None 
Absent: Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

























 1

September 13, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM - FINAL SITE CONDOMINIUM REVIEW – Proposed 

Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium, 12 units/lots proposed, South side of 
Wattles, West of Fernleigh, Section 24 – R-1C 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On August 30, 2004, City Council granted preliminary approval of the proposed 11-unit 
site condominium.  The petitioner has increased the number of units to 12, without 
expanding the size of the project area, and all units still meet applicable ordinance 
requirements.  
 
The Engineering Department granted approval of the engineering plans based upon the 
City’s Development Standards; therefore, the development will not cause or exacerbate 
drainage problems on contiguous properties, due to surface run-off from the proposed 
development.  In addition, the petitioner executed a contract for installation of municipal 
improvements and provided the required escrow deposits and cash fees.  The proposed 
site condominium meets all applicable Zoning Ordinance requirements.  City 
Management recommends approval of the Final Plan for Timbercrest Site 
Condominium. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner/applicant is MP Stonehaven Development LLC. 
 
Location of subject property: 
The property is located on the south side of Wattles, west of Fernleigh, in Section 24. 
 
Size of subject parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 4 acres in area. 
 
Description of proposed development: 
The applicant is proposing to develop a 12-unit site condominium.  

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



 2

Current use of subject property: 
A single family residence presently sits on the parcel.  
 
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
South: Single family residential. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Single family residential. 
 
Current zoning classification: 
The property is currently zoned R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Zoning classification of adjacent parcels:  
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
South: R-1C One Family Residential. 
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The property is designated on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Density Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements: 
Lot Area:  10,500 square feet is required.  The application meets this requirement.  
 
Lot Width:  85 feet.  The application meets this requirement.  
 
Height:  2 stories or 25 feet.  The application will be required to meet this requirement.  
 
Setbacks: Front:  30 feet.  The application meets this requirement.  
  Side (least one):  10 feet.  The application meets this requirement.  
  Side (total two):  20 feet.  The application meets this requirement.  
  Rear:  40 feet.  The application meets this requirement.  
 
Minimum Floor Area:  1,200 square feet.  The application will be required to meet this 
requirement.  
 
Maximum Lot Coverage: 30%.  The application will be required to meet this 
requirement.  
 
The applicant meets the area and bulk requirements of the R-1C One Family 
Residential District. 
 
Off-street parking and loading requirements:  
The applicant will be required to provide 2 off-street parking spaces per unit. 



 3

Environmental provisions, including Tree Preservation Plan: 
A Tree Preservation Plan was submitted and approved.  
 
Stormwater detention: 
The applicant is proposing to construct a detention basin in the northwest corner of the 
property, just north of Unit 12. 
 
Natural features and floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Subdivision Control Ordinance, Article IV Design Standards  
 

Blocks:  The applicant is proposing a simple street layout that will stub at the 
southern property line.  
 
Lots:  There are 12 lots proposed for the development. 
 
Topographic Conditions:  The topography is relatively flat, with some trees on the 
property.  The wetland report completed by King & MacGregor Environmental 
Inc. on May 13, 2004 states that there are six separate wetland areas (non-
regulated) ranging in size from 700 to 10,000 square feet.  The total area of 
wetland is estimated to be approximately 16,000 square feet. 
 
Streets:  The applicant is proposing a 28-foot wide street within a 60-foot wide 
right-of-way.  The street will be stubbed at the southern property line. 

 
Sidewalks:  The applicant is proposing a 5-foot wide sidewalk along both sides of 
the proposed street and an 8-foot wide sidewalk on the south side of Wattles 
Road. 

 
Utilities:  The property will be served with public water and sewer. 

 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Unplatted Residential Development Levels of Approval 
3. Comparison Between Site Condominiums and Plats 
4. City Council Minutes from August 30, 2004 
5. Contract for Installation of Municipal Services 
6. Letter of opposition 

 
PREPARED BY RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium 

 
 

G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Timbercrest Estates Site Condo Sec 24\Timbercrest Estates CC Final Approval.doc 





2004 timbercrest estates sc.dgn  8/18/2004 11:43:45 AM







UNPLATTED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT LEVELS OF APPROVAL 
 

Preliminary Plan Approval  
A sign is placed on the property informing the public of the proposed development. 
Adjacent property owners are notified by mail 
Public meeting held by Planning Commission for review and recommendation to City Council 
City Council reviews and approvals plan 
 
The following items are addressed at Preliminary Plan Approval: 

• Street Pattern, including potential stub streets for future development 
• Potential development pattern for adjacent properties 
• Fully dimensioned residential parcel layout, including proposed building configurations 

o Number of lots 
o Building setbacks 
o Lot dimensions 
o Locations of easements 

• Preliminary sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water main layout 
• Environmental Impact Statement (if required) 
• Location(s) of wetlands on the property 
 

Final Plan Approval 
Notice sign is posted on site 
City Council review and approval of: 

• Final Plan 
• Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) 
 

The following items are addressed at Final Plan Approval: 
• Fully dimensioned plans of the total property proposed for development, prepared by 

registered Civil Engineer or Land Surveyor 
• Corners of all proposed residential parcels and other points as necessary to determine 

that the potential parcels and building configurations will conform with ordinance 
requirements 

• Warranty Deeds and Easement documents, in recordable form for all ROW. and 
easements which are to be conveyed to the public 

• Construction plans for all utilities and street improvements, prepared in accordance 
with City Engineering Design Standards: 

o Sanitary and Storm sewer 
o Water mains 
o Detention / Retention basins 
o Grading and rear yard drainage 
o Paving and widening lanes 
o Sidewalk and driveway approaches 

• Approval from other government agencies involved with the development 
• Verification of wetlands and M.D.E.Q. permit if necessary 
• Financial guarantees to insure the construction of required improvements and the 

placement of proper property and parcel monuments and markers shall be furnished 
by the petitioner prior to submittal of the Final Plan to the City Council for review and 
approval 

• Floor Plans and Elevations of the proposed residential units 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

 
COMPARISON BETWEEN SITE CONDOMINIUMS AND PLATS   

 
The site condominium is a form of development that closely resembles the more 
traditional form of land subdivision known as a “subdivision” or a “plat”.  Although both 
types of development have the same basic characteristics, site condominiums are a 
newer form of development and are not, therefore, as familiar to homebuyers and 
neighbors as the more customary plats.  An important concept related to any type of 
condominium development is that condominiums are a form of OWNERSHIP, not a type 
of physical development. 
 
The following summary is intended to compare and contrast the two types of 
development. 
 

1. Comparisons between site condominiums and plats. 
 

a. Statutory Basis – Site condominium subdivisions first became possible 
under the Michigan Condominium Act, which was adopted by the Michigan 
Legislature in 1978.  Plats are created under the Michigan Land Division 
Act, formerly the Michigan Subdivision Control Act of 1967. 

 
b. Nature and Extent of Property Ownership – An individual homesite 

building in a platted subdivision is called a “lot”.  In a site condominium, 
each separate building site or homesite is referred to by the Condominium 
Act as a “unit”.  Each unit is surrounded by “limited common area”, which is 
defined as common elements reserved in the master deed for the exclusive 
use of less than all of the co-owners”.  The remaining area in the site 
condominium is “general common area”, defined as the common elements 
reserved in the master deed for the use of all of the co-owners.  The nature 
and extent of ownership of a platted lot and a condominium unit, with the 
associated limited common area, are essentially equivalent from both a 
practical and legal standpoint. 

 
c. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance – Both site condominiums and 

subdivisions are required to comply with the minimum requirements of the 
City of Troy Zoning Ordinance for area and bulk, including minimum lot 
size, lot width, setbacks and building height.  Essentially, site 
condominiums and subdivisions in Troy must “look” similar.   

 
d. Creation/Legal Document – A site condominium is established by 

recording in the records of the county in which the land is located a master 
deed, bylaws and condominium subdivision plan (“plan”).  A platted 
subdivision is created by the recording of a subdivision plat (“plat”), usually 
coupled with a declaration of easements, covenants, conditions and 
restrictions   The plan depicts the condominium units and limited and 
general common areas, while the plat defines the lots.  Both have 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

substantially the same geometrical appearance and characteristics.  The 
master deed and bylaws on the one hand and the declaration on the other 
have essentially the same functions with respect to the site condominium or 
platted subdivision, namely, establishment of:  (i) building and use 
restrictions; (ii) rights of homeowners to use common areas; (iii) financial 
obligations of owners; and, (iv) procedures for operation of the subdivision. 

 
e. Home Maintenance and Real Estate Taxes – Each unit and lot, as 

respectively depicted on a condominium plan or subdivision plat, together 
with any home located thereon, are required to be individually maintained 
by the owner.  Likewise, separate real estate taxes are assessed on each 
condominium unit or platted lot and paid individually by each homeowner. 

 
f. Roads and Utilities – In most plats, roads are dedicated to the public and 

maintained by the county road commission or the municipality in which the 
subdivision is located.  Site condominium roads can be either public or 
private.  Sanitary sewer and water supply are public in both.  Storm water 
detention can vary between public and private dedication in both platted 
and condominium subdivisions.   

 
g. Common Areas – In a site condominium, general common areas, such as 

open space, entrance areas and storm drainage system, are owned by 
condominium unit owners in common as an incident of ownership of each 
unit.  In a platted subdivision, legal title to common areas is owned by a 
homeowners association.  In both forms of development, a homeowners 
association administers the common areas for the benefit of all 
homeowners equally. 

 
h. Homeowners Association – It is important in both types of development 

to incorporate a homeowners association comprised of all lot owners or unit 
owners, as the case may be, to maintain common areas, enforce 
restrictions and regulations, collect assessments and otherwise administer 
the common affairs of the development.  Because the Condominium Act 
confers special enforcement powers upon homeowner associations, which 
are not characteristic of platted subdivision associations, it is generally 
thought that the condominium form is superior from the standpoint of 
enforcing rules and regulations of the private community. 

 
i. Financial Obligations of Homeowners – In both types of development, 

the homeowners association is given the power to assess property owners 
to pay for maintenance of all common areas and other expenses of 
administration.  Failure to pay give rise to a lien on the defaulting owner’s 
homesite thus providing financial security that the common areas will be 
properly maintained for the benefit of all homeowners. 

 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

j. Public Relations – The same types of public health, safety and welfare 
regulations apply to both forms of development.  Procedurally, the methods 
of applying for and obtaining plat or condominium plan approval are similar 
at the municipal level. 

 
k. Unique Characteristics of Condominium Unit Purchase – The 

Condominium Act provides special benefits for site condominium unit 
purchasers:  (i) a 9-day period after signing a purchase agreement within 
which a purchaser may withdraw without penalty; and (ii) a requirement that 
all condominium documents, supplemented by an explanatory disclosure 
statement, be furnished to all purchasers at the time of entry into a 
purchase agreement.  There are no similar benefits to purchasers provided 
under the Land Division Act. 

 
l. Local and State Review – Both development types require City Council 

approval, following a recommendation by the Planning Commission.  Unlike 
subdivisions, site condominiums do not require the review and approval of 
the Michigan Department of Consumer and Industry Services. For this 
reason it can sometimes take a substantially shorter period of time to obtain 
necessary public approvals of site condominiums than platted subdivisions.   

 
2. Reason for choosing one form versus another. 

 
Developers and municipalities often prefer the site condominium approach 
because of better control of market timing.  It should be emphasized that the 
site condominium choice never sacrifices any public protections that would 
otherwise be present in the case of a platted subdivision under similar 
circumstances. 

 
3. Conclusion. 

 
The platted subdivision approach and the newer site condominium technique 
are two different statutory methods of reaching essentially the same practical 
and legal result of dividing real estate into separate residential building sites.  
Both methods are required to meet substantially the same public health, safety 
and welfare requirements.  The site condominium is sometimes chosen over 
the platted subdivisions because of perceived benefits to purchasers, 
homeowners, and developers. 

 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Comparison of Site Condos and Plats.doc 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL  August 30, 2004 

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final  August 30, 2004 
 
 

B-10 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Proposed Timbercrest Estates Site 
Condominium – 11 Units/Lots Proposed, South Side of Wattles – West of 
Fernleigh – Section 24 – R-1C 

 
Resolution #2004-08-436 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-
Family Residential Site Condominium known as Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium, as 
submitted and as recommended for approval by Planning Commission, located on the south 
side of Wattles, west of Fernleigh, including 11 home sites, within the R-1C zoning district, being 
4 acres in size, is hereby REMOVED FROM THE TABLE. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak 
 
Pending Resolution as Recommended by the Planning Commission 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-
Family Residential Site Condominium known as Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium, as 
submitted and as recommended for approval by Planning Commission, located on the south 
side of Wattles, west of Fernleigh, including 11 home sites, within the R-1C zoning district, being 
4 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED, with the following conditions, as STIPULATED by the 
Planning Commission in their resolution of July 13, 2004: 
 

1. That the drainage of this property to the properties to the east that are 
developed, is engineered such that there are no water flows that create standing 
water in the properties to the east. 

 
2. The tree survey lists a number of trees that are not the kind of trees the City of 

Troy wants, and those trees that do meet the requirement of being a good tree, 
on the property lines specifically, that every effort be made to do the 
underground utility work without cutting roots and maybe the recommendation 
would be not to do any rear yard underground utility work, but make it all down 
Timbercrest. 

 
3. If there are trees to be destroyed, the item needs to come back to see how best 

the City and the petitioner can get together and save as many trees as possible. 
 
Vote on Amendment by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2004-08-437 
Motion by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL  August 30, 2004 

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final  August 30, 2004 
 
 

RESOLVED, That Resolution be amended by SUBSTITUTING: 
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-
Family Residential Site Condominium known as Timbercrest Site Condominium, as submitted 
and as recommended for approval by City Management, located on the south side of Wattles, 
west of Fernleigh, including 11 home sites, within the R-1C Zoning District, being 4 acres in 
size, is hereby APPROVED, with the following design considerations: 
 

1. Petitioner to work with the Engineering Department to design engineering plans that will 
not create or exacerbate storm water problems on the adjacent properties. 

 
2. Petitioner to work with the Parks and Recreation Department to adopt a Final Tree 

Preservation Plan that is in compliance with the Landscape Design and Tree 
Preservation Standards. Further, it is desirable to preserve the trees and their root 
structure along the eastern property line of the proposed site condominium. In addition, 
undesirable and unhealthy trees should be removed from the subject property. 

 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak 
 
Vote on Substituted Resolution 
 
Resolution #2004-08-438 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-
Family Residential Site Condominium known as Timbercrest Site Condominium, as submitted 
and as recommended for approval by City Management, located on the south side of Wattles, 
west of Fernleigh, including 11 home sites, within the R-1C Zoning District, being 4 acres in 
size, is hereby APPROVED, with the following design considerations: 
 

1. Petitioner work with the Engineering Department to design engineering plans that will not 
create or exacerbate storm water problems on the adjacent properties. 

 
2. Petitioner work with the Parks and Recreation Department to adopt a Final Tree 

Preservation Plan that is in compliance with the Landscape Design and Tree 
Preservation Standards. Further, it is desirable to preserve the trees and their root 
structure along the eastern property line of the proposed site condominium. In addition, 
undesirable and unhealthy trees should be removed from the subject property. 

 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak 
 























September 15, 2005 
 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Schedule a Joint Meeting with Representatives from  

the Troy School District 
 
 
 
Troy School District Superintendent Barbara Fowler has offered the following slate of 
dates for us to choose from for a joint meeting with the Troy School District: 
 
Thursday, October 13 
Wednesday, November 9 
Thursday, November 10 
Wednesday, November 30 
Thursday, December 15 
 
This joint meeting will be an evening meeting, beginning at 7:30 PM, in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of Troy City Hall. 
 
Mayor Schilling has suggested possible topics are Wireless Oakland and joint services. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to call me. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JS/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2005\09.19.05 – Scheduling a Joint Meeting with the TSD 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



 

   Memorandum 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From: John Szerlag, City Manager 

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

Date: September 15, 2005 
Subject: City Regular General Election Informational Brochure 
 
 
The attached informational brochure will be placed on the September 26, 2005 
City Council Agenda for review and Council action. The information is provided in 
a neutral format to assist the Troy electorate with the November 8, 2005 Election 
proposals and to provide the voters with advance notice of the new election 
equipment that will be utilized at the election. Additionally, the School District for 
the City of Royal Oak will have a question on the ballot for the Troy voters who 
reside within the district (a portion of precinct 30.) The school ballot question has 
been listed with instructions for voters, desiring information, to contact the School 
District. 
 
It is anticipated that the brochure will be a self-mailer that will be labeled and 
mailed to all Troy households with registered voters. The format of the mailing 
will be provided at the September 26th meeting along with the number of 
households and distribution costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a



 

 

NEW ELECTION VOTING EQUIPMENT  

M100 OPTICAL SCAN 

The City of Troy will be utilizing new voting devices in all precincts and for Absent Voters 
effective with the November 8, 2005 City Regular General Election. The new equipment is 
M100 optical scan equipment, shown below. The M100 voting device is very similar to the 
voting equipment used by Troy voters in the past. The equipment upgrade is a result of the 
implementation of the Federal Help America Vote Act. The equipment was purchased by 
Oakland County through the State of Michigan with Federal funds and will be utilized by all 
Oakland County voters. The most notable change for Troy voters will be the manner in 
which a voter marks the ballot. To vote, fill in the oval as shown below. 

Please contact the City Clerk’s Office for a demonstration of the equipment or should you 
have any questions.  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY GENERAL ELECTION DATES TO REMEMBER: 
 

Election Day: Tuesday, November 8, 2005 
Last day to Register to Vote: Monday, October 11, 2005 

 
The City Clerk’s Office will be open on Saturday, November 5, 2005 from 10:00 AM until 2:00 
PM for ABSENTEE BALLOTING. 
 

Troy City Clerk Office 
500 W Big Beaver 

Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3316  elections@ci.troy.mi.us 

 



Charter Amendment Proposal 05-1 
AMENDMENT OF SECTIONS 3.4 (TERMS OF OFFICE) and 7.5 (ELECTIVE OFFICERS AND 
TERMS OF OFFICE) OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER TO REFLECT THE CURRENT FOUR-YEAR 
TERMS OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  

 
Shall Sections 3.4 (Terms of Office) and 7.5 (Elective Officers and Terms of Office) of the Troy City 
Charter be amended by deleting section 7.5 and incorporating the former section 7.5 as the first 
sentence of section 3.4 with the terms of the Mayor and the Council Members being four years to 
reflect the change from three years to four years on account of the 2004 election consolidation 
legislation and providing that these terms expire at 7:30 pm (rather than 8 pm) on the first Monday 
following the regular City election in the fourth year of these terms?  
 
YES A YES vote means that Charter Section 

7.5, (Elective Officers and Terms of 
Office), will be relocated to Chapter 3, 
(Organization of Government), which is 
designed to assist citizens in locating 
information regarding the terms of the 
Mayor and City Council.  In addition, the 
actual term of City Council will be 
modified from three-years to four-years, 
since election consolidation limits 
elections to odd years only, making a 
three-year term impossible.  

NO A NO vote means that Section 7.5, (Elective 
Officers and Terms of Office), will remain 
under Chapter 7 – Elections, and that the 
three year terms under Troy’s charter would 
automatically be extended under state 
election consolidation law to four year 
terms, regardless of the passage or failure 
of this proposal. 
 
A NO vote means that the Charter will be in 
conflict with Michigan Election Law. The 
Michigan Election Law governs all portions 
of this proposal as it takes precedence of 
the City of Troy Charter. Mayor and Council 
terms will be for 4-years regardless of the 
passage or failure of this proposal.  

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-2 
AMENDMENT TO RE-NUMBER SECTION 7.5.5 OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER AS SECTION 
3.4.1, ADD A TITLE TO THE SECTION, AND CHANGE THE SECTION’S DEFINITION OF “TERM” 
IN ITS THIRD SENTENCE  

 
Shall Section 7.5.5 of the Troy City Charter be re-numbered as section 3.4.1 to state as follows: 
 

“3.4.1- Elective Officers Term Limitations, Any elected member of the City Council shall not 
serve more than three terms as Councilperson.  The Mayor shall not serve more than two 
terms as Mayor.  Any service greater than two (2) years plus one (1) month shall constitute a 
term.  This amendment shall apply only to terms starting after passage of this amendment”?  

 
YES A YES vote means that Section 7.5.5, 

(Elective Officers and Terms of Office), 
will be relocated to Chapter 3 
(Organization of Government), instead 
of remaining in Chapter 7 (Elections), 
and that temporary terms for less than 
two years and one month will not be 
counted for term limitation purposes. 

NO A NO vote means that the Section 7.5.5, 
(Elective Officers and Terms of Office), will 
remain under Chapter 7 (Elections), and 
that any service on City Council would count 
for term limitation purposes. 

 



Charter Amendment Proposal 05-3 
PROPOSAL FOR A NEW SECTION 3.4.2 (STAGGERING TERMS OF OFFICE) OF THE TROY 
CITY CHARTER TO PROVIDE FOR THREE COUNCIL MEMBERS TO BE ELECTED TO FOUR-
YEAR TERMS EVERY TWO YEARS  

 
In lieu of the current provision under the 2004 election consolidation legislation for four council 
members and the Mayor to be elected in 2007 and every four years thereafter and two council 
members to be elected in 2009 and every four years thereafter, shall section 3.4.2 be added to the 
Troy City Charter to provide for a two-year transitional term (2007-2009) for one council member, so 
that the Mayor and three members of the council will be elected in 2007 and every four years 
thereafter and three members will be elected in 2009 and every four years thereafter?  
 
YES A YES vote means that there will be a 

one time only two (2)-year partial term 
for the Troy City Council in 2007, which 
is created to re-implement staggering of 
terms, which was disrupted by Election 
Consolidation revisions to the Michigan 
Election Law. If the Proposal passes, the 
inclusion of a partial term will allow for a 
more balanced future election cycle, 
where the Mayor and three City Council 
terms will expire in 2009, and three City 
Council terms will expire in 2011, rather 
than the default cycle where the Mayor 
and four City Council terms will expire in 
2007, and two City Council terms will 
expire in 2009, and the cycle will 
continue each odd year thereafter.  

NO A NO vote means that the Council would not 
have a balanced staggering of City Council 
terms, which would create an unbalanced 
election of Council seats. If the proposal is 
defeated, then the Troy electorate will elect 
two (2) Council members in 2005 and four 
(4) Council members plus the Mayor in 
2007, and this four-year election cycle 
would continue indefinitely. 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-4 
AMENDMENT OF SECTION 7.3 (ELECTION DATE) OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER TO REFLECT 
THE CURRENT REQUIREMENT FOR REGULAR ELECTIONS IN NOVEMBER OF EACH ODD- 
NUMBERED YEAR 
 

Shall Section 7.3 (Election Date) be amended to provide for regular City elections in November of 
each odd-numbered year to reflect the current requirements of the 2004 election consolidation 
legislation? 
 
YES A YES vote means that the Charter will 

be brought into compliance with the 
recently amended Michigan Election 
Law. The City Regular General Election 
has been moved from April to the first 
Tuesday following the first Monday of 
odd-year Novembers. 
 

NO A NO vote means that the Charter will be in 
conflict with recently amended Michigan 
Election Law. Under the Michigan Election 
Law, which takes precedence over the City 
of Troy Charter, the City Regular General 
Election will be conducted on the odd-year 
November date, regardless of passage or 
failure of this proposal. 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-5 
PROPOSAL TO RE-STATE SECTION 7.6 (SPECIAL ELECTION) OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER 



 
Shall Section 7.6 of the Troy City Charter be re-stated by providing: “Special City elections shall be 
called in the manner and time as provided by State Statute” and eliminating “Special City elections 
shall be held when called by resolution of the Council at least 40 days in advance of such election, or 
when required by this charter or statute.  Any resolution calling a special election shall set forth the 
purpose of such election.  No more special city elections shall be called in any one year than the 
number permitted by statute”?   
 
YES A YES vote means that the Charter 

language will be cleaned up and brought 
into compliance with the recently 
amended Michigan Election Law. 

NO A NO vote means that the Charter will be in 
conflict with the recently amended Michigan 
Election Law. The Michigan Election Law 
takes precedence over the City of Troy 
Charter. 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-6 
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 7.9 (NOMINATIONS) OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER TO 
DELETE A PROVISION THAT IS INCONSISTENT WITH MICHIGAN ELECTION LAW 

 
Shall the fourth and fifth sentences of Section 7.9 (Nominations) of the Troy City Charter, rejecting any 
signatures on nominating petitions where a voter has signed more nominating petitions for candidates 
for any city office than there are persons to be elected to that office, be deleted to reflect that the 
counting of some of these signatures is permitted under the provisions of section 547(a) of the 
Michigan Election Code [(MCL 168.547(a)]? 
 
YES A YES vote means that the Charter 

language will be cleaned up and 
brought into compliance with the 
recently amended Michigan Election 
Law.  Under Michigan election law, if 
a person signs more than one 
petition for an office or a proposal, 
then only the first signature is 
counted (unless both were signed on 
the same day, in which case both 
signatures will be invalidated. 
regardless of passage or failure of 
this proposal. 

NO A NO vote means that the Charter will be in 
conflict with the recently amended Michigan 
Election Law. The Michigan Election Law 
takes precedence over the City of Troy 
Charter, and therefore if a person signs 
more than one petition for an office or a 
proposal, then the first signature will be 
counted, unless both signatures were 
secured on the same day. This will occur 
even if the proposal fails.  

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-7 
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 7.10 (FORM OF PETITIONS) OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER 
TO DELETE A PROVISION THAT IS INCONSISTENT WITH MICHIGAN LAW 
 

Shall the first sentence of Section 7.10 of the Troy City Charter be re-stated by striking “The Council 
shall approve a form of nominating petition with spaces thereon for address and date of signing for 
each signer, an affidavit form for the circulator to sign affirming that he and the petitioners are 
registered electors and a summary of the qualifications required of candidates and the regulations 
governing the petition” and substituting “Nominating petitions shall be in a form as provided by 
Michigan Election Law”? 
 
 



YES A YES vote means that the Charter 
language will be cleaned up and brought 
into compliance with the recently 
amended Michigan Election Law.  Under 
Michigan Election Law, the State of 
Michigan approves the form of 
nominating petitions. 

NO A NO vote means that the Charter will be in 
conflict with the recently amended Michigan 
Election Law.  The Michigan Election Law, 
which requires the State of Michigan to 
approve the form of nominating petitions, 
takes precedence over the City of Troy 
Charter.  

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-8 
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 5.13 (SUBMISSION OF INITIATORY AND REFERENDARY 
ORDINANCES TO ELECTORS) OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER, REGARDING ITS 
REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL ELECTIONS FOR INITIATIVE PROPOSALS 

 
Shall section 5.13 of the Troy City Charter be amended to delete the 60 day deadline for the City 
Council to call a special election for an initiative proposal, where the Council declines to enact the 
proposal as an ordinance and no election is to be held in the City for any other purpose within 150 
days from the date the proposal is presented to the Council, to provide that these special elections 
shall be scheduled in accordance with Michigan election law and to specify that Council decisions 
under this section shall be by affirmative vote of the members elect? 
 
YES A YES vote means that the Charter 

language will be cleaned up and brought 
into compliance with Michigan Election 
Law.  Under the recent amendments to 
Michigan election law, the possible 
dates of elections are limited to 
February, May, September and 
November. 

NO A NO vote means that the Charter will be in 
conflict with the recently amended Michigan 
Election Law.  The Michigan Election Law 
takes precedence over the City of Troy 
Charter, and would therefore preclude an 
election within 150 days if the 150 days 
does not occur on one of the designated 
election dates. 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-9 
A PROPOSAL TO ADD TO THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 7.9.5 (COUNCIL INITIATED 
BALLOT QUESTIONS) TO THE TROY CITY CHARTER TO ALLOW CITY COUNCIL TO PLACE 
ADVISORY QUESTION ON REGULAR CITY ELECTIONS BALLOTS 

 
Shall Section 7.9.5 (Council Initiated Ballot Questions) of the Troy City Charter be added to provide a 
mechanism for the City Council to place advisory ballot questions on the Regular City Election Ballot, 
by an affirmative majority vote of the members elect? 
 
YES A YES vote means that the City Council 

would have the ability to place non-
binding, legislative advisory questions 
on the City Regular General Election 
Ballot.  

NO A NO vote means that there would be no 
express authority for the City Council to 
submit advisory, non-binding questions to 
Troy voters.  

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-10 
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 12.3 (RESTRICTIONS ON POWERS TO LEASE PROPERTY) 
OF THE TROY CHARTER TO SUBJECT LONG TERM USE AGREEMENTS TO THE 
RESTRICTIONS ON LEASING AND RENTING CITY PROPERTY SET FORTH IN THAT SECTION  

 



Shall Section 12.3 of the Troy City Charter be amended to subject long-term (more than 3 years) use 
agreements to the restrictions in this section for the leasing or renting of City property, including the 
requirements for fair consideration as determined by the city council and the provision for referendum 
petitions for such agreements? 
 
YES A YES vote means that the Restriction 

on Powers to Lease Property as defined 
in Section 12.3, under Chapter 12 – 
Purchases, Contracts, Leases, will be 
expanded to include long-term use 
agreements as an additional type of 
ownership.  Long-term use agreements 
are agreements for a private entity to 
have exclusive use of City owned 
property for a period of time that is 
longer than three years. 

NO A NO vote means that Long–term use 
agreements may not be subject to the same 
restrictions on powers to lease or rent City 
property.  These restrictions include the 
right of referendum on long-term use 
agreements and the requirement that fair 
consideration be provided for any use of 
City property. 

 
School District of the City of Royal Oak 
PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF TROY RESIDENTS IN PRECINCT NUMBER 30 WHO LIVE 
WITHIN THE PORTION OF THE PRECINCT WITHIN THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF 
ROYAL OAK  

 
Shall the School District of the City of Royal Oak, County of Oakland, Michigan, borrow the principal 
sum of not to exceed Sixty-Nine Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($69,500,000) and issue its 
general obligation unlimited tax bonds for the purpose of defraying the cost of: 
 
 constructing, furnishing and equipping a new elementary school building; 
 remodeling, equipping, furnishing, reequipping and refurnishing existing School District 

buildings;    
 constructing, furnishing and equipping additions to existing School District buildings; 
 acquiring and installing technology in and connecting School District buildings; and 
 improving and developing sites, including playgrounds, in the School District?   

 
The estimated millage to be levied in 2006 to service this issue of bonds is 2.20 mills ($2.20 per 
$1,000 of taxable value) and the estimated simple average annual millage rate required to retire the 
bonds of this issue is 2.43 mills ($2.43 per $1,000 of taxable value).  The bonds may be issued in one 
or more series, payable in the case of each series in not to exceed sixteen (16) years from the date of 
issue of each series. 
 
Residents who reside within this school district should contact the School District of the City of 
Royal Oak for the impact of this proposal. 

 

 

 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            June 2, 2005 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, June 2 
2005 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting to order at 
10:02 AM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair Jo Rhoads, Member 
 Pauline Noce, Member James Berar, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member    David Ogg, Member 
 Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent: Marie Hoag, Member Bud Black, Member     
   
Visitors:  Mary Beth Halushka, David Keats    
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2005-06-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads  
Seconded by Pauline Noce  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of April 7, 2005 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 6        
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Mary Beth Halushka thanked the committee for supporting the millage 
 
Old Business 
  
Senior Centers in Neighboring Cities:  There were no new visits to report this month.  
 
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  The Park Board discussed this issue at their April meeting 
and JoAnn Thompson and Jo Rhoads attended this meeting.   The Park Board is receptive 
and Carol will investigate further.   
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Kim Haveraneck, President of Emerald Food 
Service is not able to attend the June meeting but said she would attend in September.   
 
New Business 
 
Election of Officers 
      
Resolution #SC-2005-6-002 
Moved by JoAnn Thompson  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            June 2, 2005 

2 

Seconded by  James Berar 
 
RESOLVED That JoAnn Thompson was re-elected as Chair, Jo Rhoads was elected as Vice 
Chair, Jo Rhoads was reappointed as OLHSA representative, and Merrill Dixon was 
recommended for reappointment to the Park Board.  
 
Yes:  6 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Adopt-Our-Senior-Center:  Carla handed out a spreadsheet that detailed the donations 
received to date. 
 
Cancellation of July and August Meetings   
 
Resolution # SC-2005-6-003 
Moved by Jo Rhoads 
Seconded by Pauline Noce  
 
RESOLVED, That the July and August meetings be cancelled. 
 
Yes:  6      
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Michigan Senior Olympics:  James Berar suggested that we try to offer some of the Senior 
Olympics sports as part of our program.  Carla will look at the list of sports and see what we 
are already offering and what we could offer. 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported that K Mart donated $20,000 for the skateboard park and 
the Park Board will not meet in June, July and August.  
 
Medi-Go:   Jo Rhoads reported that they are doing well.  There is a possibility that all services 
in the metropolitan area may be able to go under one insurance policy. 
    There were 1356 meals served on 22 days at the Community Center in September.   
Senior Program:  The spring expo went well with an estimated 350 in attendance and 68 
vendors.   We had a full house with 70 vendors for the Craft and Clutter Flea Market.  
Women’s senior softball is up and running with six teams in the countywide league.  One 
hundred and sixty seven seniors attended the MoneySmart program. 
    
OLHSA:  Jo Rhoads reported that she did not attend the last meeting.  Pauline Noce will be 
the alternate to attend these meetings.  
 
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            June 2, 2005 

3 

Suggestion Box:  There was a request for a Mah Jongg class.  Carla will advertise for an 
instructor.  There was a suggestion to allow for sale ads in the newsletter.  Carla reported that 
there is a bulletin board for this at the Community Center.  The committee felt that putting for 
sale ads in the newsletter could get out of hand. 
 
Comments 
 
JoAnn extended sympathy to the school district for the loss of Superintendent Janet Jopke. 
 
Merrill commented that there will be some type of senior event for Troy Daze but no lunch.  
Committee members would be willing to serve coffee.  Carla will extend this offer to the Troy 
Daze committee.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:10 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair      
 
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – FINAL AUGUST 2, 2005 

I.  CALL TO ORDER 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, August 2, 2005 
at Troy City Hall – Conference Room C. Meeting was called to order at 7:11 p.m. 
 
II.  MEMBERS PRESENT 
Present: 
     Hailu Robele  Padma Kuppa 
     Amin Hashmi  Oniell Shah  
     Anju Brodbine   Tom Kaszubski 
     Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
 
Absent: 
     Flora Tan   Charles Yuan  

Jeff Hyun  
 
Guests: 
 Malini Sarma- substitute teacher in Troy Schools & dance instructor, and Yogesh 
Gusani, Troy resident, CPA & neighbor of Oniell.  Both are interested in being appointed to 
the EIA Board when there are openings. 
      
III.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Moved by Padma Kuppa 
Seconded by Amin Hashmi 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes from the June 7, 2005 Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Meeting 
are approved.  Approved unanimously. 
 
IV. ARTICLES 

• NY Times-Outsourcing –July 24, 2005 
• Detroit Free Press – Race & Ethnicity - July 4, 2005 
• Metro Parent NCCJ/LINC article by Padma Kuppa – July 2005 
• August in Metro Parent – Padma will have an article on Bilingual Education 
• Padma suggests reading-“Ethnicity in Michigan” by Jack Glazier. 
• Oakland Press - Major uproar over editorial cartoon –July 28, 2005 
 

V.   NEW BUSINESS 
A. NCCJ and LINC 
• National conference for community and justice: help with diversity, bias, bigotry 

issues. Leadership in the new century (LINC) group for teens in 50-60 school 
districts in the area. Ex. Diversity Day at Churchill High School teaching conflict 
resolution, racial biases.  Deb Williamson will be at our September meeting. Padma 
will attend TYC meeting August 24 to invite their members. 

 
B. EIAB Mission & Goals - Cindy will e-mail goals/mission to members. Board needs to 
explore our Mission Statement & Goals again.  Discuss at a future meeting in October. 
 

 
C. Business Sponsored - Diversity Program Idea:  Local Business would like to give 

money/grant to a group who would do something related to diversity and kids.  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – FINAL AUGUST 2, 2005 

• Plan of Action must be in writing – geared to Elementary /Middle School 
• Could be $10,000 each year 

Examples: Exploring different cultures, customs, holidays, traditions; Mini Sights  
and Sounds program at each school  

 
VI. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Resource Guide: Continue to send good resources 
• Idea to share our list with other communities, especially ones with EIA type boards 

(Southfield, Ann Arbor, Farmington Hills, Sterling Heights)  
• Contact other cities re: Sharing info 
 
B. Troy Daze - EthniCity 

• EIA needs to man booth-Saturday, September 17, 2-4 pm, Sunday,  
September 18, 2-4 
• Giveaways: key chains, quiz re: flags of countries 
• Saturday, 2-3 pm Oniell  
• Saturday, 3-4 pm Amin 
• Sunday, 2-3 pm Anju  
• Sunday 3-4 pm Padma/Malini 
 

C. Law Brochures - Check out cost for those to be printed.  We could possibly get 
grant from Community Foundation.  

 
D. Sights & Sounds World Bazaar - need to promote this and get vendors. Padma will 

take applications to India Craft Show August 7, 2005 at Temple 
 
E. Padma Kuppa Motion to recommend appointing Malini Sarma to replace Hailu 

Robele. Hailu Robele Seconded. Approved unanimously.  
 
VII. MOTION TO ADJOURN  
 
Moved by   Anju Brodbine 
Seconded by Oniell Shah 
 
RESOLVED that the Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Meeting be adjourned at 8:29 p.m. 
Approved unanimously. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Tom Kaszubski, EIA Chairman 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIA Recording Secretary 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                AUGUST 3, 2005 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, August 3, 2005 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Rick Sinclair 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ABSENT:  Tim Richnak 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES - MEETING OF JULY 6, 2005 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of July 6, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Dziurman, Kessler, Sinclair, Zuazo 
Absent: 1 – Richnak 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that Mr. Richnak was required to attend another meeting this 
morning. 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  R.E. MOORHOUSE & ASSOCIATES, 2380 
MEIJER DR., for relief of Chapter 78 to install a 30 square foot ground sign with a one 
(1)-foot setback from the right of way of Meijer Drive where a ten (10)-foot setback is 
required. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Building Department had received a letter from R.E. 
Moorhouse & Associates indicating their intent to withdraw this request, as they have 
submitted a site plan that indicates the location of the proposed sign, which is in 
compliance with the requirements of the Sign Ordinance. 
 
Withdrawal request noted and filed.  No further action required by this Board. 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  HAYSSAM BOUSSI, 36949 DEQUINDRE, for relief 
of Chapter 78 to expand the existing 40 square foot ground sign to 48 square feet and 
to have 150 square feet of wall sign where 128 are permitted. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
expand the existing 40 square foot ground sign to 48 square feet.  The existing ground 
sign is non-conforming as it has a height of 16’ and a setback of less than 20’.  Section 
9.01 states that signs setback between 10’ and 20’ cannot exceed 10’ in height.   

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                AUGUST 3, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Section 10.02.03 of the Sign Ordinance prohibits the expansion of non-conforming 
signs. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of July 6, 2005 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to meet with his client to determine if 
conformance is possible and to allow the Building Department the time necessary to 
publish the petitioner’s request for an additional wall sign. 
 
The plans submitted also indicate an additional wall sign with a size of 28 square feet.  
Section 9.02.04 of the Sign Ordinance states the total combined area of all wall signs 
cannot exceed 10% of the front of the structure or tenant area.  The total square footage 
of the front of the structure is 1,280 square feet, which would allow for 128 square foot 
of signage.  Currently there is 122.2 square feet of signage, leaving only 5.8 square feet 
available.  The proposed sign would result in 150 square feet of wall signs. 
 
Mr. Boussi was present and stated that his client wished to withdraw his request to 
enlarge the ground sign, but would still like a variance to allow the new wall sign.  Mr. 
Boussi explained that the Sav-Mor Pharmacy was a new business inside this market 
and this would be their only means of advertising. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.   No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Sinclair 
 
MOVED, to grant Hayssam Boussi, 36949 Dequindre relief of Chapter 78 to install a 
second wall sign, which will result in 150 square feet of wall signs where Section 
9.02.04 of the Sign Ordinance limits the amount of wall signage to 128 square feet. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:   4 – Kessler, Sinclair, Zuazo, Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JEFF CLEMENTS, 5505 CORPORATE, for relief 
of Chapter 78 to install a 192 square foot ground sign 19’ from the City right of way. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to install a 192 
square foot ground sign 19’ from the Corporate Drive and New King City right of way. 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                AUGUST 3, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Paragraph B of Section 9.02.03 of Chapter 78 requires that a ground sign of this size be 
placed a minimum of 30’ from the City right of way line.  This item first appeared before 
this Board at the meeting of July 6, 2005 and was postponed to allow the petitioner the 
opportunity to be present. 
 
Mr. Jeff Clements was present and stated that it would be difficult to move the proposed 
sign because of the existing retention pond.  Mr. Clements also said that presently EDS 
leases this space and they have informed the owner of the building that they will be 
vacating these premises in the middle of next year.  The new sign will aid in the leasing 
of this space out.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if there were any ground signs at this location presently.  Mr. Clements 
explained that this sign will replace the existing sign, which is smaller, but in the same 
location. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to grant Jeff Clements, 5505 Corporate, relief of Chapter 78 to install a 192 
square foot ground sign located 19’ from the City right of way. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Kessler, Sinclair, Zuazo, Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JEFF CLEMENTS, 700 TOWER, for relief of 
Chapter 78 to install a 192 square foot ground sign 16’ from the City right of way lines. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to install a 192 
square foot ground sign 16’ from the City right of way line along Tower Drive and 16’ 
from the right of way line along Long Lake Road.  Paragraph B of Section 9.02.03 of 
Chapter 78 requires that a ground sign of this size be placed a minimum of 30’ from the 
City right of way lines.  This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of July 
6, 2005 and was postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                AUGUST 3, 2005 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Clements was present and stated that the existing sign is the same size and in the 
same location as the proposed sign.  They wish to update the existing sign.  Mr. 
Clements also said that the existing sign was granted a variance approximately fifteen 
(15) years ago. 
 
Ms. Struckman confirmed that the existing sign was granted a variance by this Board 
approximately fifteen (15) years ago. 
 
Mr. Clements also said that they plan to use the same concrete for the new sign. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Sinclair 
 
MOVED, to grant Jeff Clements, 700 Tower, relief of Chapter 78 to install a 192 square 
foot ground sign 16’ from the City right of way line along Tower Drive and 16’ from the 
right of way line along Long Lake Road. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property listed in this application. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Sinclair, Zuazo, Dziurman, Kessler 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  LIBERTY PROPERTY TRUST, 2710 
BELLINGHAM, for relief of Chapter 78 to install a second ground sign at 2710 
Bellingham. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to install a 
second ground sign at 2710 Bellingham.  The site plan submitted indicates a new 48 
square foot ground sign.  This site already has an existing 70 square foot ground sign.  
Chapter 78, Section 9.02.05 limits the number of ground signs to one. 
 
Mary McLean from Liberty Property Trust was present and stated that the Ordinance 
allows for both a wall sign and a ground sign at this location, but they wished to forego 
the wall sign and put up an additional ground sign.  Ms. McLean explained that they 
have a new tenant moving into this location and this ground sign would be used to 
identify them.  All of the buildings in this area are occupied and this is the last space to  

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                AUGUST 3, 2005 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
be leased.  They have created a new entrance and this ground sign will make their 
location more visible. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if this sign would be in compliance if it were the only ground sign 
put up and Mr. Stimac said that the specifications do comply with the requirements of 
the Ordinance.  The only reason they need a variance is because there is already an 
existing ground sign at the location.  Mr. Dziurman stated that he would be concerned if 
someone came back to request a wall sign.  Mr. Stimac said that unless stipulations 
were added to the variance, the Building Department would grant a Sign Permit for a 
wall sign if one was requested. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if there were any other spaces for lease and Ms. McLean stated that 
the rest of the buildings were already leased. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked how the present tenant spaces were identified and Mr. McLean said 
that there are numerals above each door, e.g. 100, 400, etc. 
 
Mr. Sinclair asked if they would be allowed to put the names of the tenants on the glass 
doors.  Mr. Stimac said that signs that are on the inside of the glass are not regulated by 
the Sign Ordinance and therefore would be allowed. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Sinclair 
 
MOVED, to grant Liberty Property Trust, 2710 Bellingham, relief of chapter 78 to install 
a second ground sign where Section 9.02.05 of the Ordinance limits the number of 
ground signs to one. 
 

• In lieu of a wall sign, this 48 square foot ground sign will be allowed. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Zuazo, Dziurman, Kessler, Sinclair 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
 
 
 

 5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                AUGUST 3, 2005 

ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TAMELA CORBIN, 503 RANDALL, for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install a 6’ high privacy fence in the front yard setback along Tallman. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ 
high privacy fence.  This property is a double front corner lot.  It has front yard setback 
requirements along both Randall and Tallman.  Chapter 83 limits the height of front yard 
fences on this property to not more than 30”.  The site plan submitted indicates a 6’ high 
privacy fence setback 2’ from the east property line along Tallman. 
 
Ms. Corbin was present and stated that she is a single mom with a five year old 
daughter and basically wants the fence to provide a safe environment for her.  Ms. 
Corbin also stated that she has a dog and this fence would allow her the freedom of 
enjoying the back yard.  The previous owner had a fence and removed it when it started 
to deteriorate.  Ms. Corbin wants to put the new fence in the same area as the previous 
fence.  Ms. Corbin explained that there is a row of shrubs that are being ruined by dogs 
and this fence would also protect those shrubs.  She understands that her property has 
a large utility easement and would also provide a gate to allow access in case anyone 
had to work on this easement.   
 
Mr. Dziurman clarified that Ms. Corbin wanted a 6’ high privacy fence.  Ms. Corbin 
stated that the she is planning to put up a vinyl, lattice type fence and stated that it did 
not have to be 6’ high she would just like to provide boundaries around her property.  
Presently there is a chain link fence at the back of her property that is between 4’ and 6’ 
high and she would like to connect her fence with the section that is 6’ high. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There are two (2) written objections on file. 
 
Ms. Corbin asked why the neighbors objected and Mr. Dziurman explained that one 
person complained because of the height, their view being obstructed and the possibility 
that predators could use part of this area to hide out.  Ms. Corbin stated that she is also 
concerned about predators, especially regarding her daughter. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if placing the fence 3’ from the sidewalk would put it behind the 
existing shrubs.  Ms. Corbin explained that she was hoping to put the fence on the 
outside of the shrub line in order to protect these shrubs from further damage by dogs. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked about the fence at the back of the property and Ms. Corbin 
explained that the height of this cyclone fence goes from 4’ high to 6’ high.  Mr. 
Dziurman asked if the fence would stop in the corner and Ms. Corbin said that she 
would like it to meet the 6’ high fence. 
 
 
 

 6



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                AUGUST 3, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if Ms. Corbin wanted a 6’ high fence.  Ms. Corbin stated that she 
believes this fence is available in either a 4’ or 6’ height.  Ms. Corbin also indicated that 
she would be happy with a shorter fence as it would still provide security for her 
daughter and her dog.  
 
Mr. Zuazo clarified that basically all she is looking for is a boundary, and that it does not 
have to be 6’ high.  Ms. Corbin stated that was correct. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if there were any restrictions regarding a fence in a utility easement.  
Mr. Stimac stated that as long as it was a standardized fence and not a permanent wall, 
it would be allowed in the easement.  Ms. Corbin said that she understood that her 
property had this utility easement as well as a gas line easement and did not see a 
problem with them accessing her property if need be. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that Ms. Corbin could have a fence that would run from the northeast 
corner of the garage straight back to the property line.  The reason a variance is needed 
is because she wants to run the fence toward Tallman.  Ms. Corbin said that she 
thought if she placed the fence in this location, she would lose a lot of the use in her 
yard and just wishes to place the fence in the same location as the previous owner.  Mr. 
Stimac explained that this lot is wider than other lots in the area because it is on the 
corner and therefore she would not lose that much of her yard. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there was fence on the west side of the house and Ms. Corbin 
stated that there is a 4’ chain link fence. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that normally a variance is granted for this type of fence with the 
stipulation that it is placed farther from the property line in order to be able to provide a 
buffer of landscaping to make the fence line less visible.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if Ms. Corbin would be willing to put the fence farther back from the 
property line in order to provide additional landscaping.  Ms. Corbin asked if she could 
put the fence on the other side of the shrub line.   
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if this was the vegetation that had been damaged.  Ms. Corbin said 
that when she first moved in there was a large number of shrubs along this property 
line, but as they have died she has removed them.  Mr. Dziurman asked if she would be 
willing to add extra shrubs.  Ms. Corbin said that she would, but feels it would be an 
unnecessary expense because she believes the same thing would happen to any new 
shrubbery that is added.  
 
Mr. Zuazo said that if everything is moved back, it would not be as readily accessible 
and would also open up the view for the neighbor that is objecting to the height of the 
fence.  Ms. Corbin indicated that she wants it look nice also and would like to put in a lot 
of landscaping. 

 7



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                AUGUST 3, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac suggested postponing this request so that research could be done regarding 
the location of the original fence, and also to allow the petitioner the opportunity to 
provide the Board with the exact height and type of fence she would like to install.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if Ms. Corbin would like to postpone this request until the next 
meeting.  Ms. Corbin said that she would like to be able to act on this as soon as 
possible and asked if the height of the fence was a problem for the Board.  Mr. 
Dziurman said that it would be beneficial for Ms. Corbin to get a picture of what she 
would like to install.  Mr. Dziurman also asked if she would be willing to move the fence 
back.   
 
Mr. Kessler said that he would like to see it moved back about 10’ to allow for additional 
landscaping.  Mr. Zuazo also pointed out that one of the objections received stated that 
a 6’ high fence would block their view. 
 
Ms. Corbin stated that she had spoken to the neighbors and explained that the fence 
would be a lattice type fence and the reason she would like to put it up would be to set 
boundaries on her property.  Ms. Corbin then asked if the Board would be willing to 
grant the variance if she moved it back 10’ and stated that she was more than willing to 
work with the Board. 
 
Ms. Corbin also indicated that if possible, she would like to be able to put up a 5’ high 
fence if she could find that.  Ms. Corbin said that she believed this fence was only sold 
in 4’ or 6’ high sections.  Mr. Dziurman stated that if Ms. Corbin did not wish to postpone 
her request the Board would vote on whether or not she could up a 6’ high privacy 
fence.  Ms. Corbin said that she would be willing to work with the Board and stay within 
whatever guidelines they stipulate. 
 
Motion by Zuazo 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Tamela Corbin, 503 Randall, for relief of Chapter 
83 to install a 6’ high privacy fence in the front yard setback along Tallman until the next 
scheduled meeting of September 7, 2005. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to provide a picture of the type of fence 
she wishes to install. 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to research the height of the fence she 
wishes to install. 

• To allow a landscaping plan to be presented to this Board. 
• To allow the Building Department the opportunity to research the history of the 

original fence to determine whether or not a variance was granted. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Zuazo, Dziurman, Kessler, Sinclair 

 8



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                AUGUST 3, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2005 
CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:20 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
     Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
     Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 

 9



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:30 p.m. on August 9, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Gary Chamberlain 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan (7:33 p.m.) 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-08-127 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the July 12, 2005 Regular Meeting minutes and the July 
26, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as published. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 
4. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 920) – Proposed Troy Retail Center (formerly Cranbrook 

Plaza), North side of Maple, West side of Dequindre, Section 25 – B-2 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Troy Retail Center.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation 
of City Management to approve the site plan as submitted subject to:  (1) relocating 
the dumpster to the southwest corner of the parcel; (2) eliminating the proposed 
sidewalk connecting to the south and providing a sidewalk connection to Dequindre 
to the east; and (3) approving a reduction of 39 off-street parking spaces, per Article 
40.20.12. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked if a cross access easement would be a consideration on 
leased property.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied a cross access easement was discussed and determined 
unnecessary for the proposed development.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked if the development would have an impact on the required parking 
for the Cultural Center.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied that parking for the Cultural Center would not be impacted. 
 
The petitioner, Jeff Frederick of Stucky+Vitale Architects, 27172 Woodward 
Avenue, Royal Oak, was present.  Mr. Frederick addressed the conditions 
recommended by staff for site plan approval.  He said a catch basin exists on the 
southwest corner of the parcel in which staff is recommending to place the 
dumpster.  With respect to the parking deficiency, Mr. Frederick said there would be 
minimal overlapping hours between the Cultural Center and retail uses, indicating 
the retail would primarily be day hours and the Cultural Center would be evening 
and weekend hours.  Mr. Frederick said it would be preferable to connect the 
sidewalk to the south for two reasons.  It would be necessary to rip up existing 
landscaping to provide a sidewalk connection to the east, and the owner is 
confident that a cross access agreement could be obtained with the bank property 
owner.  
 
Mr. Schultz said there is no cross access agreement on file, and asked the 
petitioner if he would rather provide the sidewalk connection to the east or have the 
item tabled.   
 
Mr. Frederick replied that a tabling action would be preferable.   
 
Mr. Miller recommended site plan approval contingent upon securing a cross 
access easement in the future.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Waller thought further consideration should be given to the sidewalk location 
and dumpster location.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-08-128 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Troy Retail Center, located on the north side of Maple and west of Dequindre, 
located in Section 25, on approximately 7.25 acres, within the B-2 zoning district, is 
tabled to the September 13, 2005 Regular Meeting, to provide opportunity to the 
petitioner, owners and the City to make valid judgments.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said there is not enough parking.  She voiced concern that a 
change in property ownership in the future might result in a vacant strip center with 
no parking.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he would have liked to see the site plan approved tonight, contingent 
upon the conditions.   
 
 

5. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 621-B) – Proposed Bank One/Chase with Drive Up 
Addition, North side of Big Beaver, West of John R, Section 23 – O-1 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Bank One/Chase Bank.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the site plan as submitted with the 
conditions that the petitioner provide:  (1) a joint parking agreement in a form 
acceptable to the City Attorney and executed and recorded by the parties sharing 
the parking prior to Final Site Plan Approval; (2) a cross access easement to 
connect to the property to the north as indicated in the letter from the petitioner prior 
to Final Site Plan Approval; and (3) a direct sidewalk along the north property line 
abutting the shared parking spaces to the north and east entrances of the building 
for Preliminary Site Plan Approval.   
 
Mr. Waller asked if the sidewalk would be wrapped around the back side of the 
building and if any drawings have been submitted. 
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed the sidewalk would wrap around the back side.  He said no 
drawing has been submitted.  Mr. Savidant assured the members the applicant has 
more than enough required parking.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Littman asked if the property in which the applicant is entering into a joint 
parking agreement has any other joint parking agreements.   
 
Mr. Miller said there are no other joint parking agreements associated with the 
subject property.   
 
Chair Strat asked what portion of the building the bank would occupy, and the 
occupancy of the remaining building.   
 
Mr. Savidant said the bank would occupy approximately one-half of the building.  He 
indicated the petitioner might know if the remaining portion of the building is vacant 
or occupied.   
 
Mr. Schultz noted the sidewalk layout might eliminate two parking spaces and a 
barrier-free access to the sidewalks might be possible.   
 
Mr. Savidant said the sidewalk design could have an impact on one parking space.   
 
Mr. Miller pointed out that the existing driveway into the site could potentially cause 
a traffic bottleneck.   
 
The petitioner, Kelly House-Seaman of Nudell Architects of 31690 W. Twelve Mile 
Road, Farmington Hills, was present.  Ms. House-Seaman indicated they are in 
agreement with the recommendations of staff.   
 
Kenneth Enghauser of JPMorganChase, 1111 Polaris Parkway, Columbus, Ohio, 
was present.  Mr. Enghauser noted the peak bank hours would be 9 a.m. to 5 p.m., 
and the peak Troy Sports Center hours are 5 p.m. to 11 p.m. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-08-129 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Bank One/JP Morgan Chase office and drive-thru addition, located on the north side of 
Big Beaver and west of John R, located in Section 23, on approximately 1.23 acres, 
within the O-1 zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. A joint parking agreement in a form acceptable to the City Attorney is executed 

and recorded by the parties sharing the parking, prior to Final Site Plan Approval, 
as per Article 40.20.03 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 

2. Provide a cross-access easement as shown on the site plan, prior to Final Site 
Plan Approval. 

3. Provide a direct sidewalk along the north property line abutting the shared parking 
spaces to the north and east entrances of the building, for Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 812-B) – Proposed Chuck E. Cheese Restaurant, North 
side of Elliott, East side of John R, Section 36 – B-3 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Chuck E. Cheese restaurant.  He noted access is only on Elliott, and not 
both Elliott and John R as incorrectly stated in the Planning Department report.  Mr. 
Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan and deviation from the parking standards as submitted with the condition 
that all angled parking spaces and aisle widths meet the minimum zoning 
requirements prior to Final Site Plan Approval.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked if the seating capacity problem, as noted by the Building 
Department, would be alleviated if the Planning Commission takes action on the 
parking.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied in the affirmative.   
 
The petitioner, Douglas Mossman of Oakland Square Limited Partnership, 412 W. 
14 Mile Road, Troy, was present.  He reported that the executed lease agreement 
between Oakland Square Limited Partnership and Chuck E. Cheese stipulates an 
agreement that the vacant space [approximately 6,000 square feet] cannot be 
leased for restaurant use.  Mr. Mossman said it is his understanding that the City 
has given credence to the fact that the proposed use is a family-type restaurant that 
does not have a high need for parking.  He noted the adjacent Oakland Square 
Shopping Center could accommodate excess parking should the need arise.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-08-130 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
WHEREAS, Article 40.20.12 permits the Planning Commission to deviate the 
parking requirements based upon the specific standards set forth in the Article.  The 
applicant has provided a letter providing justification for the reduced number of 
parking spaces. 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves the reduction of 46 
parking spaces to 162 spaces, when 208 spaces are required, as per Article 
40.20.12. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested 
for the proposed Chuck E. Cheese Restaurant, located on the north side of Elliott and 
east side of John R, located in Section 36, on approximately 3.14 acres, within the 
B-3 zoning district, is hereby approved, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. All angled parking spaces and aisles shall meet the minimum requirements of 

the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, prior to Final Site Plan Approval. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:08 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:18 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214) – 
Article XXVIII, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 
 
Mr. Miller outlined the material provided to the members in addition to their regular 
meeting packet information.  
 
Chair Strat stated the intent of the Public Hearing and reported that notices of the 
Public Hearing were sent to residents within 300 feet of group day care home 
locations.  Chair Strat announced guidelines that would be utilized for the Public 
Hearing due to the size of the audience and the possible number of people who 
might wish to speak:  a time limit of 3 minutes would be set for each person who 
wishes to speak, repetitive comments would be discouraged, and no clapping.  
Chair Strat designated Vice Chair Schultz as the timekeeper. 
 
Chair Strat asked the members for a vote of confidence on the guidelines 
established for the Public Hearing.  
 
Roll Call 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Khan provided an explanation and apologized for his lateness to the meeting.  
Mr. Khan said one of the purposes of the Public Hearing is to receive comments 
from neighbors of the existing 19 group day care homes to determine the impact, 
whether negative or positive, the homes might have on the neighbors.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Nichol Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  She said the issue is heartfelt 
because it is about our children.  Ms. Childs is a group day care home provider and 
a parent of 3 small children under the age of 6.  She said she is sad to see the “City 
of Tomorrow Today” taking a stance of not recommending such an important issue.  
She addressed the service provided and said it is from their hearts and not a 
money-making standpoint.  She said child care providers must be patient, loving 
and kind and are tested on a daily basis.  Providers must enjoy what they are doing.  
Ms. Childs has a degree in early childhood development.  She said she called the 
City of Troy before opening her day care.  The Zoning Department informed her that 
the City allows what the State requires.  Ms. Childs said that either people in the 
office should have the knowledge to give correct information, or should be held 
accountable for information provided.  Ms. Childs addressed the charts provided by 
the Planning Department that were included in their notebook under tab 2.  The 
charts list which cities permit and do not permit group day care homes.  Ms. Childs 
said she personally called the cities and received contrary information.  She said 
there are 8 cities that allow group day care homes.  Ms. Childs said group day care 
home providers have been in Troy for 32 years, and the City has yet to formulate a 
real problem associated with the homes.  She said she has a problem with 
members of the commission who appear not to be open-minded and have their 
minds made up.  Ms. Childs referenced a conversation with Mr. Miller in which he 
said the City does not need to provide a service such as day care homes just 
because there is a need for it.  Ms. Childs said children are not commodities, such 
as oil refineries to which Mr. Miller said would not be permitted in back yards should 
there be a need for them.   
 
Don Dandenberghe of 4856 Kings Row, Shelby, was present.  Mr. Dandenberghe, 
principal of Wass Elementary School, said he sees a need for more home care for 
children in the neighborhood because in this day and age both parents work outside 
of the home.  Mr. Dandenberghe personally knows Sharon Schafer, a group day 
care home provider, and said she provides an excellent service.  He asked the 
members to consider the needs of children and their parents, and to vote from their 
hearts in order to provide what is best for the children.   
 
Ken Shepherd of 45538 Sterritt, Utica, was present.  Mr. Shepherd is a former 
Council person and mayoral candidate for the City of Utica and an ordained 
minister.  Mr. Shepherd’s two children attend Sharon Schafer’s day care home.  He 
said they receive the best of care and learn more than they would if they were to 
attend a licensed day care facility that can care for more than 12 children.  Mr. 
Shepherd said he and his wife looked very hard to find the best day care provider 
for their children.  Mr. Shepherd said he understood the difficult choices the 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Planning Commission members face.  He referenced a particular challenge that the 
City of Utica faced as relates to the safety of children.  Mr. Shepherd asked that the 
members consider what is best for the both the children and the city.   
 
Sharon Manning of 2651 E. Square Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Ms. Manning 
has been a child care provider in the City of Troy for 12 years.  She indicated Ms. 
Drake-Batts has been to her child group day care home.  Ms. Manning addressed 
personal property taxes, and asked why the City would collect personal property 
taxes on her group child care home if they were opposed to the home-based 
business.  Ms. Manning believes child care service should be grandfathered into the 
City ordinance.  She said a child care provider service is no different than those 
services that sell computer services, hair services, flower services, lawn services, 
vehicle garage repairs, in-home maid services, etc.  She asked if those services 
have a special ordinance and are monitored.  She asked if the City collects personal 
property taxes on other home-based businesses.  Ms. Manning said child care 
providers are in compliance, audited, monitored and licensed by the State of 
Michigan, as well as monitored and audited by Oakland County Child Care 
Association.  She said additional taxes in a single dealt service would be 
additionally burdensome whereby the reduction to a family size home would 
substantially reduce and even eliminate some livelihoods, to a point where child 
care could not be provided.  Ms. Manning asked the City to stand by their motto and 
not increase unemployment, or reduce or eliminate quality educational child care for 
Troy’s pre-schoolers and elementary age students after school.   
 
Michael Upton of 1267 Hartland, Troy, was present.  Mr. Upton addressed changing 
society and the economy with respect to working parents.  He said the City would 
lose valuable, non-replaceable workers, business owners and residents by denying 
or limiting working parents’ options for child care.  Mr. Upton said group day care 
homes provide personalized child care that offers unmatched attention to a child’s 
needs, individual stimulation, education and development.  He said they offer more 
structured and disciplined programs and more flexibility for working parents (i.e., 
drop off/pick up times, special parental requests and special children needs).  Mr. 
Upton said home child care providers have little or no staff changes and are able to 
bond with children on a consistent basis.  Mr. Upton said home child care providers 
offer lower child care rates and focus more on the development of a child, instead of 
the physical care such as feeding, diaper changing, or sanitation.  Mr. Upton said no 
one could replace the love he has for his daughter, and asked that the option be his 
to choose a day care provider that gives his daughter the next best thing, and that is 
his group day care home provider.   
 
Jill Gelder of 152 MacLynn, Troy, was present.  Ms. Gelder is a 15-year resident of 
Troy who worked at Honeybee Child Care for 7 years.  She addressed the changing 
society and the closeness that is established in a group day care home for both 
children and parents.  Ms. Gelder said she still talks to the parents and children that 
she cared for 7 years ago.  Ms. Gelder said child care centers are sterile, cold and 
impersonal.  She said group day care homes accommodate expectant mothers.  
She addressed pick-up/drop off times and noted the standard hours between 7:30 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

and 9:30 a.m. generate little traffic.  Ms. Gelder said she loved working at Honeybee 
Child Care, she loved the parents and children, and asked the members to 
reconsider its decision. 
 
F. M. Sheridan, M.D., of 1930 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Dr. Sheridan is a 
retired Emeritus pediatrician on the staff of Beaumont Hospital.  Dr. Sheridan lives 
across the street from Nichol Childs, a group day care provider.  He said he knows 
Ms. Childs personally and knows the place she runs.  Dr. Sheridan thinks it is great.  
He said he has dealt with kids for 45 years; he knows mothers and kids, and said 
group child care providers are a needed service.   
 
Syed Mohiuddin of 6150 Country Ridge, Troy, was present.  Mr. Mohiuddin and his 
wife operate a group day care center from their home.  Mr. Mohiuddin submitted a 
petition of 22 neighbors in the Crescent Ridge West subdivision who attested they 
are aware of and are not adversely or negatively affected by the day care center at 
6150 Country Ridge.  
 
Angela Andrews of 13133 Concord, Sterling Heights, was present.  Ms. Andrews 
stated that the group day care center operated by herself and her mother in Sterling 
Heights received approval by the City’s zoning board on June 3, 2004.  She said the 
city recognizes its obligation to protect the availability of day care openings because 
of the increase in the number of families seeking day care.  Ms. Andrews said they 
had no opposition from their neighbors, and indicated one neighbor considers it as a 
neighborhood watch.  Ms. Andrews said the hours of operation at their day care are 
as early as 4:30 a.m. for parents working at factory positions, and later evening 
hours than provided at commercial centers to accommodate parents when 
necessary.   
 
Bernie LaBute of 636 Vanderpool, Troy, was present.  Mr. LaBute addressed the 
special needs of his daughter.  He chose to move to Troy from Ohio because of the 
excellent school system and child care providers.  He said after a short period of 
time at Mrs. Kay’s child care facility, his daughter’s skills improved.  His daughter is 
able to sign several sentences, her wants and needs, and is a happier child.  Mr. 
LaBute said his daughter has reached levels of development that were once 
thought unapproachable, and he attributes it to the warm and caring environment of 
the child care provider.   
 
Shannon Hougenid of 1715 Gardenia, Royal Oak, was present.  Ms. Hougenid is a 
child care provider and the daughter of a child care provider.  Ms. Hougenid’s 
mother stayed home during her father’s illness to help put her and her sister through 
school, as well as provide care for 12 children.  Ms. Hougenid said home day 
centers provide good values and morals to children of dual income parents and 
separated families.  Ms. Hougenid said employees at corporate day care centers 
are not allowed to hug children under their care.  She addressed the delight that 
many neighbors experience with children in the neighborhood; i.e., Halloween 
parade, dandelion bouquets, etc.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Kathleen Peterson of 1175 Garwood, Troy, was present.  Ms. Peterson has been a 
group day care provider for over 12 years and a family day care provider for 6 
years.  She said the difference between group day care and family day care is 
phenomenal.  Ms. Peterson said there is a waiting list for parents seeking home 
child day care because providers have a proven track record, are licensed by the 
State and are competitive with commercial providers.  She cited businesses such as 
Ford, Visteon, and EDS who utilize their services.  Ms. Peterson referenced an e-
mail message she received from a parent voicing the negative impact should the 
City not allow group child care providers.  Ms. Peterson said she has lived in three 
different homes in Troy and has never had any complaint from a neighbor.   
 
Kevin Brown of 1079 Rochelle Park, Rochester, was present.  Mr. Brown works in 
Troy.  He addressed commercial day care centers with respect to the inconsistency 
of care, employee turnover, and violations.  He encouraged the members to 
compare the violations cited against commercial day care providers and group and 
family day care providers.  Mr. Brown said home day care providers accommodate 
the siblings; commercial day care does not.  He said Ms. Duford of Honeybee Child 
Care creates and maintains a file on each child in terms of development, interaction 
with other children, following directions, etc.; commercial day care do no child 
evaluations.   
 
Amanda Sanday of 51472 Merowske, Shelby Twp, was present.  Ms. Sanday has 
been a group day care employee in Troy for approximately three years.  She said 
the low employee turnover rate of group day care homes provide a comfort to the 
children.  The kids come in every morning and know Ms. Amanda, Ms. Nicole and 
Mr. Curtis are there to take care of them.  Ms. Sanday said child care homes are the 
eyes and ears of the neighbors who are at work and, in essence, provide a 
neighborhood watch.  Ms. Sanday asked what the members would tell the 100 plus 
families should day care homes not be permitted, and where would the families go 
for child care.   
 
Hung Dam of 4104 Livernois, Troy, was present.  Mr. Dam is currently a group day 
care provider in Centerline and would like to open a group day care home in Troy.  
The home would specialize in the care of children who cannot speak English.   
 
Roberta Rapp of 930 John R, Troy, was present.  Ms. Rapp addressed the change 
in society and her reaction to news stories of children who are unsupervised and 
uncared for.  Ms. Rapp said day care providers who are willing to give children the 
type of care similar to what they receive at home should be supported.  She is very 
much in favor of group day care homes.   
 
Karen M. Kriscovich-Mukalla of 3784 Forge Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. 
Kriscovich-Mukalla operates Mrs. Kay’s group day care home and has been in 
business for 26 years.  She asked the record to reflect that she never had a 
complaint from any of her neighbors; neighbors located on either side of her, older 
neighbors, or newer neighbors.  Ms. Kriscovich-Mukalla said the operative word in 
day care is “care” and asked the City to look at the real issue -- the care of our 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

children.  She asked the rationale in not permitting group day care homes because 
of one complaint related to traffic, whereas a biting dog is given three chances 
before action is taken.  Ms. Kriscovich-Mukalla said child care providers answer to 
parents and must always put forth their best.  She said good care cannot be faked, 
and if a provider were not good at what he/she does, then parents would opt to go 
elsewhere, or the State would close down the home.  
 
Lenique Gibson of 685 E. Maple, Troy, was present.  Ms. Gibson operates God’s 
Precious Creations group day care.  She is married with 5 children, and has been in 
business for approximately one year.  Ms. Gibson says she provides child care 
because that is where her heart is, and not for the money.  Ms. Gibson relayed a 
story of a client whose child suffers epileptic seizures triggered from stress.  The 
child’s parent has seen an improvement in the child’s behavior and amount of 
seizures.  Ms. Gibson said the children of today are going to be sitting in the seats 
of the members in a few years.  She fully supports group day care and asked the 
members to allow it.   
 
Suzanne and Chris DeNeen of 3639 Coseyburn, Waterford, were present.  A Troy 
group day care provider cares for Mr. and Mrs. DeNeen’s son.  Mrs. DeNeen asked 
if an actual study has been undertaken on traffic in areas where there are group day 
care homes.  Mr. DeNeen said he drops off and picks up his son and has never 
experienced any problems relating to parking or traffic.  Mr. DeNeen is a teacher in 
Troy, and Mrs. DeNeen is a General Motors employee.  Mrs. DeNeen said they do 
their jobs well because their son is in a good day care home.   
 
Chair Strat asked the audience, by a show of hands, (1) how many people in the 
audience would approach the podium with similar comments as those that have 
been heard so far; (2) how many in attendance live in Troy; and (3) how many in 
attendance do not live in Troy.  Chair Strat said the Planning Commissioners 
recognize the value and importance of day care whether it is limited to 6 children or 
12 children.   
 
Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Childs addressed the 
“cons” of group day care that were identified by City Management, as follows:  (1) 
Additional Neighborhood Traffic - There might be an increase in traffic but it is a 
public road, and the public has a right to use those roads.  (2) Potential Parking 
Problems – There has been one parking complaint, the one that started this issue.  
(3) Increase in Non-residential Activity in Neighborhoods – What is more residential 
than caring for children?  (4) Potential Increase in Traffic on Major Thoroughfares – 
Public roads cannot be regulated and the public has the right to use them.  (5) 
Result from Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Request related to 19 Group Day 
Care Homes – One barking dog complaint, which could apply to any house.   
 
Mr. Childs addressed the City of Troy’s Vision and Value Statement, as follows:  (1) 
“Externally focused on customers” – Child care providers are your customers.  (2) 
“Aggressive in our efforts to improve service delivery by using the best means 
available” – Group day care is one of the best means available.  (3) “We value 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

honesty, courtesy, responsiveness, diversity, lifelong learning, ethical behavior, 
quality, cooperation, accessibility, dedication, loyalty and excellence.”  Individual 
terms addressed were:  “Honesty” – Ms. Childs called Troy and was told group day 
care was permitted.  “Diversity” – Group day care is an option.  “Lifelong Learning” – 
Starts in a home and continues in group day care.  “Accessibility” – If you eliminate 
group day care as an option, you are not providing access.  “Dedication”, “Loyalty”, 
and “Excellence” – Each child care provider here tonight is dedicated and loyal to 
the families and children and provides an excellent service.   
 
Mr. Childs said the Michigan Municipal League (MML) strongly supports House Bill 
4398, and provided a list of communities and contact persons from communities 
that permit group day home providers.  Mr. Childs believes that incorrect information 
was provided to the members on both respects.  Mr. Childs said the members 
should consider the needs of the City and the residents, and the issue should not be 
a personal preference.     
 
Sharon Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, was present.  Ms. Schafer said group day 
care homes are not usually full and that gives flexibility to family day care providers 
should a mother become pregnant.  Ms. Schafer clarified that she did not knowingly 
or intentionally open her group day care home without contacting the City.  In 1990, 
when she applied for her license, the State did not say anything about making 
contact with the municipality, and Internet access was not available at that time.  
Ms. Schafer referenced an acceptance speech given by President Bush in New 
York City on September 2, 2004, and quoted a phrase made in the statement:  “To 
build a more hopeful America, we must help our children as far as their vision and 
character can take them.”  Ms. Schafer said she believes the service provided to 
working families by day care homes helps the children and their parents reach as 
far as their vision and character can take them.  She asked for support of group day 
care in the “City of Tomorrow Today”.  She asked that Troy give working families all 
the options available so children of today will have a sound foundation to build a 
better tomorrow for Troy.  Ms. Schafer said a copy of the book prepared by child 
day care providers and distributed to Planning Commissioners would be available in 
the City library. 
 
Walter Ladouceur of 3376 Alpine Drive, of Troy, was present.  Mr. Ladouceur is a 
parent of three children and his wife is a day care home provider.  Mr. Ladouceur 
addressed the concerns of parking and traffic.  He noted that Alpine is used for 
easier egress around Somerset Collection, and curious people are attracted to the 
monster garage site.  The people have free access to “his” street and there is 
nothing he can do to stop it.  Mr. Ladouceur encouraged members to visit a day 
care home provider.  An employee of his wife’s child care home, and one of three 
teenagers in her family, said there is constant activity at her house with cars pulling 
in and out and parking on site.  Mr. Ladouceur asked the members to balance traffic 
and parking from child care home providers with other home-based activities, such 
as prayer groups, bible studies, accountants, and monster garages.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

Michelle Sinutko of 2331 Cumberland Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Sinutko is a 
licensed family day care home provider.  She is the parent of three children under 
the age of 7 and occasionally cares for her two nieces and nephew.  Ms. Sinutko 
brought to the attention of the members that, according to State law and licensing 
rules, she could have a total of 9 children under her care.  The State does not 
include in their total count children under the age of 7 who are related to the family 
day care home provider.  Ms. Sinutko also addressed traffic with respect to the 
location of the day care home provider.   
 
Deborah Reynolds of 1285 W. Wattles, Troy, was present.  Ms. Reynolds was a 
group day home provider in Troy for over 20 years.  She believes group day care 
homes are the best option for children outside of the home.  Ms. Reynolds 
completed her Master’s Degree in Special Education at Wayne State University and 
is pursuing a specialty in early childhood autism.  She offered her professional 
perspective on the positives of group day care home providers and cited several 
quotes.  Ms. Reynolds concluded that a move to prohibit group day care homes in 
the City would violate the expressed mission of the City and its dedication and 
commitment to children and their families.  
 
Michelle Lambert of 1903 Alexander Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Lambert is a 
stay-at-home mom who uses a group day care home.  She lives within 300 feet of 
the group day care home operated by Nicole Childs.  Ms. Lambert said she was not 
aware of Ms. Childs’ group day care home until after one year of living in the 
neighborhood.  She did not notice any extra traffic as a result of the home, and said 
she is outside with her two children most of the day.   
 
George Porretta of 3583 Bellows Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Porretta’s two 
children attended group day care homes for a combined 8 years.  He addressed the 
members as a businessman, not a child care home provider or resident living within 
300 feet of one.  Mr. Porretta said the Troy School District does an outstanding job 
in promoting its schools, and attracting and retaining new families to Troy.  Mr. 
Porretta said Troy’s population and tax base would be affected should group day 
care homes be prohibited, and asked the members to do what is right for the 
children and future citizens of Troy. 
 
Mary Ellen Ladouceur of 3376 Alpine Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Ladouceur has 
been a family care provider for 4 years.  She has a Master’s Degree in early 
childhood education.  Ms. Ladouceur challenged the members to read 300 to 400 
pages of research on early childhood, brain development, attachment issues, and 
the higher occurrence of autism in children who are warehoused versus children 
who are cared for in homes.  She said State law requires her to have an assistant 
because 100% of the children she cares for are under the age of 2.  Ms. Ladouceur 
said they are minutes away from foreclosure if they do not provide care for children 
in their home.  Ms. Ladouceur’s credits the training and education of her 12-year old 
daughter to the family environment provided her by Honeybee Child Care.  Ms. 
Ladouceur is a convert from commercial child care providers to the family 
environment provided by home child care providers.  She considers the parking 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

concern is a non-issue.  Ms. Ladouceur said her staff takes early childhood classes 
at Athens High School, and have indicated a preference to send their children to 
home day care providers.   
 
Ms. Kriscovich-Mukalla addressed the City Management’s “con” that group day care 
homes result in an increased use of emergency services.  She cited one incident in 
which she used emergency services. 
 
Kim Duford of 3141 McClure, Troy, was present.  Ms. Duford has operated 
Honeybee Child Care for 13 years and has lived on McClure for 22 years.  She has 
the sponsorship of Ford Motor Company, an accreditation received by meeting a 
standard of excellence in providing care to children.  Ms. Duford stated that Oakland 
County is the third highest county in Michigan for the number of parents in the work 
force, and Troy is the largest city in Oakland County with an employment population 
of approximately 100,000 people.  Ms. Duford said Troy is out of date with its child 
care choices, noting that parents of young children need to have more than two 
options for child care.  Studies have proven that the first five years of a child’s life 
are the most important years.  She quoted a statement made by Mark Sullivan, 
Executive Director of the Michigan Child Care Council:  “When parents can’t find 
child care, they can’t work.”  Ms. Duford referenced a common phrase:  Michigan 
works when child care works.  Ms. Duford cited an article published in the summer 
2004 edition of the Planning Commission Journal that addressed child care 
solutions for a growing city and family child care homes as a key element in 
strengthening a neighborhood.  Ms. Duford said locating child care homes near 
areas of high employment centers could contribute to reduce commutes and cross 
town traffic.  Ms. Duford cited the growing numbers of best companies to work for 
that offer in-house child care (statistics obtained from Fortune Magazine).  She 
asked that the Planning Department be creative in providing day care options as it 
has been in providing the City with housing, restaurants, places to worship, 
shopping and education.  In conclusion, she said there would not be a traffic 
problem if the City would stop taking away lots that formerly housed single family 
residences and putting up developments that house 500 people.  
 
Tony Anderanin of 3777 Root, Troy, was present.  Mr. Anderanin asked the 
members’ consideration in allowing group day care homes.  He and his wife both 
work, and said it was difficult to find a child care provider who provides the love that 
he cannot give while he is at work.  He said it is not fair to not have an opportunity 
to choose.  Mr. Anderanin addressed neighborhood security and the open door 
policy of a child care home provider.   
 
Jacqueline Taliaferro of 2714 Dover Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Taliaferro’s three 
grandchildren are cared for in a group day care home.  Ms. Taliaferro said her 
grandchildren receive quality individual care, and languages and computer skills are 
among many subjects taught.  She said it is her children’s prerogative to place their 
children in a group environment.  Ms. Taliaferro said her lifestyle would change 
should group day care homes not be permitted.  She has worked hard all of her life 
and raised her children and now wants to live her own life.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

Chris Thornton of 2978 Wessels, Troy, was present.  Mr. Thornton formerly lived at 
1590 Crestline and 1821 Flemington.  He said that a visit to a group day care center 
would let one see that it provides the best of both worlds.  They provide structure 
and consistency in its employees.  Mr. Thornton encouraged members to look at 
every option.  He said every child and every parent who has a child attending group 
day care would inevitably be ousted should the homes not be permitted,   
 
Barbara Webb of 787 Marengo Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Webb, a recent 
retiree from the Troy School District, has a degree in elementary education with a 
specialty in early childhood.  Ms. Webb asked that group day care homes be 
allowed to exist in Troy.  She said that would allow the professionally trained people 
who love to care for children the opportunity to do so.  Ms. Webb said she would be 
pleased if someone bought the house that is for sale next to her and opened a child 
care home.  She would rather have the traffic and noise that would be generated 
from the day care home as opposed to the semi’s and trucks that currently go up 
and down her street – the street that she and her neighbors paid to have paved 15 
years ago.  
 
Justina Dixon of 4791 Liberty Court, Sterling Heights, was present.  Ms. Dixon was 
a group day care provider for 13 years.  Ms. Dixon indicated she started as a family 
day care provider until the number of children increased with the care of siblings.  
Ms. Dixon currently works for the food program that monitors and regulates the food 
provided in day care homes.  As coordinator from Macomb County Child Care 
Providers Association, Ms. Dixon was present to show support to the Troy group.  
She commented that Mr. Chamberlain has been sleeping and should be paying 
more attention, and corrected the reference to “centers” as opposed to child care 
home providers.  Ms. Dixon indicated that the State of Michigan recognizes family 
and group day care homes as residential use of property.    She noted that there are 
several agency representatives present should the members have any questions of 
them.   
 
David Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, was present.  Mr. Schafer addressed the 
“cons” listed by City Management; i.e., traffic, noisy children, increase need for 
emergency services, and called them a red herring.  Mr. Schafer noted that there 
have been group day cares homes in Troy for decades, and the number of family 
and group day care homes and the number of commercial day care centers has 
each been determined by the marketing dynamics of supply and demand.  He said 
to suggest there is a pent-up demand for more of any one of the kinds of day care 
and that traffic and noise would increase is not logical.  He said their research 
disclosed that there were no noise or traffic complaints of any kind.  Mr. Schafer 
said it is logical that there would be fewer calls from day care homes for emergency 
services because of the State requirements; smoke detectors, fire extinguishers, fire 
drills, first aid and CPR training.  Mr. Schafer said the real question is whether or not 
the members support the children of Troy.  Mr. Schafer said that tonight’s 
comments exhibited facts, emotion, persuasion and personal experiences and he 
believes that any of the commissioners listening tonight with an honest open mind 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

would feel that approval of the Zoning Ordinance text amendment is right for the 
City of Troy.  
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 10:00 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 10:08 p.m. 

___________ 
 
Sue O’Connor of 2104 Lakeside Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. O’Connor said there 
would be no place to care for mentally disabled children should child day care 
homes not be permitted.  She stated commercial day care centers do not 
accommodate the mentally disabled.  Ms. O’Connor said Sharon Schafer cared for 
her daughter two days a week so she could work.  
 
Mark Swolem of 23832 Palace, Hazel Park, was present.  He said the next best 
thing to being cared for by mom and dad is being cared for by a child care home 
provider.  He said the City has a jewel and he cannot imagine why the City would 
think of taking it away.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Schultz offered the following resolution based upon the pending House Bill 4398 
and the volume and input, both fact and opinion, provided by the public this evening 
and in the past.  Mr. Schultz said he felt it would be premature and inappropriate to 
put a recommendation forward to City Council at this time.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-08-131 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Planning Commission shall take no further action 
related to group day care homes until such time as both houses of the State 
legislature and the Governor’s office has taken final action on House Bill 4398, or its 
corresponding Senate Bill.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts addressed concern in taking no action should the passage of the 
House Bill be detained.  She asked if day care providers would be allowed to 
continue in the interim.  Ms. Drake-Batts suggested that the Resolution be tabled to 
a certain date so the item could come back to the Commission should the House 
Bill be delayed or not passed.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

Mr. Khan suggested the 19 group day care home providers currently operating in 
the City should maintain status quo but no new group day care providers should be 
permitted.  
 
Chair Strat said it is his understanding that the existing day care home providers 
have been notified that it is a status quo situation. 
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that the Building Department sent notifications to the existing 
group day care homes informing them of the current situation and that active 
enforcement would not be occurring.  Mr. Miller provided clarification of the Zoning 
Ordinance with respect to family day care homes and group day care homes.  He 
noted that group day care homes are not being withdrawn from the ordinance, but 
they have never been included in the ordinance and therefore not permitted.  Mr. 
Miller said a newly initiated group day care home provider would not be in 
compliance with the current Zoning Ordinance.   
 
A brief discussion followed on the closing of current, existing child day care homes.   
 
Mr. Miller said it is his understanding that City Management would not be providing 
full enforcement.  He said, however, that he does not make the enforcement 
decision, so he would have to clarify City Management’s position at a later date. 
 
Mr. Littman explained the procedure followed for proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendments.  City Council would have final approval, at which time the public 
would have another opportunity to speak.  Mr. Littman said there has been no 
proposed language drafted for a vote at this time.  He noted that should the 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendment go before City Council, a 
recommendation from City Management would accommodate the City Council 
report.  Mr. Littman said it is on record that City Management is opposed to any text 
change.  Mr. Littman expects the House Bill to pass and he feels it would be 
advantageous for the City to be prepared for it.  
 
Mr. Khan said approximately 36 people spoke tonight in favor of group day homes.  
He said there appears to be a misconception that the members are trying to close 
group day care homes.  Mr. Khan said from the onset of Ms. Schafer’s approach, 
the Planning Commission requested additional information before taking any action.  
He said he does not remember anyone on the board requesting to close group day 
care homes.   
 
Mr. Wright questioned the inconsistencies between the two lists provided by the 
Planning Department as relates to the regulations of group day care homes in 
neighboring communities.  He asked for a definitive resolution on the lists. 
 
Mr. Miller explained that the most recent list comprises the research and actual 
reading of ordinance language from neighboring communities.  The first list 
comprised of information received over the phone.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 18 - 
 

Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she has publicly supported group day care homes.  She said 
she would have preferred a date on the Resolution to protect the group day care home 
providers.  She said if the State does not pass the Bill, or the Bill gets stuck some 
place, then group day care homes would be in limbo.  Ms. Drake-Batts said it is 
important to start working on the language now.   
 
Mr. Littman said his previous comments expressed why he voted no on the 
Resolution.  He stated that City Manager and staff work for City Council.   
 
Chair Strat provided an explanation of the Resolution passed this evening.  He said 
nothing would happen to existing day care home providers but new day care home 
providers would have to adhere by the current Zoning Ordinance; in essence not be 
permitted.  Chair Strat said that Ms. Schafer would be okay. 
 
Ms. Schafer said she would like to hear from Mark Miller that she would not be cited 
with another violation until passage of the Bill.  Ms. Schafer noted that there are 
members on the Planning Commission who said they were dead set against group 
day care homes.   
 
Mr. Miller said he unfortunately could not give Ms. Schafer the assurance for which 
she is asking because the Planning Department does not have jurisdiction on 
enforcement issues.  He said he would guarantee to get an opinion and direction from 
City Management based upon tonight’s decision.  Mr. Miller provided clarification with 
respect to a City Council action relating to day care centers in the O-S-C, R-C and O-M 
districts.   
 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
David Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, applauded the members for the decision to 
table the ZOTA because of pending legislation.  He offered his services as 
chairperson for a committee to work on zoning ordinance language as relates to day 
care home providers.  He suggested that a dialogue be established in an informal 
setting to arrive at language that would be acceptable to all.  
 
Sharon Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, said she was confused because she was 
positive the Planning Department drafted proposed language.  
 
Chair Strat said language might have been prepared, but the point is the item has 
been postponed until action is taken by the State.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 19 - 
 

Mr. Schultz said the Public Hearing notice contained no proposed language; 
therefore no language could be voted on tonight.  He said the Public Hearing was to 
seek public input, not to pass ordinance language. 
 
Chair Strat stated the members wanted everyone to have an opportunity to speak 
on group day care homes, including everyone who lives within 300 feet of child care 
home providers.   
 
Ms. Schafer asked when she would know that Mr. Miller has spoken with City 
Management.   
 
Chair Strat assured Ms. Schafer that the City would be cooperative and Mr. Miller 
would keep in contact with her.   
 
Mr. Schafer asked if he understood correctly that another Public Hearing would be 
scheduled if zoning ordinance language were proposed in the future.   
 
Chair Strat replied that Mr. Schafer understood correctly.   

 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Motzny said it is his understanding that a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance 
text amendment was published in the notice of tonight’s Public Hearing.  It is his opinion 
that tonight’s meeting was an official Public Hearing on a proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment.   
 
Mr. Miller said language was published and that the Public Hearing was official and noticed 
appropriately by State law.  Mr. Miller said it was clear that the intent of the Planning 
Commission was to gain input from the Public Hearing.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain stated that, contrary to public belief, he was not sleeping.  He provided an 
explanation for his “Points of Order” in requesting speakers to identify themselves and 
state their addresses.  Mr. Chamberlain tracked statistics on the Public Hearing speakers:  
13 Troy residents who use day care in Troy, 16 providers of day care in Troy, 3 providers 
of day care in other cities, and 4 neighboring residents who use day care in Troy.  Mr. 
Chamberlain said he is upset that he was accused of sleeping when he takes pride in 
paying attention.  
 
Mr. Waller extended appreciation to everyone who invested in tonight’s Public Hearing.  
He said the comments were a help to him and he feels it is a very important subject for all 
of southeast Michigan.  Mr. Waller said we do not live in a vacuum and obviously cannot 
make decisions in a vacuum.   
 
Chair Strat shared results of his research on group day care homes of other communities.  
Group day care homes of many communities exist but are illegal as it relates to their 
particular ordinances.  It is his understanding that other communities are watching Troy 
and other neighboring communities to see what actions are taken.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 20 - 
 

Ms. Drake-Batts thanked everyone for coming to the Public Hearing.  She acknowledged 
the time spent on research and books.  She said it was good to hear and good to see the 
community come out for something positive.  Ms. Drake-Batts encouraged the community 
to request City Council that the item come back for a resolution should the House Bill not 
be passed by the 1st of the year.   
 
Mr. Littman said he is confused and thought there was no proposed language agreed on 
by the members to have published in the Public Hearing notice.  Mr. Littman asked what 
action would be taken should proposed language that is different than what has been 
published be drafted. 
 
Mr. Motzny stated that the statute provides that any zoning ordinance text amendment 
requires a report and at least one Public Hearing.  He said there is no limitation on the 
number of Public Hearings and if an amendment is prepared that is substantially different 
than what was published, the Planning Commission has authority to have an additional 
Public Hearing should it see fit.   
 
Mr. Schultz commented on tonight’s Public Hearing.  He said the Public Hearing was 
official and the members agreed to table the item.  He said he is confident there will be 
additional advertising and an additional Public Hearing should a proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendment be drafted in the future.  Mr. Schultz said the Public Hearing 
started this evening with a comment that the City has not formulated a problem.  Mr. 
Schultz said, in his view, the Planning Commission is not debating whether to close group 
day care homes, but debating whether to allow businesses with employees to proliferate in 
residential neighborhoods.  He said it is a very weighty subject that has a great impact on 
the 80,000+ people who live in the City’s residential neighborhoods.  Mr. Schultz said 
home businesses such as accountants and photographers are one-man operations with no 
employees.   
 
Mr. Schultz distributed copies of the current Planning Commission bylaws, and asked the 
members to review the bylaws and provide corrections and/or revisions at the next 
scheduled study session.   
 
Chair Strat agreed to put the bylaws on the next agenda.   
 
Mr. Kulesza thanked everyone for attending the Public Hearing. He reviewed his research 
on House Bill 4398.  It is understood that the Bill will be under full consideration by the 
Senate most likely in October, and it appears to have a lot of support from the Senate.  Mr. 
Kulesza said he would continue his research and report to the Board.   
 
Mr. Savidant provided a clarification on the two tables prepared by the Planning 
Department on group day care homes in surrounding communities.  The table dated April 
30, 2004 encompassed research from zoning ordinances on file or available on-line.  The 
June 17, 2005 table encompassed basically the same research but was followed up with 
phone calls.  The June 17, 2005 table is more accurate.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 9, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 21 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\08-09-05 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 23, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on August 23, 2005 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Gary Chamberlain 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan (arrived 7:32 p.m.) 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz (arrived 8:27 p.m.) 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director (arrived 9:10 p.m.) 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-08-132 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Khan and Schultz are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Littman, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Absent: Khan (arrived 7:32 p.m.), Schultz (arrived 8:27 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Mr. Wright requested that the August 2, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes reflect 
that there was no Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) meeting on which to report 
(Agenda Item #3). 
 
[Mr. Khan arrived at 7:32 p.m.] 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 23, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-08-133 
Moved by:  Waller 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the August 2, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
amended. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Littman, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: None 
Abstain: Khan, Wright 
Absent: Schultz (arrived 8:27 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

4. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the following. 
 
• PUD 4, The Monarch Private Residences, North side of Big Beaver Road 

between Alpine and McClure – Approval of public benefit by City Council 
• Rezoning Application Z 705, West side of Rochester Road, North of Creston 

between Long Lake and Trinway, from R-1C to R-1T – At its August 15, 2005 
Regular Meeting, City Council postponed the request to its September 12, 2005 
Regular Meeting because the petitioner was not present.   

• Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 212) Articles IV, XXV, XXVI and 
XXVII - Freestanding Restaurants, Banks and Daycare Facilities in the R-C, O-M 
and O-S-C Districts – Approved by City Council at its August 15, 2005 Regular 
Meeting.   

• Reminder that there is no Planning Commission Meeting on the 1st Tuesday of 
September because of the Labor Day holiday. – The next scheduled Planning 
Commission meeting is September 13, 2005 (Regular Meeting). 

• Troy Futures Project and Big Beaver Road Corridor Study – Mr. Miller will 
provide a report on both items during The Good of the Order portion of the 
meeting.   

• Bharatiya Temple Parking Lot Expansion – Communication from Bloomfield Hills 
resident with concerns relating to parking, traffic and emergency vehicle access 
and the Planning Department written response were distributed to members.  
Mr. Waller suggested copies of the correspondence be forwarded to township 
officials.   

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 23, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Wright reported on the August 16, 2005 BZA meeting.  
 
• 1639 E. Big Beaver Road, North side of Big Beaver between John R and 

Rochester Road – Request for relief of ordinance requirement for 14,738 square 
feet of landscaping was postponed to the September agenda.   

 
A brief discussion followed on development of properties zoned P-1 and E-P.   
 
 

6. PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS 
 
Potential changes to the Bylaws outlined by Mr. Waller were reviewed and discussed 
in depth.  Comments and suggestions were received by members and noted by Mr. 
Waller.   
 
[Mr. Schultz arrived at 8:27 p.m.] 
 
Mr. Waller will make revisions to the potential changes for discussion at a future 
meeting.   
 

___________ 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-08-134 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To move Agenda Item #9 for discussion prior to Agenda Item #7.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

___________ 
 

9. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 921) – Proposed Briggs Crossing Condominium, North side 
of Lamb, East side of Rochester Road, Section 14 – R-1T and R-1C 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a brief summary of the proposed Briggs Crossing 
Condominium.   
 
Brad Byarski of 2617 Beacon Hill, Auburn Hills, was present to represent the 
petitioner, Michigan Home Builders.  Mr. Byarski provided an overview of two 
development concepts.  One design provides a storm water detention pond in the 
northeast corner of the property and 61 units.  The alternate design provides a “wet” 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 23, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

storm water retention pond, a park area and 66 units; this concept would require a 
5-foot front yard setback variance.   
 
Comments were solicited from around the table.  Members voiced concerns with the 
proposed setbacks, density, parking and sidewalks.   
 
Mr. Byarski provided an update on the proposed PUD 5, Caswell Town Center, 
located on the east side of Rochester Road, south of South Boulevard.   
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 9:00 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:08 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

7. PROPOSED FUTURE LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT – Rochester Road 
between South Blvd. and Square Lake Road 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a brief review of the “Binson’s Rezoning” that was postponed 
by City Council to the first Regular City Council meeting scheduled in March 2006, 
and City Council’s direction to the Planning Commission that consideration be given 
to amending the Future Land Use Plan in the Rochester Road Corridor between 
Square Lake and South Boulevard.     
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the process for amending the Future Land Use Plan and 
outlined an approximate time line for the process. 
 
[Mr. Miller arrived at 9:10 p.m.] 
 
Mr. Miller led the in-depth discussion in identifying problems and opportunities 
related to the section of Rochester Road between South Boulevard and Square 
Lake Road.   
 
Problems 
• Depth of properties 
• Variety of zoning districts and land uses (not a set pattern) 
• Too many curb cuts 
• Traffic volume (difficult to market residential) 
• Mixed PUD use 
• Signalization (lack of) along Rochester Road 
• Small number of parcels affected by development pressure 
• Protection of residential uses 
• Right-of-way build-out incomplete 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 23, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Opportunities 
• New development on east side of Rochester Road 
• Current trends 
• Traffic volume (access to expressways) 
• Residential use above retail use 
• Mixed PUD use 
• Overlay 
• Input from new homeowners/developers 
• Public input session 
 
 

8. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the Comprehensive Plan adoption process and the approximate 
time line.  Mr. Miller said completion of the Comprehensive Plan could take up to two 
years.  Mr. Miller noted that the Big Beaver Corridor Study and Troy Futures project 
would be completed before initiating the Comprehensive Plan and recommendations 
of the two studies would be incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
Mr. Miller reported that he has been charged with the Image and Presentation element 
of the Troy Futures project and would welcome suggestions from members.   
 
Chair Strat said there are steps that the Planning Commission can take prior to the 
completion of the Big Beaver Corridor Study and Troy Futures project.   
 
 

10. REVIEW OF SEPTEMBER 13, 2005 REGULAR MEETING 
 
This item was not discussed. 
 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Vleck addressed maintenance of brick pavers on City property and landscaped islands 
located within parking lots of commercial developments.  He suggested that landscaped 
islands be addressed more directly during the site plan approval process.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain suggested swales and natural grasses and plantings instead of raised 
landscaped beds.   
 
Mr. Savidant suggested cuts into the curbs so water could get to the swales. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 23, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Mr. Miller announced that SEMCOG is hosting a “green” seminar at the Marriott Hotel and 
a tour of the Kresge Foundation property.  Details will be provided. 
 
Mr. Waller said the planned transit center has a LEED rating application in the plans. 
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the lack of maintenance of landscaped areas on vacant commercial 
and office buildings. 
 
Mr. Littman suggested that a tour of the Kresge Foundation property be arranged for the 
members.   
 
Mr. Miller identified the following seminars might be of interest and beneficial to those 
attending the Michigan Association of Planning Annual Conference.   
 

• Conditional Rezoning 
• Successful Projects, Successful Partnerships between Community and Developer 
• Best Practices for Innovative Planning and Zoning  
• Form-Based Codes:  Improving Community Design 

 
Chair Strat informed the members that City Manager notified him that the State legislature 
is not going forward with the proposed modifications for group day care homes [House Bill 
4398].  Mr. Szerlag requested the Planning Commission to resume action on the proposed 
zoning ordinance text amendment [ZOTA 214].  
 
There was a brief discussion with respect to the plan of action.   
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\08-23-05 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Sept. 1, 2005 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Sept. 
1 2005 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting to order at 
10:02 AM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair Jo Rhoads, Member 
 Pauline Noce, Member James Berar, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member    David Ogg, Member 
 Marie Hoag, Member Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent: Bud Black, Member  
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming, Wade Fleming, Kim Haveraneck, Jack Grushko 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2005-09-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads  
Seconded by Pauline Noce  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of June 2, 2005 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming announced that Troy is one of four school districts in metro Detroit and the only 
one in Oakland County to receive an "A+" rating from the Detroit News, following a 
comprehensive analysis of school quality factors.  

City Council candidate Wade Fleming introduced himself to the committee. 
 
Old Business 
  
Senior Centers in Neighboring Cities:  There were no new visits to report this month.  
 
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Merrill Dixon reported that the Parks and Recreation 
Department would like to proceed with the project and they are looking at funding options.  
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Kim Haveraneck and Jack Grushko from 
Emerald Food Service attended the meeting to discuss the catering contract.  The committee 
is recommending a change in the contract that will allow non-profit groups to bring in their own 
snacks for meetings (These groups would be required to use the caterer for meals.)  The 
committee’s contention is that many of these groups do not have funds to hire a caterer.  Jack 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Sept. 1, 2005 

2 

Grushko stated that this would open the floodgate to non-profit groups that would book “their 
rooms” and thus reduce the space available to for-profit groups who might use Emerald Food 
Service.   Kim stated that they are just performing the contract and she should not be to one 
the Committee is talking to.  The Committee has met with Parks and Recreation staff, and will 
reiterate their position to City Council via written correspondence.   The Committee requests 
specifics from the Parks and Recreation Department as to when the contract is up and the 
timetable for negotiations.       
 
 
New Business 
 
Michigan Senior Olympics:  In response to Mr. Berar’s inquiry about which Michigan Senior 
Olympics sports we offer seniors an opportunity to participate in, Carla reported that Senior 
Olympics events are archery, badminton, bowling, cycling, golf, horseshoes, race walk, 
racquetball, road race, shuffleboard, swimming, table tennis, tennis, track and field, basketball, 
softball, and volleyball.  The state records are listed on the website, so potential participants 
would know what they are up against.  Troy offers bowling, golf, table tennis, tennis, 
basketball, softball and volleyball.  Badminton was offered last year but was cancelled due to 
lack of interest.    
 
Annual Report:  Carla distributed copies of the annual senior report for FY 04/05.  The 
committee will review it and discuss it at their next meeting. 
 
Parking:  Mr. Berar reported that all of the handicap parking spaces at the east entrance were 
taken and he would like to see more spaces added.  Carla will instigate and report back next 
month.  The number of spaces available does meet ADA requirements and exceeds 
requirements at the senior entrance. 
 
Troy Daze:  Marie Hoag reported that there will be a bocce ball demonstration at senior day at 
Troy Daze. 
 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported that the Park Board did not meet in June, July and August, 
and they will not meet in September.  
 
Medi-Go:   Jo Rhoads reported that they are doing great and are very busy. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that new programs this fall include bridge lessons, a “mental 
aerobics” class, knitting lessons, and a strength-training workshop where participants will 
receive a handbook with a routine that they can do at home.  This workshop is part of the 
national “You Can” campaign.  
 
OLHSA:  No report. 
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was one suggestion that the reading room remain 
open during bingo.  Reading room hours are posted as “subject to change if Room 402 is in 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Sept. 1, 2005 

3 

use,” and the bingo players have found it disruptive to have people cutting through the room 
during bingo.  The Committee recommended keeping the room closed during bingo.         
 
 
 
Comments:  None 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:35 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair      
 
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 6, 2005 

I.  CALL TO ORDER 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, September 6, 
2005 at Troy City Hall – Conference Room C. Meeting was called to order at 7:04 p.m. 
 
II.  MEMBERS PRESENT 
Present: 
Padma Kuppa   
Oniell Shah  
Anju Brodbine 
Tom Kaszubski 
Jeff Hyun 
Charles Yuan (left early) 
Cindy Stewart, EIAB Liaison 
 
Absent: 
Hailu Robele 
Flora Tan         

 
Guests: 
Lulu Guo, sophomore @ Troy High, Kelly Gu, senior @ troy High (potential student reps),Tim 
McAvoy, Troy Schools, Mary Kerwin, Dale Zygnowicz, Debbie Williamson 
 
     
III.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Moved by Anju Brodbine 
Seconded by Charles Yuan 

 
RESOLVED that the minutes from the August 2, 2005 Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Meeting 
are approved.  Approved unanimously. 

 
 

V.   NEW BUSINESS 
A. Debbie Williamson, NCCJ Program Director  
National Conference for Community and Justice (NCCJ).  Since 1927, and locally for 
approx. 50 years.  Began when discrimination in our country based on religious 
beliefs. NCJJ promotes understanding of differences.  

• Mission: fight all forms of bias, bigotry, and racism.  
• Vision: empower leaders, leadership teams.  
• Interfaith Component-Fighting and advocating for justice. Workplace diversity 

(governmental, non-profits, businesses, community groups).  
• Leadership in the new century (LINC), schools component.  
• Teacher Training: just completed this, 45 teachers from 12 districts. How 

schools can connect with the community through service.  
• Youth Leadership Program: 

Identify a leadership team and work on programs within the school population. 
Started with high school – recently moving to Middle School. Developmental in 
nature - Introductory opportunities to talk about differences (religion, race, 
ethnics, gender, socio-economic, class, physical challenges, etc.).  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 6, 2005 

• Adolescents are learning who they are, where their own value systems are, 
family beliefs/values. We are not born bigoted – we learn this.  
This program gives young people the chance to learn about differences. The 
program looks for young people to be catalysts for change.  

• Piloted a Museum Middle School project this summer (Charles Wright African 
American Museum, Henry Ford Museum, Arab American Museum). Program 
begins in June.  

• Detroit Metro area  “Any Town”, one-week retreat - individual training. 40-60 
high school students live and work together for one week, get past ones comfort 
zone.  

• Fall Cross Town Retreat, 2 days –Leadership Team, team of 8-12 students with 
advisor and 8-12 teams brought together –look at their individual biases and 
how it effects interaction with others.  

• Diversity produces dynamics that pose challenges in how we get along.  
• Predominant problems/tension come out due to religion, race, sexual 

orientation, students with disabilities, gender. Program helps them develop 
action plans.  

• Programs throughout the Year - info sent to all high schools. 
o Diversity Summit (1 day, on a Saturday) 20 workshops related to action plans 

ex. Skill building & content from Cross Town Summit discussions.  
• Spring Conference-Diversity Connections: 400-500 students share dialogue on 

issues facing their schools and celebrate accomplishments.  
• Commitment to Change Program: approximately 25 school administrations 

support this activity along with adult workshops.  
• Orientation and Dialogue: October 1, 2005, new this year.  
• Other workshops throughout the year include cultural arts challenge, facilitation 

training.  
• The LINC program helps students to facilitate change in their communities and 

better understand diversity.  
 

Deb Williamson asked about the EIAB’s mission/goals.  Although we are a very 
diverse community, it’s very segregated. At our Sights and Sounds programs, each 
individual ethnic population draws from their own at the event.  

 
• NCCJ/LINC, receives funding from grants, foundations, major corporations, 

annual fundraising dinner, walkathon, golf outing.  
• Tim McAvoy, Troy Schools has used their services with some tough issues. 

They are very well respected in the educational realm.  
• This is an ongoing process. We’re very good at learning about different 

cultures-food, music, dance, language. But it needs to go deeper, open 
dialogue re: stereotypes.   

• NCCJ Different People-Common Ground Program, 10-15 people/session 
(9 hrs) community groups, corporations who need to work with differences look 
at our own attitudes and how they affect our behavior.  
 

EIAB might be able to fund a program for the Troy High Schools through 
LINC.  Debbie suggests maybe putting together workshops of adults and 
student representatives from Boards and TYC.  Suggestion to look at Peer 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 6, 2005 

Mediators who are at Middle Schools and High Schools. Schools would 
probably have a problem with students missing school time.  

 
NCCJ would facilitate with EIAB, TYC, and other student representatives 
identifying issues and how to develop action plan. Tim McAvoy would like to 
involve Troy and Athens principals.  

 
Debbie: Idea for retreat dealing with Troy’s diversity “Any Town” for a large 
group of Troy high school students (60-80 students) (ex. Peer Mediators as 
a diverse group), or diverse mix from all “groups” at high schools.  

 
Time is of the essence related to funding.  Tentative plan for EIAb: 

 
1. School District - get tentative approval 
2. NCCJ develop a plan involving high school youth in Troy on Diversity (1-2 

page proposal) 
3. Write a proposal/plan with cost.  
4. Facilitate process choosing students  
5. Implement the plan  
 

Tim McAvoy will go back to School Administration. NCCJ has already made 
preliminary proposals to Troy schools.  
 

B. EIAB Goals – postpone to November meeting. 
 

VI. OLD BUSINESS 
A.  Brochures – after Troy Daze  
B. EthniCity – Booth at Troy Daze Schedule 

Saturday, 2-3 pm, Oneill    3-4 pm Amin /Jeff  
Sunday: Anju 2-3 pm    Padma 3-4 pm 

C. Law Brochure – after Troy Daze 
D. Sights and Sounds World Bazar: get applicants – we still do not have enough 

applicants to hold this event.  
 
VII. MOTION TO ADJOURN  
 
Moved by Padma Kuppa 
Seconded by Anju Brodbine 
 
RESOLVED that the Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Meeting be adjourned at 9:11 pm.  
Approved unanimously. 
 
_____________________________ 
Tom Kaszubski, EIA Chair 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIA Recording Secretary 



campbellld
Text Box
J-02a























































DATE:        September 6, 2005
TO:            John Szerlag, City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of August 2005

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 2 $600,500.00 $4,380.00

Sub Total 2 $600,500.00 $4,380.00

COMMERCIAL
New 1 $184,000.00 $1,433.00
Shell New 1 $100,000.00 $845.00
Fnd./Shell New 1 $1,000,000.00 $7,145.00
Tenant Completion 3 $95,000.00 $1,100.00
Add/Alter 20 $4,859,000.00 $36,213.00

Sub Total 26 $6,238,000.00 $46,736.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 8 $1,744,116.00 $12,989.00
Add/Alter 36 $875,440.00 $10,196.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 10 $46,497.00 $1,059.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 7 $68,369.00 $1,057.00
Wreck 4 $0.00 $210.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 1 $15,000.00 $250.00

Sub Total 66 $2,749,422.00 $25,761.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 21 $3,527,915.00 $27,783.00
Add/Alter 5 $16,490.00 $435.00

Sub Total 26 $3,544,405.00 $28,218.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 63 $0.00 $6,825.00
Fences 19 $0.00 $305.00

Sub Total 82 $0.00 $7,130.00

TOTAL 202 $13,132,327.00 $112,225.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF AUGUST 2005
NO. PERMIT FEE

Cert. of Occupancy 54 $4,443.15
Plan Review 204 $11,890.00
Microfilm 29 $541.00
Building Permits 202 $112,225.00
Electrical Permits 228 $17,455.00
Heating Permits 172 $9,143.00
Air Cond. Permits 87 $3,865.00
Refrigeration Permits 1 $60.00
Plumbing Permits 156 $18,887.00
Storm Sewer Permits 35 $957.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 30 $1,056.00
Sewer Taps 29 $9,810.00

TOTAL 1227 $190,332.15

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF AUGUST 2005
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 36 $180.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 27 $405.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 21 $21.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 3 $150.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 7 $70.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 1 $15.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 7 $70.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 30 $300.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 1 $15.00

TOTAL 132 $1,211.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2004 2004 2005 2005

JANUARY 100 $5,235,481.00 93 $6,617,765.00

FEBRUARY 130 $21,354,496.00 133 $8,586,755.00

MARCH 158 $9,372,242.00 143 $19,405,253.00

APRIL 178 $14,158,227.00 234 $16,039,899.00

MAY 232 $11,511,644.00 229 $8,974,377.00

JUNE 232 $16,224,865.00 207 $14,432,280.00

JULY 178 $19,788,711.00 176 $7,490,327.00

AUGUST 224 $11,179,780.00 202 $13,132,327.00

SEPTEMBER 198 $13,582,037.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 197 $11,540,976.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 161 $6,232,506.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 148 $7,316,487.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 2136 $147,497,452.00 1417 $94,678,983.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2005

3

22

38

53

9 11 15
8

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Sep 6, 2005 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF AUGUST 2005Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter 2800 W BIG BEAVER S-224  133,000.00DEJAGER CONSTRUCTION INC
Commercial, Add/Alter 2801 W BIG BEAVER D-102  132,000.00ELDER-JONES
Commercial, Add/Alter 755 W BIG BEAVER 15 FL  400,000.00SYNERGY GROUP, INC.
Commercial, Add/Alter 755 W BIG BEAVER 25 FL  400,000.00SYNERGY GROUP, INC.
Commercial, Add/Alter 755 W BIG BEAVER 24 FL  400,000.00SYNERGY GROUP, INC.
Commercial, Add/Alter 755 W BIG BEAVER 14 FL  400,000.00SYNERGY GROUP, INC.
Commercial, Add/Alter 2901 W BIG BEAVER  300,000.00HEALY CONSTRUCTION
Commercial, Add/Alter 1525 E MAPLE  300,000.00MICK WHITE RENOVATIONS, INC.
Commercial, Add/Alter 800 TOWER 400  300,000.00THE GALE CONSTRUCTION CO
Commercial, Add/Alter 2155 BUTTERFIELD 200  220,000.00MIKE KOLLEN
Commercial, Add/Alter 230 W MAPLE  250,000.00R D K CONSTRUCTION
Commercial, Add/Alter 101 W BIG BEAVER 525  150,000.00KIRCO CONSTRUCTION LLC
Commercial, Add/Alter 2801 W BIG BEAVER J-230  600,000.00VERN SNIDER
Commercial, Add/Alter 1650 RESEARCH 165  287,000.00DAVE DIESON
Commercial, Add/Alter 1820 E BIG BEAVER 2ND FL  355,000.00DAVE DIESON

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  4,627,000.00

Commercial, Fnd/Shell New 888 W BIG BEAVER 111  1,000,000.00MATT HICKS

Commercial, Fnd/Shell NewTotal  1,000,000.00

Commercial, New Building 1634 JOHN R  184,000.00SCS ENGINEERING

Commercial, New BuildingTotal  184,000.00

Industrial, Add/Alter 1755 MAPLELAWN D  600,000.00CHARLES BENNETT

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  600,000.00

Total Valuation:  6,411,000.00Records  19



BRIEF SUMMARY OF PLAN PROVISIONS 
 

REGULAR RETIREMENT (no reduction factor for age) 
Eligibility - T.P.O.A., T.C.O.A.; Fire Staff Officers members:  25 years of service; or age 60 with 10 years of service.  AFSCME 
Members:  Age 50 with 27 years of service; or age 60 with 10 years of service.  Classified or Exempt and General Clerical 
Members:  Age 50 with 27 years of service; or age 55 with 25 years of service; or age 60 with 10 years of service.
Mandatory Retirement Age - None.
Annual Amount

 

Division Division 
 

Benefit Supplemental Benefit 
T.P.O.A. 2.80% * FAC * Service 1.00% * FAC * Over 25 Yrs  (75% max.) 
T.C.O.A. 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 
General, AFSCME 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 
General Classified/Exempt 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 
General Clerical 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 
T.F.S.O.A. 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 

 

Type of Final Average Compensation - Highest 3 years out of last 10.
EARLY RETIREMENT (age reduction factor used) 

Eligibility - Age 55 with 10 years of service. 
Annual Amount – Computed as regular retirement benefit but reduced by 1/2% for each month by which retirement 
precedes age 60. 

DEFERRED RETIREMENT (vested benefits) 

Eligibility - 10 years of service.  Benefit payable at age 60. 
Annual Amount – Same as regular retirement but based on credited service and final average compensation at 
termination. 

DUTY DISABILITY RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - No age or service requirement.  Workers’ compensation must be payable. 
Annual Amount – Same as regular retirement.  Upon termination of workers’ compensation the benefit is recomputed to 
grant service credit for the period in receipt of workers’ compensation.  Minimum benefit is based on 10 years of credited 
service (66-2/3% of final average compensation for non-command/exempt public safety members, while in receipt of 
workers’ compensation). 

NON-DUTY DISABILITY RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - 5 years of service (10 years for Exempt and Classified, AFSCME, employees hired after 2/96, MAP 
employees hired after 9/22/95, T.F.S.O.A. employees). 
Annual Amount – Same as regular retirement, but with a minimum benefit based on 10 years of credited service. 

DUTY DEATH BEFORE RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - No age or service requirement. 
Annual Amount – Widow’s benefit equal to regular retirement benefit actuarially reduced in accordance with a 100% 
joint and survivor election.  Minimum benefit is 25% (50% for Command Officers T.P.O.A. and T.F.S.O.A.) of final 
average compensation.  If no widow, children under 18 share equally in 25% (50% for Command Officers T.P.O.A.and 
T.F.S.O.A.) of final average compensation. 

NON-DUTY DEATH BEFORE RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - 10 years service. 
Annual Amount – Same as regular retirement but reduced in accordance with a 100% joint and survivor election. 
AUTOMATIC DEATH BENEFIT AFTER RETIREMENT:  None 
POST-RETIREMENT ADJUSTMENTS:  One time increases were granted in 1973, 1977, 1978, 1981, 1983, 1989 
and 1999. 
HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUM SUBSIDY:  Post-retirement health insurance premiums are subsidized as 
follows: 
T.F.S.O.A., T.C.O.A., T.P.O.A. - City pays a percentage of monthly premium up to 100% based on (4% x completed years 
of service).  Classified, Exempt, AFSCME, Clerical - City pays a percentage of monthly premium up to 100% based on 
(4% x completed years of service) or $400/month, whichever is greater. 
 

G: my documents\retirement board\retirement reports\summary annual report to members 12-31-04.doc 

 City of Troy 
Retirement System 

 
 
 

SUMMARY ANNUAL REPORT TO MEMBERS 
DECEMBER 31, 2004 

 
 
 
Dear Retirement System Member: 
 
The Retirement System, which is managed by the Retirement Board, is designed 
to help you meet your financial needs should you become disabled, retire or die. 
 
The Retirement Board’s fiduciary responsibility to you is to supervise the general 
administration of the System and invest its assets. Under Act 485 of 1996 we are 
providing this Summary Annual Report. 
 
We have prepared this summary report to give you a brief overview of the 
Retirement System and how it operates. We hope you will find it useful and 
informative. However, a summary cannot cover all the details of the System, 
which is governed by the provisions of the City’s charter, the City’s retirement 
ordinance and the Retirement Board’s official rules and regulations. Additional 
information about the System and its financial operation is available in the City 
Manager’s office. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  

The Retirement Board Actuaries and Consultants 
City of Troy Retirement System  
 • Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
John Szerlag, City Manager Auditors and Accountants 
John M. Lamerato, Finance Director  
Mark A. Calice, Citizen Trustee • Rehmann Robson 
Thomas Houghton, Trustee  
Michael Geise, Trustee  
Steven A. Pallotta, Trustee  
William R. Need, Ex-Officio  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



SUMMARY RESULTS OF ACTUARIAL VALUATION 

Stock - 70% 

Bonds - 23% 

Real Estate - 2% 
Cash - 5%    

 
Your retirement system’s financial objective is to establish and receive 
contributions which will remain approximately level from year to year and will 
not have to be increased for future generations of taxpayers. Contribution levels 
are expressed in terms of percents of the city’s active member payroll. 
 
To determine an appropriate Employer contribution level for the ensuing year and 
to gauge how the system’s funding is meeting this fundamental objective, an 
independent firm of actuaries and employee benefit consultants, Gabriel, Roeder, 
Smith & Company, conducts annual actuarial valuations. 
 
These valuations are based on your System’s past experience, information about 
current participation and financial markets, and assumptions concerning the 
System’s future demographic and economic activity.  The results of the 
December 31, 2004 valuation, based on the established funding objective, are 
summarized below: 
 

   Fiscal Year 2005/06  
Employer Contribution Rates 

As a Percentage of Active Member Payroll 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Funded Status*                                                                             $ Millions 
 

• Actuarial accrued liabilities $109.4 
• Applied assets (market related value) $126.8 
• % funded 115.9% 

 
Actuary’s Opinion 
 
It is the actuary’s opinion that the required contribution rate determined by the 
most recent actuarial valuation is sufficient to meet the system’s funding 
objective, presuming continued receipt of required contributions when due. 
 
*Percent funded is for pension benefits only.  The City adopted a Health Care 
Trust Plan to provide for retiree health care effective July 1, 2005. 
 
 

SUMMARY OF CURRENT ASSET INFORMATION 
 
 

   Revenues & Expenses 
 

 2004 
  

  
  

Fund Balance - January 1 $157,797,742 

Revenues
 Member contributions 333,305 
 Employer contributions 1,571,547 
 Investment income 12,763,027
 Total 14,667,879 
  

  Expenses
 Benefit payments 4,482,783 
 Refund of member contributions 335,998 
 Administrative expenses 29,322 
 Health Insurance Premiums       1,254,559
 Total 6,102,662 
  
Market Value - December 31 $166,362,959    

Contributions for General Public Safety 
Normal Cost of Benefits   
   Total 15.21% 22.74% 
   Member portion   1.22   3.72
   Employer portion 13.99 19.02 
Amortization of Unfunded Liability (10.35) (19.02) 
Post-Retirement Health Care   7.27   3.57
Computed Employer Rate 10.91% 3.57% 

 
 

Investments 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The market rate of return on system assets for the year ended December 31, 
2004 was 8.2%, net after expenses. 



campbellld
Text Box
J-02e



 

   Memorandum 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From: John Szerlag, City Manager 

John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

Date: September 15, 2005 
Subject: Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Appointments 
 
 
The Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Appointment resolution indicated appointing 
members to either a two-year or three-year term. The initial appointments did not 
refer to the term length of the appointed members and therefore all were given 
the three-year term designation.  
 
As a measure to stagger terms, it is recommended that the two-year and three-
year staggering provision be implemented with these appointments. Due to the 
active motion before Council reference being tied to the agenda showing a three-
year-term designation, this can be accomplished by making the remaining 
appointments to two-year terms.  
 
Should Council desire to re-appoint any of the members to a two-year term, a 
substitute amendment to change the term lengths of the re-appointments would 
be required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02f



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



mccombca
Text Box
J-05







campbellld
Text Box
J-06



 
 
DATE:   September 15, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Effective Date of New Sign Ordinance 
 
 
 
 
At the September 12, 2005, City Council Meeting revisions to the sign ordinance were 
approved by City Council.  That resolution, as well as the provisions of Article 5.3 of the 
City Charter state that the effective date of that action shall be not earlier than ten days 
after enactment or before publication thereof.  The revised ordinance language has 
been sent for publication and should appear in the September 19, 2005 edition of the 
Troy-Somerset Gazette.  Therefore, the effective date of the revised ordinance 
language will be September 22, 2005, ten days after enactment. 
 
Any signs placed prior to that date would be subject to the limitations of the current text 
of the Sign Ordinance and in particular the limitation of placing political signs not more 
than 30 days before an election found within Section 3 (2) of Chapter 85A of the Troy 
City Code. 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07



campbellld
Text Box
J-08





 
September 15, 2005 

 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  List of Study Items for Upcoming Council Meetings 
 
 
 
Here is my recommended schedule for topics to be discussed at our regular City 
Council meetings that have been designated for study items: 
 
September 26 Water Feasibility Study 
 New Election Equipment Demo 
 Charter Amendment Informational Brochure 
  
October 24 DDA Public Hearing 
  
November 28 Results of City Manager’s Interviews with Council Members 
 Goals and Objectives 
  
December ~No third meeting~ 
  
January ‘06 Pre-Budget Discussions 
  
February ‘06 Blight 
  
March Planned Unit Development (PUD) Ordinance 
  
April ~Budget Session~ 
 
 
Additional topics that we can discuss are: 
 
 Cost Sharing Criteria for Adopted Parks 
 Emergency Operations Plan 
 Ethics for City Council Members 
 IT Update 
 Joint Meeting with Chamber 
 Joint Meeting with Reps from Boys/Girls Club 
 Joint Meeting with Reps from Community Coalition 

campbellld
Text Box
J-09



List of Study Items for Upcoming Council Meetings 
September 15, 2005 
Page Two 
 
 
 
 
 Street Connectivity and Interconnection 
 Update on Consolidation of Services with Clawson 

 
Please let me know if you have suggestions or changes to this proposed schedule. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c: Direct Reports 
 Mark Miller 
 Mark Stimac 
 
 
 
JS/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2005\09.19.05 - List of Study Items for Upcoming Council Meetings 


	AGENDA: September 19, 2005
	GOALS
	AGENDA - Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET - Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	a) In Recognition of Beatrice Wesson on the Occasion of her 100th Birthday
	b\) America Recycles – 2005
	c\)  Family Day – A Day to Eat Dinner Wi�


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1  Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2256 Garry
	C-2  Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2002 Atlas
	C-3  Parking Variance – 4550 Investment Drive
	C-4 Rezoning Application – Cambridge Square Office Buildings

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: City Council Appo

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations
	a) In Recognition of Beatrice Wesson on the Occasion of her 100th Birthday
	b\) America Recycles – 2005
	c\)  Family Day – A Day to Eat Dinner Wi�
	d) In Recognition of Citizenship Day and Constitution Week 2005

	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 and�

	E-5 Private Agreement for Timbercrest Estates Site Condomini
	E-6 Private Agreement for Chesapeake Grove Site Condominiums
	E-7 Request for Acceptance of Two Warranty Deeds and Three P

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advi
	F-2 Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth Authority (ME
	F-3 Final Site Condominium Review – Chesapeake Grove Site Co
	F-4 Final Site Condominium Review – Proposed Timbercrest Est
	F-5 Schedule a Joint Meeting with Representatives from the T

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  No Announcements Submi
	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	a) City Regular General Election Informational Brochure


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a\) Advisory Committee for Senior Citize�
	b\) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final –�
	c\) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final�
	d\) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – �
	e\) Planning Commission Special/Study/Dr�
	f\) Advisory Committee for Senior Citize�
	g\) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft –�

	J-2 Department Reports:
	a\) The Report of the Actuarial Valuatio�
	b\) The Report of the Forty-first Annual�
	c\) Building Department – Permits Issued�
	d\) City of Troy Retirement System Summa�
	e\) Police and Fire Department – Update �
	f) Memorandum Regarding Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Appointments

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Jeffrey Werner, In Appr
	Letter of Thanks to the Troy Police Department from Mark For
	Letter to Chief Craft from Robert Novy, Assistant Prosecutin

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Troy Daze Booths
	J-7  Effective Date of New Sign Ordinance
	J-8  Community Center Catering
	J-9  List of Study Items for Upcoming Council Meetings

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested




